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excluded. Such exclusion is not intended, nor sha# deemed, to be an admission that such peeseraffiliates of the registrant.
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Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward Looking Staements and Analysts Reports

This Form 10-K and future filings by Alaska Commeations Systems Group, Inc. and its consolidatédidiaries (“we”, “our”, “us”, “ACS”,
the “Company” and “Alaska Communications”) on Forb@sK, 10-Q and 8-K and the documents incorpor#tedein by reference include
forward-looking statements within the meaning oftis 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amendad Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. We intend forhaking statements to be covered by the safe hanmwisions for forward-looking
statements. All statements other than statementstfrical fact are “forward-looking statementet purposes of federal and state securities
laws, including statements about anticipated futyrerating and financial performance, financialifims and liquidity, growth opportunities
and growth rates, pricing plans, acquisition anesliture opportunities, business prospects, gfi@tdternatives, business strategies, regul;
and competitive outlook, investment and expendiplaas, financing needs and availability and o#ietilar forecasts and statements of

”ou

expectation and statements of assumptions undgréyig of the foregoing. Words such as “anticipatdslieves”, “could”, “estimates”,
“expects”, “intends”, “may”, “plans”, “projects”,seeks”, “should’and variations of these words and similar expressare intended to ident|
these forward-looking statements. These forwardtit@pstatements are subject to certain risks amgnainties that could cause actual results
to differ materially from our historical experienagd our present expectations or projections. Fahwaoking statements by us are based on
estimates, projections, beliefs and assumptiomsasfagement and are not guarantees of future peafaren Forward-looking statements may
be contained in this Form 10-K under “ltem 1A ,Risctors” and “Item 7, Management’s Discussion Andlysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations and elsewhere. Actual fuperéormance, outcomes, and results may differ rnzlefrom those expressed in forward-
looking statements made by us as a result of a auoflimportant factors. Examples of these factociide (without limitation):

» the impact of Verizon Wireless’ (“Verizon”) ctinued build-out of its wireless network in Alask&ich became operational in May
2013 and the related expansion of its retail pres

» the ability of our wireless joint venture AlaskVireless Network, LLC (“AWN") with General Commigations, Inc. (“GCI”) to
integrate and operate, a competitive wireless ndtwith wholesale products and pricing terms thraldes ACS to be competitive
in the wireless marke

» the ability of AWN to generate sufficient free cdkiw to support our monthly preferred distributi
» the wholesale terms established by AWN that affectcompetitiveness in the retail wireless ma

« governmental and public policy changes, inalgddn-going changes in our revenues or obligatremsvill assume to receive these
revenues, resulting from regulatory actions affegtnter-carrier compensation, Universal Servicadig (“USF”) for high cost
support, and ongoing support for programs suciHelme services to our custome

e our substantial debt which requires us to dedia significant portion of our cash flow from ogteng activities to make debt
payments which places pressure on our ability tesethe capital marke

» our ability to comply with the covenants and ottegms contained in our Senior Credit Faci

» the cost and availability of future financimgthe amounts, at the terms, and subject to thdittoms necessary to support our
business and pursue growth opportuni

* our ability to keep pace with rapid technologicaldlopments and changing standards in the telecancations industry, includin
orn-going capital expenditures needed to upgrade awrark to industry competitive spee

» our ability to continue to develop attractiirgegrated products and services to evolving ingustindards, and meet the pressure
from competition to offer these services at lowecgs

* unanticipated damage to one or more of our kga@efiber optic cables resulting from constructiordigging mishaps, fishing boats
or other reasor
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» changes in general industry and market coritiand structural declines for voice and otheadggservices within the
telecommunications indust

» disruptions or failures in the physical infrasture or operating systems that support our legsies and customers, or cyber attack:
or security breaches of the networks, systems viceg that our customers use to access our prododtservice

* a maintenance or other failure of our network daaanter:
» afailure of bac-office information technologyIT”) systems

e athird party claim that the Company is infiimgyupon their intellectual property, resultinglitgation or licensing expenses, or the
loss of our ability to sell or support certain puatk including certain wireless devic

« changes in overall national, regional or local exoit conditions

* unanticipated costs required to fund our peitement benefit plans, or contingent liabiliteessociated with our participation in a
multi-employer pension pla

* the success or failure of any future acquisitionstber major transactiot
» geologic or other natural disturbances relevariiédocation of our operatiol
« the ability to attract, recruit, retain and devetbp workforce necessary for implementing our bessrplar

» the matters described under Item 1A Risk Fac

In light of these risks, uncertainties and assuomsti you should not place undue reliance on anweafai-looking statements. Additional risks
that we may currently deem immaterial or that aecurrently known to us could also cause the fodalaoking events discussed in this Form
10-K or our other reports not to occur as descriBeatept as otherwise required by applicable stéesiiaws, we undertake no obligation to
publicly update or revise any forward-looking staénts, whether as a result of new information,reievents, changed circumstances or any
other reason after the date of this Form 10K.

Investors should also be aware that while we deadbus times, communicate with securities analyisis against our policy to disclose to
them any material non-public information or othenfidential information. Accordingly, investors siid not assume that we agree with any
statement or report issued by an analyst irrespgeofi the content of the statement or report. Boektent that reports issued by securities
analysts contain any projections, forecasts oriop#) such reports are not our responsibility.

PART |
Item 1. Business
OVERVIEW

We provide leading integrated communications ses/io consumer and business customers in and édaska. Our communications netwe
extends throughout the major population centeaska connecting business and consumer customenrs thetwork, which provides voice,
broadband and other services to these customert® dhe contiguous states through our own netwdriclvincludes our two diverse undersea
fiber optic cable systems. Our network is amongntiest expansive in Alaska and forms the foundatioservice to our customers. Our
primary focus is: (i) growing retail service revenwith our business, wholesale and consumer cussopnienarily by providing high bandwid
speeds and managed service offerings to businésstasiesale customers, and higher bandwidth spsidsut data cap pricing for
consumers, (ii) working with state and federal tagpry agencies to provide an appropriate levdligh cost support funding relative to the
to provide broadband services in our service taigs and (i) maintaining our wireless retail\dee revenues by taking advantage of the A
network in Alaska.

While our long term history of operation in Alasiesults in us owning and operating an extensive/ord, given increasing level of
competition in wireless, we entered into a uniqaegaction with GCI to form The Alaska Wireless \Watk, LLC where both companies
combined their wireless networks. Alaska Commumicatis a one-third owner of AWN, while GCI owng ttemaining two-thirds. GCI and
Alaska Communications are leading wireless prowderAlaska, and in forming AWN, they both have tifuted their respective wireless
assets, including spectrum licenses, cell siteskhzul facility
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usage rights, and other assets necessary for AViddmte as an infrastructure company that desigrilsls, and operates a statewide
wholesale wireless network. AWN'’s network coversenof Alaska’s population than the network of atlyas wireless provider, and provides
the latest wireless services, including LTE. GGl &CS independently sell these AWN wireless sewvioetheir respective retail customers,
while paying AWN a wholesale charge as compensdtinthat company owning and operating the wiretessvork. AWN also reimburses us,
subject to certain conditions, for wireless handsiisidies that we incur while providing wirelessvices to our customers. This transaction
closed on July 22, 2013.

We were incorporated in 1998 under the laws oftate of Delaware. Our principal executive offiaes located at 600 Telephone Avenue,
Anchorage, Alaska 99503-6091. Our telephone nunsh@07) 297-3000 and our internet address is wisk.eom.

Markets, Services and Products
We operate our business under a single reportagl@ent, and provide services and products to fl@img customer categories.
* Business and Wholesal
» Consumer
e Other Services (including access services and higbst support)
*  Wireless
* AWN Related
The four pillars supporting our products and sewiare reliability, customer service, trustwortsgand local presence. These pillars are

represented by the following promise we make tocmstomers: “You can always expect to get the seras promised to you by an Alaska
Communications’ representative. If you are notsiatil, we will work with you to provide a solutidtinat meets your satisfaction.”

Our services and products are described below: I 7, Management’s Discussion and Analysis ofaficial Condition and Results of
Operations,” for a summary of service and prodagenues generated by each of these customer groups.

Business and Wholesale

Providing services to Business and Wholesale custeis our primary focus. Business services haperanced significant growth since
January of 2012 and we believe the economics dhbss services are attractive. Given the demamd &or customers for more bandwidth
services, we expect growth from these custometsrttinue for the foreseeable future. We provide momication services such as voice and
broadband, and managed services including dateonetvosting, IT management, cloud-based servidisgband collection, and long
distance services to these customers primarily oueown network. Our business customers includallssnd medium businesses, larger
enterprises, and government customers which inalugigcipal, local, state and federal governmenitiest school districts, libraries and rural
health care hospitals.

Our acquisition of Tekmate, discussed in IteMahagement’s Discussion and Analysis of Financahdtion and Results of Operationader
the headin@ther initiatives, is an example of our strategy to provide increg$evels of managed services to business custpsars as
monitoring and maintaining our customers’ inforroattechnology infrastructures.

Our wholesale customers are other telecommunicatiarriers who rely on us to provide connectiviyyoice, long distance and broadband
needs to access their customers over our netwbkwholesale market is characterized by larges#etions that can create variability in our
operating performance. Overall we expect wholesalenue to grow modestly.
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Consumer

We primarily provide voice and broadband servicesesidential customers. Given that our primary petitor has extensive triple play
offerings (video, voice and broadband) we are siglen how we offer products and services to thistomer segment, to maximize our
returns. We expect revenue growth from these custemill be more modest than our revenue growtimfbusiness customers. In 2013 our
primary focus was to offer higher bandwidth speledbiese customers, leveraging the capabilitiesuofxisting network, a process which will
continue into 2014. Our primary competitive advgeté we offer bandwidth without data caps, while primary competitor charges
customers for exceeding certain levels of dataaisag

Other Services Including Access Services and HighoSt Support

We provide voice and broadband termination servigéster and intrastate carriers who provide sEwito our retail customers. We are
compensated for these services, primarily by chartgrminating and originating per minute ratethese carriers. These revenue streams ha
been in decline and we expect them to continuetdirte.

We also receive inter and intrastate high costensiasd support funds and similar revenue strearastsiied by state and federal regulatory
agencies that allow us to recover our costs ofidiog universal service in Alaska. These revenoeashs have experienced some erosion in
2013 due to changes in funding qualification byrlevant regulatory authority. As further discubsader “Regulation,” as a result of
substantial changes enacted by the Federal Comatiaris Commission (“FCC”), certain of these revestieams, are undergoing significant
reform and until this reform process is compleis difficult to predict the positive or negativeogvth in these revenue streams in the future
the obligations we inherit should we qualify fotdte funding.

Wireless

We provide wireless voice and broadband serviaas$other value-added wireless products and sensceh as wireless devices, across
Alaska with roaming coverage available in the auuntius states, Hawaii and Canada by utilizing theNAlétwork.

Prior to the AWN structure, we provided these sasiutilizing our own wireless network. Under thé/HN structure, we continue to provide
these services to our retail wireless customengtitiging the AWN network. We believe that the netlk owned by AWN has the most
extensive statewide coverage of any wireless ¢aand also has a significant Wi-Fi network in thiban corridors. The AWN spectrum
licenses are the 800-900 MHz (for digital cellutaice and broadband services), 1800-1900 MHz {gitad PCS voice and broadband
services), and the 3650-3700 MHz and AWS 1710-MB& (for 4G LTE cellular service). The combined A@8d GCI contributed spectrum
have similar characteristics and cover virtuallyc&lAlaska.

Because we are a minority owner of AWN, our futpegformance in wireless is affected by the follogvfactors related to AWN:
» First, AWN's ability to integrate the ACS and GCI networksiiway that does not hinder the service experiemceur customers

» Second, AWN's ability to offer wireless prodsi@nd services, including handsets in a compdijtiveutral manner to GCI and
ACS.

e Third, AWN's ability to establish wholesale eatfor wireless services that allow us to earraaageable profit for our provision of
retail wireless service

Our performance in wireless is also impacted byfdfiewing market based events:

»  First, continued changes to the lifeline progi@s discussed in our regulatory section undehéaglers-ederal Universal Service
Support, Lifeline Reform, Alaska Universal SeroadandOther RCA Proceedingswhich has undergone substantial new rules
which make it more difficult for us to maintain owrireless lifeline customer base (in 2012 and 20&3ost approximately 9,500
lifeline customers due to these new rul

» Second, the timing and pace of Verizon's ety the wireless retail market in Alaska. In 20¥&rizon turned up its wireless data
network in the major urban markets of Alaska. Theact of this turn up was deminimus because the A¥ghkaction mitigated tl
impact from lower roaming revenue as roaming is eawned by AWN. The Verizon market entry is expagttehave the most
material impact to us when Verizon enters the ratarket and competes with us and the other wisatesriers in Alaska for
subscribers. Although it is difficult to predictevexpect that in 2014 Verizon will open retail s/oim the state and begin to provide
retail wireless service
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» Finally, our performance in wireless is affectyy our ability to operate within the expected gias we generate under the AWN
structure. These margins, on average, are estinatsel 30% of our wireless retail revenue. Thesgina are intended to recover
our fixed costs of operating our retail and indireales channels, our costs to support our cus®imeluding customer care, billing
and collection, and other general and administatsts. During the fourth quarter we began to émgant actions to address how
we operate within this operating margin, includiegucing our employee levels in retail stores amdcontact centers, and we
expect further actions throughout 2014 to positianoverall wireless offerings and reduce our oNe@sts to provide wireless
services

AWN Related

We report revenues that are related to our ownebsition in AWN.

Because our network provides access to the retaiketplace, and as a result of the cost of progidiervice to high cost areas, we generate
Competitive Eligible Telecommunications Carrier ECC”) revenues established by either state or #ddegulatory agencies. As part of the
AWN transaction we have agreed to pay a servicegeh@ AWN for an amount equal to our CETC Reverane, therefore CETC has no
impact on our net income or EBITDA calculations.

Prior to the formation of AWN, we also served asaming partner for many national wireless carriedsich resulted in us generating roam
revenue. Because AWN now operates the networkoathing revenue is, and is expected to continlef@enerated by AWN.

Prior to the formation of AWN, we also providedrficant backhaul services to other wireless casriBackhaul services are broadband
connections between a wireless carrier’s cell iteiy central office switch and connectivity t@timternet. Upon the closing of AWN, all
existing backhaul contracts were transferred to AW¢Nich results in our loss of revenue. Howeveranenot excluded from providing
backhaul services in the future, and will compeiit \\WN and GCI for these services and expect tmgthese revenues going forward.

Network and Technology

There are two extensive facilities based wirelgledcommunications networks in Alaska. We operateafithese networks and GCI operates
the other. We provide switched and dedicated varckbroadband services as well as a host of otllee added services such as network
hosting, IT management, cloud-based servicesngilind collection, and long distance services. @iguously upgrade our network to
provide higher levels of performance, higher bamifiwspeeds, increased levels of security and additvalue added services to our
customers. Our networks are monitored for perforwraround the clock in redundant monitoring certteggovide a high level of reliability
and performance. Our fiber network, which servethadackbone of our network, is extensive withlaska’'s urban areas and connects our
largest markets, including Anchorage, Fairbanksameau with each other and the contiguous staiaffers us the opportunity to provide ¢
customers with a high level of network reliabilapd speed for voice and broadband applicationsaéeown and operate one of the most
expansive Internet Protocol (“IP”) networks in Atasusing multi-protocol label switching (“MPLS”), &tro Ethernet technology and Virtual
Private LAN Service (VPLS). Our MPLS network proggdthe long-haul framework for our Metro Etherrest/ce, which we market to
businesses and government customers. Metro Etheffees our customers scalable, high-speed broatiaad customized IT products and
services, as well as Internet connectivity. VPLIBv$ customers to connect their dispersed locatigtisthe ease of use and control offered b
Metro Ethernet and the quality and reliability eff dMPLS services. We are one of the few Metro EteeForum certified carriers in the nati
providing the highest degree of assurance to ostooers regarding the quality of our network andises.

We also own and operate undersea fiber optic cafsiems that connect our Alaskan network to ouliti@s in Oregon and Washington. The
facilities provide the most survivable service taldrom Alaska, with key monitoring and disasterawery capabilities for our customers.

7
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Our network in Oregon and Washington includes &ria transport components linking Nedonna Be&riegon to a Network Operations
Control Center in Hillsboro, Oregon and collocatfanilities in Portland, Oregon and Seattle, Wagtan. In addition, AKORNP, our
undersea fiber optic cable system, connects owskélaetwork from Homer, Alaska to our facilitiesHlorence, Oregon along a diverse path
within Alaska, the Pacific Northwest and undersethe Pacific Ocean. Northstar, our other undefibea optic system, comprises
approximately 2,100 miles with cable landing fdi@bk in Whittier, Juneau, and Valdez, Alaska, ardidhna Beach, Oregon. Together, these
fiber optic cables provide extensive bandwidth adl as survivability protection designed to serue own, as well as our most demanding
customers’ critical communications requirementsiotigh our landing stations in Oregon, we also gtean at-the-ready landing point for
other large fiber optic cables, and their operatomanecting the U.S. to networks in Asia and offets of the world. We currently manage
landing facilities for approximately one third df ianspacific cables landing on the U.S. weststoa

Competition

We face strong competition in our markets. Foritiaaal voice and broadband services, we competie @C| and AT&T on a statewide basis,
and smaller providers such as Matanuska Telephasediation, Inc. (“MTA”") on a more localized basis.

As the largest facilities based operator in Alagk&) is the dominant state-wide provider of broadhavoice and video services, and has up tc
80% market share in virtually every customer sedriererves. GCI continues to expand its voice daé network, often taking advantage of
subsidized government programs which create a nandpr services in certain markets. AT&T’s prim&ncus is to be the provider of voice
and broadband services to its national customecslodk to AT&T to provide nationwide solutions. ATRtends to use its existing broadband
network to serve these customers or it leases tgfsam GCI or ACS to augment its existing network

For wireless services, we compete with AT&T, GQidaoon with Verizon for retail service revenue.&AT s strong market position in Alas
is in wireless, and we estimate that AT&T has dd@% market share. The competitive landscape isgithgrdramatically. In 2013, Verizon
turned up its wireless network in the major urbanters in Alaska and we believe it is expandinggiegraphic reach of that network.
Although Verizon has not yet opened retail storealaska, we anticipate that they are planningdead in 2014. AT&T and Verizon, in
particular, have significant competitive advantaggesociated with device availability, content anthionwide footprint that can be packaged
with their wireless offerings. The impact to Alaskammunications is expected to be significant amdretail customer base may erode.

As competition continues to increase, we will bguieed to increasingly differentiate our value prsiion based on prices and pricing plans,
and target customer segments where we believe wedmnpetitive advantages. We believe, howevet,ahacustomer base will erode from
this competitive environment and our revenues glimpacted.

Our ownership in AWN serves to mitigate the finah@inpact of increasing competition in wirelessdnese AWN is obligated to pay us a
preferred distribution for the first four yearsitsf formation beginning in July of 2013. These wliattions are $50 million in each of the first
two years, and $45 million in each of the third &makth year. These distributions carry risk athiair certainty as AWN must generate free
cash flow to sustain these payouts and they atlegusubject to our ability to maintain certain scitiber counts.

These competitive dynamics are significant, andoparating performance is expected to be impaatedrdingly. For more information
associated with the risks of our competitive envinent see “Item 1A, Risk Factors.”

Marketing

Our marketing strategy relies on our history of erstinding the Alaskan customer. We increasingligrtaur products and services based on
understanding our customers’ needs, location, yoel of service they desire. For consumer customercus on offering flat rate pricing for
broadband services differentiating ourselves fro@1 ®ho charges for excess data usage. For bustasgsmers we bundle our products and
provide value added managed services, with a higines of reliability and redundancy.

8
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Sales and Distribution Channels

Our sales strategy combines direct and indirectilligion channels to retain current customersduink additional sales growth. Our direct
channel is comprised of our retail stores througlioe: state, a direct sales team focused on oumdmsscustomers, and a network of agents
primarily focus on wireless services. During 2018 built an extensive sales channel targeting thalsand medium sized business market to
supplement our traditional focus on serving latygsiness and wholesale customers. Our focus in BXtbdmaintain the size of this sales
channel and improving its productivity as measungdiotal sales and average sales per representative

Customer Base

We generate our revenue through a diverse statewistemer base and there is no reliance on a stoglemer or small group of customers.
Business and wholesale customers are our primansfand they make up 28.8% of our total revenupribr years we had significant reliance
on roaming revenue from Verizon which accountedlth6%, 16.4% and 12.4% of our revenue in 2013228ad 2011, respectively. As of -
close of the AWN transaction, the Verizon roamiagenue was assigned to AWN.

Seasonality

We believe our revenue is impacted by seasonalaciVe believe this is due to Alaska’s northetitude and the resulting wide swing in
available daylight and weather conditions betwaenrmer and winter months. These conditions, uniquelaska, affect business, tourism and
calling patterns in the state. Our spending padtare also impacted by seasonality as we incur gep#al spending and operating spending
during the summer and early fall periods of theryeflecting the heightened economic activity frém summer months and our own
construction activities during this time period.

Employees

As of December 31, 2013, we employed 811 regultifne employees, 7 regular part-time employeeas &temporary employees.
Approximately 65% of our employees are represehethe International Brotherhood of Electrical Werk, Local 1547 (“IBEW”). Our
Master Collective Bargaining Agreement (“CBA”) withe IBEW, which was amended in October 2012, gowéhe terms and conditions of
employment for all IBEW represented employees wagkor us in the state of Alaska through Decemter2815. Management considers
employee relations to be generally good.

Regulation

The following summary of the regulatory environmanivhich our business operates does not descllipeegent and proposed federal, state
and local legislation and regulations affecting tdflecommunications industry in Alaska. Some legish and regulations are currently the
subject of judicial review, legislative hearingslaadministrative proposals, which could changentla@ner in which this industry operates. We
cannot predict the outcome of any of these mattetseir potential impact on our business. Regaoifaiin the telecommunications industry is
subject to rapid change, and any such change mayadraadverse effect on us.

Overview

The telecommunications services we provide arecstibp extensive federal, state and local regulafitiese regulations govern, in part, our
rates and the way we conduct our business, indluitlie requirement to offer telecommunications s@wipursuant to nondiscriminatory rates,
terms, and conditions, the obligation comply wit®FL rules, the Communications Assistance for LafioEeement Act (“CALEA"), the
obligation to safeguard the confidentiality of @mer proprietary network information (“CPNI"), aglvas our obligation to maintain
specialized records and file reports with the F@@ state regulators. These requirements are subjéetquent change. Compliance is costly,
and limits our ability to respond to the demandsufincreasingly competitive service markets.

We generate revenues from regulated and marketwdeeges to our customers, access charges toaathr@rs, and federal and state support
mechanisms for telecommunications and broadbanesérevenues are recorded throughout our custategaries. With the close of AWN,
an amount equal to our federal high cost loop sagpowireless (“CETC Revenuef} remitted to AWN, and for periods after the cloS&TC
Revenues have no direct impact to our net incoarh ow from operations or adjusted EBITDA.
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Our local exchange carrier (“LEC”) subsidiaries srgulated common carriers subject to rate of netmd pricezap regimes; however, beca
they face competition, most of our LEC subsidianiesy not be able to realize their allowed ratesetdrn.

In this section, “Regulation”, we refer to our LEGbsidiaries individually as follows:
» ACS of Anchorage, LLC*ACSA");
e ACS of Alaska, LLC “ACSAK");
e ACS of Fairbanks, LLC*ACSF"); and
e ACS of the Northland, LLC*ACSN").

In establishing their costs of regulated servioes,LEC subsidiaries have determined their aggesgasts, allocated those costs between
regulated and non-regulated services, then seplataee costs between state and federal jurisdgtaod finally among inter and intrastate
services. This process has been governed printarithe FCC and the Regulatory Commission of Alg8R&LA”) rules and regulations. The
FCC is considering whether to modify or elimindte turrent jurisdictional separations process. @ki@sion could indirectly increase or
reduce earnings of carriers subject to jurisdi@l@eparations rules by affecting the way regulatesis are divided between the federal and
state jurisdictions if rates in both jurisdictics® not adjusted accordingly.

At the federal level, the FCC generally exercisesgliction over services of regulated common easrthat provide, originate or terminate
interstate or international communications andteeldacilities. The FCC does not directly regulegetain broadband Internet access services
known as information services and has preempteazhsistent state regulation of information servi€asr wireless services use FCC radio
frequency licenses and are subject to various FgGlations, including E-911 and number portabil@guirements; AWN now bears the
responsibility for compliance with FCC licensingdametwork operational requirements.

The RCA generally exercises jurisdiction over seggiand facilities used to provide, originate omiaate communications between points in
Alaska. In addition, pursuant to the local compatitprovisions of the Communications Act of 1934 aanended (“Communications Act”),
federal and state regulators share responsibditynfiplementing and enforcing certain pro-compeitpolicies.

Local governments often regulate the public rigiftsvay necessary to install and operate networkese local governments may require
communication service providers to obtain licensefsanchises regulating their use of public rigbtsvay and may require carriers to obtain
construction permits and abide by building and lagsé codes.

Federal Regulation

We must comply with the Communications Act and tatjons promulgated thereunder, which require, agnather things, that we offer
interstate services upon request at just, reaserzainl non-discriminatory rates and terms. The Conications Act also requires us to offer
competing carriers interconnection and non-diseratory access to certain facilities and servicesgiated as essential for local competition,
and permits the FCC to deregulate us as marketsiemore competitive. Under the Communicationswietre eligible for support revenues
to help defray the cost of providing services tatuhigh cost areas, low-income consumers, schaaddibraries, and rural health care
providers. Many of these regulations recently hae&en modified by the FCC and others are the subfem-going FCC rulemakings that are
expected to result in further changes; in both gabe changes are intended to expand the suppottanisms to include broadband Internet
access services, and promote additional deployofenich services.

I nterconnection with Local Telephone Companies and Access to Other Facilities

The Communications Act imposes a number of requérégmon LECs. Generally, a LEC must: not prohibitioreasonably restrict the resale
its services; provide for telephone number porilgbélo customers may keep the same telephone nuifrtbey switch service providers; ensi
that customers
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are able to route their calls to telecommunicatgwice providers without having to dial additibdaits; provide access to their poles, ducts,
conduits and rights-of-way on a reasonable, noorisnatory basis; and, when a call originatestemetwork, compensate other telephone
companies for terminating or transporting the call.

All of our LEC’s are considered incumbent LECs @Cs”) and have additional obligations under the @amications Act: negotiate in good
faith with any carrier requesting interconnectipmvide interconnection for the transmission anding of telecommunications at any
technically feasible point in its network on jusasonable and non-discriminatory rates, termscanditions; provide access to unbundled
network elements (“UNES"), such as local loopsat-discriminatory, cost-based rates to competingera that would be “impaired” without
them; offer retail local telephone services to fesg at discounted wholesale rates; provide naifoghanges in information needed for anothel
carrier to transmit and route services using itdifees; and provide, at rates, terms and condgithat are just, reasonable, and non-
discriminatory; physical collocation, which allo@sompetitive LEC (“CLEC”) to install and maintdts network termination equipment in an
ILEC’s central office, or to obtain functionally eigalent forms of interconnection.

Our ACSN ILEC subsidiary enjoys a statutory exempts a rural telephone company from the requir¢srierposed on most ILECs to
provide UNEs to a CLEC. The RCA may terminate tkenaption if it determines that interconnectiondshnically feasible, not unduly
economically burdensome and consistent with unatessrvice. Although the RCA has not terminated AGSJNE exemption, the RCA
granted GCI, subject to certain conditions, apprtv@rovide local exchange telephone service Glacier State study area and Sitka
exchange of ACSN on its own facilities. Other thiaa City of Sitka, all other exchanges in the Sgkady area remain unserved by any CLEC
at this time.

On December 28, 2006, the FCC conditionally antigdhr granted ACSA forbearance from the obligatiorlease UNEs to our competitors.
This forbearance was limited to five wire centeithim the Anchorage service area. Even where relees granted, however, the FCC has
required ACSA to lease loops and sub-loops at camially negotiated rates, or if there is no comnaragreement, at the rates for these
UNEs in Fairbanks. As a result of this decisionMerch 15, 2007, our LECs entered into a five ygabal interconnection and resale
agreement with GCI governing the provision of UN#asl other services. This agreement has been upaladeid currently in effect through
March 8, 2017.

I nterstate Access Charges

The FCC regulates the prices that ILECs chargéhuse of their local telephone facilities in arating or terminating interstate calls. For the
years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, inteestaéss charges represented approximately 6% abw@lirevenues, respective

Rates for interstate telecommunications servicksed by our ILEC subsidiaries are determined upiice cap regulation, under which the
rates vary from year to year based on mathemdticalulae, and not based on changes to our costagding both intercarrier rates and retail
end user rates. Since 2010, ACSA, ACSF, and ACSaketad the right under the FCC'’s Phase | and Rhpseing flexibility rules to offer
flexible pricing arrangements such as volume anu @iscounts free from FCC rate structure and peage rules for qualifying services and
dedicated transport and special access servighe ilnchorage, Juneau and Fairbanks areas. ThenBE€ince ceased making any new grant
of pricing flexibility, and is seeking data on tskate of competition in the markets for these sewito inform possible changes to these rules.
Compliance with this data request could be costlhe Company. In addition, because three of th& AECs enjoy pricing flexibility under
the current FCC rules, any reforms that the FCQtdihvat affects this pricing flexibility could afft ACS’s revenues in ways that we cannot
currently predict.

Under a 2011 FCC order (the “Transformation Ordestiy ILEC interstate and intrastate switched ascates and reciprocal compensation
rates (“ICC rates”) are capped and declining tovezaea, in pursuit of the FCC's goal that carrier kgcover their costs from their end-users
and, in some cases, universal service support meshs.
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The transition is unfolding over a six year perminning July 1, 2012, as follows:

* intrastate terminating switched end-office saiatrastate terminating switched transport réi@she extent they are above the
ILEC’s interstate rates) and reciprocal compengatibes were reduced in two equal steps to paitty imterstate rates effective
July 1, 2012 and July 1, 2013; transport ratesnaithain at this leve

* intrastate and interstate terminating switcared-office rates and reciprocal compensation natt®e reduced in three equal steps
to $0.0007 effective July 1, 2014, July 1, 2015 auly 1, 2016

« all terminating switched er-office rates and reciprocal compensation ratesheilfeduced to zero on July 1, 2017;

» for aterminating ILEC that owns the tandemtshyiterminating switched end-office rates and teating switched transport rates
will be reduced to $0.0007 for all traffic withihe tandem serving area on July 1, 2017, and toareduly 1, 201€

The Transformation Order provides for a certain ant@f compensation for lost revenue through twooogl programs: (i) an access recover)
charge on subscribers and (ii) a temporary aceggaaement support mechanism with broadband lmuitdbbligations. However, the FCC di
not intend the results of the changes to be reveeuéral to any ILEC and various caps, limitatiomsyrket forces, and, ultimately, phase-outs
apply to both of these programs. Based on theserfdt is difficult to predict the ultimate impiagn our future revenues.

Federal Universal Service Support

The Communications Act requires the FCC to estalaisiniversal service program to ensure that adftae] quality telecommunications
services are available to all Americans. The Comipaneives universal support (“USF”) in severahfisr (1) high cost loop support (“HCLS")
was provided to the Company in 2013 for its wirelbusiness under the Connect America Fund; anligR)cost loop support was provided to
the Company in 2013 for its wireless business a8@CRevenue. In addition, the Company benefits ftbenFCC’s E-Rate program that
supports schools and libraries as well as the F&Qsl Health Care program that supports telemeeiaind rural health care communications
Finally, the Company also receives USF under th€'BCifeline program which benefits low income cangers. For the year ended
December 31, 2013, the Company recognized $21l®mih wireless CETC Revenue (of which $10.1 mifliwas remitted to AWN, as
effective of the closing of AWN we remit to AWN &IETC Revenue that we receive) and $18.8 milliohigh cost loop support for its LECs.
Combined, these amounts represent approximatelydfi®r total revenues for the twelve month peended December 31, 2013. For the
year ended December 31, 2012, the correspondingraswere $20.7 million and $20.2 million, respeety.

Since the closing of the AWN transaction, ACSW hasn obligated to remit an amount equal to its CRE€enue to AWN.

The recent Transformation Order made a number afigds, including:

» Phasing out an existing high cost funding medrmas and establishing the Connect America FundF'¢to support both voice
and broadband fixed services in high cost areagddyy pric-cap carriers, such as our LECs; i

» Establishing a separate mobility fund to suppaobile voice and broadband services in unsermelchigh cost areas while freezing
and phasing out the identical support rule for CETiGcluding ACSW and our competito

Funding under the new programs will generally regjuécipients to provide broadband service to wesklocations throughout the designated
coverage area by the end of a specified build-etibd — typically three to five years — as welhaseting interim build-out obligations.
Extremely high cost locations are exempt from thigddbout requirement, and will be targeted throagéeparate support mechanism, the
Remote Areas Fund, which the FCC is developingatiiral penalties may apply if build-out obligaticorsservice metrics are not met.
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The Connect America Fund (CAF)

The CAF, a post-Transformation Order HCLS progreifi,be implemented in two phases. During Phase,@uéch started in 2012, high cost
support for ACS’s ILECs was frozen at 2011 lev€lAF | Frozen Support”). Price-cap ILECs, such gausst use this frozen CAF | Frozen
Support to support modern communications netwoaksable of supporting broadband and voice servara$sover time must target areas that
are substantially unserved by any unsupported ctitopproviding such services. “Broadband” for pasgs of the new FCC support programs
is currently defined as delivering actual speedstdéast 4 Mbps downstream and 1 Mbps upstreath,latency suitable for real-time services
such as VolP, and must be offered at prices readponamparable to those in urban areas.

Price-cap ILECs, such as us, must use CAF | Fr&maport to support modern communications netwoaksble of supporting broadband anc
voice services, and over time must increasinglyebareas that are substantially unserved by asypported competitor providing such
services. Specifically, under FCC rules, the ACEGIs receive a total of $19.7 million annually infen CAF Phase | support. In 2013, we
were required to spend one-third of this totaluddband operate broadband-capable networks useffaoour own retail broadband service in
areas substantially unserved by an unsubsidizeghetitor. On April 9, 2013, we filed a request fbetFCC to waive certain restrictions on the
use of this portion of our frozen CAF Phase | suppoorder to permit us to use this support mdfeatively to achieve the purposes of the
rule. The FCC denied the Company’s petition buhtgad some limited relief to all carriers in an arasued October 30, 2013. In 2014, we are
required to spend two-thirds of our CAF | Frozempgart in this manner, and may need to seek additiaiver relief from this rule. In 2012
and 2013, and in conjunction with Phase I, the h@(de additional CAF Phase | Incremental Suppoiitahla to certain price-cap carriers
serving the highest-cost wire centers, conditiomedthe carriers deploying additional broadbandiserto unserved locations over the three-
year period following the award of support. In 2q“Round 1 Incremental Support”), a price cap ILECejuting this support was required to
deploy broadband service delivering actual speédsleast 4 Mbps downstream and 1 Mbps upstreahimthree years to at least one
unserved location for every $775.00 of supportdepts. The FCC offered us approximately $4.2 amilbf this support in 2012, which we
accepted.

In September 2012, we filed a request for waivehwhe FCC, seeking greater flexibility to use shigpport in ways that we believe will
increase the benefits of this support to our silbsrs. That petition remains pending at the FCCully 2013, we informed the FCC that, undel
the conditions governing use of Round 1 Increme®tglport, we would be able to deploy broadbandicete 2,291 locations, utilizing
roughly $1.8 million of the Round 1 Incremental $ap that we originally accepted. If we are unabléeploy service to additional locations,
and do not receive a waiver, we may be requiredttan a portion of our Round 1 Incremental Suppamtl may face additional penalties.

In 2013, the FCC offered price cap ILECs additid@aF Phase | Incremental Support (“Round 2 Incretale®upport”), and an additional
alternative to use the support in areas serveddmgdbband, but that do not receive actual speedslefist 3 Mbps/768 kbps. A price cap ILEC
accepting Round 2 Incremental Support for use @ sueas must agree to deploy broadband delivadhal speeds of at least 4 Mbps
downstream and 1 Mbps upstream to one locatioedoh $550.00 it accepts. In 2013, ACS acceptedrian in Round 2 Incremental
Support to serve 316 locations at $550.00 per imcat

On April 22, 2013, the FCC adopted a model platftimat will be used to establish the geographic arehsupport levels to be offered under
CAF Phase I, which will serve to replace CAF Phlasepport to price-cap carriers operating in tBecdntiguous states. Price cap ILECs
accepting CAF Phase Il support will be requiredhke a statewide commitment to offer voice seraiteé broadband delivering actual speeds
of at least 4 Mbps downstream and 1 Mbps upstreagacth customer location in that state within thegyaphic area covered by CAF Phas
We have engaged in continuous FCC advocacy toerdfiis model platform and associated inputs teebedflect the costs and unique
challenges of deploying broadband in Alaska, antticoe to do so. We are unable to predict at thigs thowever, the level of CAF Phase II
support we may be offered, or the geographic areamber of customer locations that may be covbsesuch support.

There is substantial uncertainty regarding howQbepany qualifies for future USF revenues undex pindbgram and the obligations we must
inherit should we qualify for future funding.
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Lifeline Reform

We generated less than 2% of our total revenue fifefine customers for the twelve months endedddeioer 31, 2013 and 2012. Under
reforms adopted in the FCC’s January 2012 Lifefdnder, we are required to recertify each of oueliife customers annually to verify
continued eligibility for Lifeline service. In pagis a result of those efforts, our Lifeline enr@hhdecreased, in particularly for wireless
services where we lost approximately 2,000 conasstduring 2013. The rollout of a national eligiidatabase, through which we will be
required to verify subscriber eligibility for Lifiele, is currently underway. Also in conjunction kvthe Lifeline Order, the FCC continues to
evaluate further changes to its Lifeline programainongoing Further Notice of Proposed RulemakiR§iPRM"). There are a number of
matters under consideration that could increas€tmapany’s regulatory compliance obligations anstamer administrative responsibilities,
and impact revenue received from regulatory fundiogrces. In the FNPRM, the FCC is considering haretio reduce our federal Lifeline
subsidy support.

Wireless Services

Federal law preempts state and local regulatich@gntry of, or the rates charged by, any provideommercial mobile radio services
(“CMRS"), which includes personal communicationsvgges and cellular services. The FCC does notlaggsuch rates; however, the FCC
imposes a variety of regulatory requirements on @QwiRerators. Following the close of the AWN tratisa¢ AWN, as the new holder of our
CMRS licenses and operator of the AWN CMRS netwaslsumed responsibility for complying with the nmajoof these obligations. For
example, CMRS operators must be able to transnitc@dls from any qualified handset without credieck or validation and are required to
provide the location of the 911 caller within acr@asingly narrow geographic range. CMRS operai@salso required to provide 911 service
for individuals with speech and hearing disabiitier TTY service. All cellular and personal comieations services licenses have a 10-year
term, at the end of which they must be renewedzrises may be revoked for cause and license rea@plitations may be denied if the FCC
determines that renewal would not serve the puliérest. In addition, all personal communicatieasvices licensees must satisfy certain
coverage requirements. Licensees that fail to tieetoverage requirements may be subject to farteibf the license.

On April 7, 2011, the FCC adopted new rules govermiata roaming arrangements, by which wirelesserarare able to use their competitors
networks in areas where they do not offer servite new rules require AWN to offer data roamingaagements to other providers with
compatible technologies on “commercially reasonédrlims and conditions” and create a special dism#elution procedure should the parties
be unable to reach agreement. The long-term ingfabese rules remains uncertain however, theinecic impact will be mitigated to us to
some extent by the preferred dividend structurdnaes with AWN.

AWN Transaction
In connection with the formation of AWN, ACS obtadh

* Adeclaratory ruling from the FCC that accegALS to AWN's facilities and services constitutascess to spectrum” in areas in
which the Company holds Licenses for the purpos€/dE.F.R. §54.1003(b), and any similar provisiamith respect to Mobility
Fund Phase I

* An order from the SEC that our interest in AWN does$ subject us to regulation under the Investn@arhpany Act; an

* A waiver from certain SEC reporting requirementsoagated with the transactic

The formation of AWN was not challenged by the Dépant of Justice within the applicable anti-trustiting period.
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State Regulation

Telecommunication companies are required to olaitificates of public convenience and necessaynfthe RCA prior to operating as a
public utility in Alaska. The RCA must approve arderents to and transfers of such certificates andphnection with that authority, recently
opened a docket to consider the conversion of 8 A.LECs from corporations to LLCs. In addition, R@pproval is required if an entity
acquires a controlling interest in any of our dexdited subsidiaries, acquires a controlling irgeie another intrastate utility or discontinues an
intrastate service. The RCA also regulates ratesig and conditions for local, intrastate accessi@nastate long distance services, supervise
the administration of the Alaska Universal Senkemd (“AUSF”) and decides on Eligible Telecommutiimas Carrier (“ETC") status for
purposes of qualifying for federal USF. The Comneatibns Act specifies that resale and UNE ratesabe negotiated among the parties
subject to the approval or arbitration of the RQAIr ILECs have entered into interconnection agregsneith a number of entities.

Alaska Universal Service Fund

The AUSF serves as a complement to the federal b@Fmust meet federal statutory criteria concegmionsistency with federal rules and
regulations. Revenue from the Alaska Universal BerFund represented 1.8% and 1.9% of our revemuhé twelve month periods ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Currently, the AUSF supports a portion of certaighler cost carriers’ switching costs, the costkifgline service (which supports rates of low-
income customers) and other costs associated egtilated service. The RCA has adopted regulatimatditit high cost switching support to
local companies with access lines of 20,000 or. [Esis change has eliminated the switching supihattour rural ILECs received.

The RCA'’s August 2010 access charge order addesvaOarrier Common Line (“CCL"3upport program to the AUSF as well as expande
AUSF to include support for carriers of last regt@OLRs"). The new AUSF support programs were implementedirl2Some of our ILEC
also receive COLR support from the AUSF-.

Other RCA Proceedings

In December, 2012, the RCA released an order aathgrthree year interim standards for white pageatiories in the areas we serve, which
waived the requirement for an annual delivery pfiated copy of our white pages directory to aktumers in Anchorage, Fairbanks, Juneau
and the Kenai Peninsula.

Website Access to Reports

Our investor relations website Internet addresensv.alsk.com. The information on our website is marporated by reference in this annual
report on Form 10-K. We make available, free ofrghaon our investor relations website, our annebrt on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on
Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendsnternthose reports filed or furnished pursuargection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934. These reports are availabkoan as reasonably practicable after we electbyifile such material with, or furnish it
to, the SEC.

Code of Ethics

We post our code of business conduct and ethidteenitCode of Ethics”, on our corporate websitenatw.alsk.com. Our code of business
conduct and ethics complies with Item 406 of SEQuWRation S-K and the rules of NASDAQ. We intendlisclose any changes to the code
that affect the provisions required by ltem 40&Refulation S-K and any waivers of the code of sthic our executive officers, senior
financial officers or directors, on our corporatebasite.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

We face a variety of risks that may affect our bass, financial condition and results of operatigosne of which are beyond our control. The
risks described below are not the only ones we &ackeshould be considered in addition to the othationary statements and risks described
elsewhere and the other information containedimréport and in our other filings with the SEG;lirding our subsequent reports on Forms 1
Q and 8-K. Additional risks and uncertainties noown to us or that we currently deem immaterial ralap affect our business. If any of these
known or unknown risks or uncertainties actuallguws, our business, financial condition and resaflsperations could be seriously harmed.
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Risks Relating to Our Industry
Competition

The telecommunications industry in Alaska is coitipetand will become even more competitive whetzbie begins to provide retail wirele
service which is expected to occur in 2014.

The telecommunications industry in Alaska is cortpetand will become even more competitive whemixtn enters the retail wireless
market. New competitors make it more difficult i to attract and retain customers, which will kesuower revenue, cash flow from
operating activities and Free Cash Flow.

Given our limited market size, the impact from Eesed competition is expected to be material, athédwpact our future service revenue, ¢
flow from operating activities and Free Cash Fl@ur service revenue is generated from monthly aeatg our retail customers. Should those
customers elect to move their wireless servicedd2én, our service revenue will decrease.

Our principal facilities based competitor for voimed broadband services is GCI, who is also theimmh cable television provider in Alaska.
In consumer markets, GCI leverages its dominaritipnsn the consumer and business and wholesatkatsain several ways. In the consui
market GCI bundles its cable services with voiceallband and wireless services. We do not offexorgkrvice, and thus, are unable to offer
competing bundles. In the business and wholesatken&Cl holds a dominant position through its estee fiber optic, microwave and
satellite based middle mile network as well asiitdersea fiber cable network, where it owns andaips two of the four existing undersea
fiber optic cables connecting Alaska to the cordiggistates.

GCI continues to expand its statewide reach, inotythrough its Terra Southwest project which isded 50% with a $44 million grant from
the USDA Rural Utilities Service and, as structymgisies GCI a substantial competitive advantagbénmarkets served by Terra Southwest.
GCl has indicated it intends to replicate this gameent subsidized model in other markets in Alagkiach will create monopoly type
conditions in these markets.

As part of its long history of operating in Alaskel &T has a somewhat limited terrestrial networkfilaska where the focus on serving cer
national customers. AT&E primary focus in Alaska is providing wireless\vsegs, where it is estimated to have over 50% ntathare. AT&T
has numerous competitive advantages in wirelessdimgy availability to handsets and a nationwidevaek for its customers.

These strong competitive pressures from two laogepetitors, coupled with the entry of Verizon ithe Alaska market, could have a material
adverse effect on our business, operating resnfisgins and financial condition.

Network Migration to the AWN Network
Migration to the AWN HSPA/LTE network has and cagdtinue to impact the number of retail wirelesstomers
Prior to the formation of AWN, ACS served its custers with CDMA/LTE services. GCI served its custosneith HSPA/LTE services. AWI
has chosen to move to an HSPA/LTE network, whicamseour customers, over time, will need to movid$®A/LTE handsets that work on
the AWN network. The characteristics of this netkiorterms of coverage, quality, and speeds vdras the existing CDMA network, and

are experiencing customer loss from customers whkaraproved speeds from the HSPA/LTE network bar@ocoverage associated with the
AWN network.

Technological Advancements and Changes in Telecommigations Standards

If we do not adapt to rapid technological advancata@nd changes in telecommunications standardsaloility to compete could be straine
and as a result, we would lose customers.
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Our success will likely depend on our ability taaptland fund the rapid technological changes inrauwstry. Our failure to adopt a new
technology or our choice of one technology overtl@omay have an adverse effect on our abilityotopete or meet the demands of our
customers. Technological changes could, among ttiregs, reduce the barriers to entry facing ounetitors providing local service in our
service areas. The pace of technology change anabdity to deploy new technologies may be corised by insufficient capital and/or the
need to generate sufficient cash to make intemgnpnts on our debt.

New products and services may arise out of teclyimabdevelopments and our inability to keep paitb these developments may reduce
attractiveness of our services. Some of our congeetmay have greater resources to respond to aigaterhnology than we do. If we fail to
adapt successfully to technological changes otdadbtain access to new technologies, we coule dostomers and be unable to attract new
customers and/or sell new services to our exigtirmjomers. We may be unable to successfully defiger products and services, and we may
not generate anticipated revenues from such preductervices.

We will be required to maintain an on-going invesirnprogram to continuously upgrade our accessarktWVe define the access network as
the connection from the end user location — eitheome or a business — to the first aggregationt roithe network. The connection can be
copper or fiber and the aggregation point is tylpica central office or remote serving node. Theesms network determines the speeds we are
able to deliver to our end customer. We may nailtle to maintain the level of investment neededding term competitiveness in offering
broadband speeds to all segments of our market.

Our limited access to middle mile infrastructumailis our ability to compete in certain geographitdecustomer segments in Alaska.

We define middle mile as the connection betweerfiteeaggregation point into a local community @hd interconnection point to the internet
which connects this community to the outside wofldese are typically high capacity connections @ardspan hundreds of miles in the cas
Alaska. It is unlikely that we will have the capiteeeded for middle mile investments, and GCI aastsignificant elements of the middle mile
network in Alaska, and through its government fuhgeograms is creating monopoly conditions in deré@eas of the state. This limits our
ability to compete in certain markets.

Wireless Device Access and Cost per Device
Limited device access and increasing cost per dendlated competition may present continuing clmgjéss to the Compan

We have consistently been challenged to have cabfgmhandset availability to the national wireleariers, thus presenting a significant
competitive disadvantage. This risk was partiallfigated in April 20, 2012, when the Company betmoffer the iPhone to its customers, anc
also impacted by the AWN transaction where AWN as=ti the responsibility of providing competitive daat selection to ACS and GCI. T
company has experienced situations where AWN hadged handset availability to GCI but has not deaevith ACS, which impacts our
ability to be competitive, and we are not expenegémproved handset selection under the AWN stmactThis risk of handset supply will
continue to affect our ability to be competitivetime wireless market.

Risks Relating to Our Debt
Substantial Debt
Our substantial debt could adversely affect ouafiicial health, financing options and liquidity psi.
In 2012 we began to reduce the amount of our cudgig debt, but continue to have substantial debof December 31, 2013, we had total
debt of $456.3 million. While we have reduced awel of debt, our overall EBITDA is also being et-ander the AWN structure resulting in

continued higher leverage ratios compared to d#lecommunication providers who access the camigakets. This level of debt could have
important consequences for the holders of our comshack. For example, our substantial debt andetated loan covenants could:

* require us to dedicate a substantial portioausfcash flow from operations to payments on @lotdthereby reducing the
availability of our cash flow to fund working cagiit capital expenditures, future business oppatiegiiand other general corporate
purposes
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» limit our flexibility to plan, adjust or reath changing economic, market or industry conditiorguce our ability to withstand
competitive pressures and increase our vulnerabdigeneral adverse economic and industry corrdit

* place us at a competitive disadvantage to manyio€ompetitors who are less leveraged than we

» limit our ability to borrow additional amourfisr working capital, capital expenditures, futurgsimess opportunities, including
strategic acquisitions and other general corpoejairements or hinder us from obtaining such famag on terms favorable to us
at all; or

« limit our ability to refinance our dek

The terms of our Senior Credit Facility and thertgiof our other debt allow us and our subsidigndacur additional debt upon the satisfac
of certain conditions. If new debt is added, tHatel risks described above would intensify.

Our substantial debt exposes us to adverse chamgesrest rates. We entered into floating-to-fixeterest rate swaps to hedge our exposure
to interest rate changes. In conjunction with #fenancing of our senior debt on October 21, 2@i®entered into floating-tixed interest rat
swaps that fixed the interest rates on $385.0 aniltif notional term loan value at 6.47% for theigetdune 2012 through September 2015.
Under the terms of our Senior Credit Facility effee November 1, 2012, the effective fixed rateré@ases to 6.72% for the period April 2013
through May 2013, to 6.97% for the period June 2Bit8ugh July 2013, and to 7.22% for the period ¥8i2013 through September 2015. In
conjunction with the amendment to our Senior CrEditility effective November 1, 2012 and the incestal $65.0 million principal payment
on the term loan required by the Senior Creditlfgdn conjunction with the closing of the AWN Tmaaction, the Company determined the
forward floating-to-fixed interest rate swap in thetional amount of $192.5 million no longer mee gffectiveness criteria for hedge
accounting treatment. Accordingly, hedge accourtiiegtment was discontinued on this swap effedtiseember 1, 2012, and future changes
in its fair value will be recognized as interespesse. Amounts recorded to accumulate other corapséle loss from the date of the swap’s
inception through October 31, 2012 will be amodite interest expense over the period of the caijirdesignated hedged variable rate
interest payments. We are also subject to cregktralated to our counterparties on the swaps laméhterest rate cap and to interest rate
fluctuations on interest generated by our debkioess of the notional term loans referenced akbdememore specific information related to our
exposure to changes in interest rates and ourfukmting-to-fixed interest rate swaps, please‘$&en 7A, Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosures About Market Risk.”

Debt-Related Financial Covenants
Financial covenants in our debt instruments limit operating flexibility.
Our Senior Credit Facility requires us to mainteémtain financial ratios and adhere to other comenthat, among other things, restrict our

ability to take specific actions, even if we beiesuch actions are in our best interest. Subsligraiaof our assets (including those of our
subsidiaries) have been pledged as collateralifoGenior Credit Facility. These include restringmn our ability to:

» pay dividends or distributions on our capital staahtil our leverage ratio is at or below 3.5X EBIA;
» redeem common stoc

» issue certain preferred or redeemable capital s

* incur additional debi

+ create liens

* make certain types of investments, loans, advamicether forms of payment

» issue, sell or allow distributions on capital statlspecified subsidiarie

e prepay or defease specified de

* enter into transactions with affiliates;

e merge, consolidate or sell our ass
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Further, we are required to meet certain finanma&kenants, reported on a quarterly basis. Ourtpbdimeet these covenants is dependent,
among other factors, on our achieving targetedtestioperations and the payment of monthly disttions from AWN. We may not be able
to achieve these targets for a variety of reassoree of which are beyond our control, such as aatmthe high cost support program
administered by the FCC. Upon the occurrence avamt of default under our Senior Credit Facilibg lenders could elect to declare all
amounts outstanding under our Senior Credit Fadditbe immediately due and payable. Such a defaugtceleration may allow our other
creditors to accelerate our other debt. If the éeadccelerate the payment of the debt under mioiS€redit Facility, our assets may not be
sufficient to repay our debts.

Debt Service Requirements

We require a significant amount of cash to seraigedebt, fund our growth projects and meet otlepritlity needs.

Our ability to make payments on and to refinancedaint, including amounts borrowed under our Se@iedit Facility, due in 2016 and our
6.25% Convertible Notes due 2018 (“6.25% Notesiy 0 fund planned capital expenditures, includitrgtegic acquisitions, if any, will
depend on our ability to generate cash in the &utWe cannot assure you that our business willrggmsufficient cash flow from operations
such that our currently anticipated growth in raxenand cash flow will be realized on scheduldat future borrowings will be available to
in an amount sufficient to enable the repaymemtunfdebt, pay dividends or to fund our other ligtyicheeds.

We may need to refinance all or a portion of otdimcluding the 6.25% Notes, on or before mayuliYe may not be able to refinance any of
our debt on commercially reasonable terms or atfalle are unable to refinance our debt or obtesw financing under these circumstances,
we would have to consider other options, including:

» sales of certain assets to meet our debt servipgreznents
e sales of equity; an

* negotiations with our lenders to restructure thgliapble debt

If we are forced to pursue any of the above optmmsbusiness and the value of our common stoclddmiadversely affected. We recently
entered into an amendment to our Senior CreditiBaaihich, among other things, requires us to @age the amount of fixed annual
amortization of this facility and prohibits the pagnt of cash dividends on our common stock unthsime our Total Leverage Ratio is not
more than 3.50 to 1.00. As of December 31, 201B8Total Leverage Ratio was 3.94 to 1.00.

Risks Related to our Business
AWN Transaction and Operating Structure

We rely on the operations of AWN, over which weogse limited control to generate a significant pon of our cash from operations, to set
certain wholesale terms, and to provide acceptabieless performance to our wireless customers.

Although, for the first four years of AWN'’s operaitis, the distributions we receive from AWN are prehtial to us, we rely on management o
AWN to generate sufficient FCF to pay those disiiins. AWN's cash flows are affected by many fastsuch as network quality, ongoing
network rationalization, the number of retail cusérs served by GCl and AWN and other factors, mbsthich are beyond our control. For
the period July 23, 2013 to December 31, 2013 poeiferred distribution represents approximatel\B#®of AWN's FCF. AWN'’s free cash
flow is significantly impacted by roaming revenuesich are 38.1% of AWN'’s revenues for the perioded December 31, 2013, and capital
spending associated with AWN'’s build out of itsteteide LTE network. Roaming revenue is generatealttih charges to other wireless
providers whose customers traveled within our cagerareas. With the close of AWN these arrangensntshe related revenue were
contributed to AWN. This revenue is volatile bea@o$a number of factors including seasonality,ixter’s entry into the Alaska market, and
AWN'’s ability to successfully renew expiring agreemts and negotiate new ones. Significant declimesaming revenue may place pressure
on AWN's ability to execute its business plan, pdevcompetitive service, and pay its distributionrNCS. We expect that capital spending at
AWN will be significant through 2014 and will modse once the build out of the LTE network is cortgle
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During the first four years following consummatiohthe AWN Transaction, ACS is eligible to recejueferential cash distributions totaling
up to $50 million in each of years one and two, apdo $45 million in each of years three and féter year four, GCl and ACS wiill
generally receive distributions proportional toitlmvnership interests. Distributions payable toA@uring the first four years are subject to a
downward adjustment if there are certain decre@sA€S’s average number of wireless subscribersdua year. In years in which ACS fails
to maintain required subscriber levels, its disttitins in the following year will be reduced by 8200 per average subscriber shortfall. The
adjustments to ACS distributions are capped at8illion during the first four years. In the fohryear, GCI will be required to pay ACS up
to $21.8 million to the extent that it has not ntained a certain subscriber level and ACS has m@miaied its subscriber level. As of

December 31, 2013, ACS is below the required siliisclevels. Should subscriber levels stay unchdriigen these levels, and this continues
throughout 2014, AWN distributions to ACS in 2018l Wwe reduced by approximately $2.5 million.

AWN establishes the wholesale wireless rates apdastidollars to offset equipment subsidies inaditvg its owners. While the relevant
agreements give us influence on how these ratesssablished, should AWN not set appropriate ratescompetitiveness may be impacted.

Finally, prior to AWN'’s formation, our managemeaatn had direct control over wireless service quédit the wireless network in Alaska, as
well as the roaming arrangements that drove ouomess’ experience when traveling outside the sftese matters are now controlled by
AWN. While AWN is required to provide the same dtyabf service and access to both of its ownereputhAWN not do so, we may be
damaged. We have experienced situations where liex®&Cl customers have a different service lexglerience than ACS and we are in
discussions with GCI to resolve these differences.

Access and High Cost Support Revenue

Revenues from access charges will continue torteelnd revenue from high cost loop support is suligerule changes at the FC

We received approximately 16% and 17% of our oppegaevenues for the years ended December 31, 20d 2012, respectively, from access
charges. The amount of revenue that we receive these access charges is calculated in accordaticesguirements set by the FCC and the
RCA. Any change in these requirements may reduceemenues and earnings. Access charges have molsisiecreased in past years anc
expect this trend to continue due to declines ioerasage and migration to VolP services which atogenerate access revenue for us.

Furthermore, the FCC has actively reviewed new meisims for inter-carrier compensation that, in scaees, could eliminate access charge
entirely. Elimination of access charges would haveaterial adverse effect on our revenue and eggn8imilarly, the RCA has adopted
regulations modifying intrastate access chargestiag reduce our revenue.

As discussed in “Regulations” substantial changesapected to be enacted by the Federal CommimisaCommission (“FCC”) regarding
our future high cost loop support funding and oddions thereunder. It is difficult to predict thesitive or negative growth in this source of
revenue streams in the future as well as the fughligations that we will be required to acceptitie this funding.

Regulations

New governmental regulations may impose obligatmmss to upgrade our existing technology or adww technology that may requ
additional capital and we may not be able to coniplg timely manner with these new regulations.

Our markets are heavily regulated. We cannot ptéldicextent to which the government will imposenafunded mandates on us. Such
mandates have included those related to emergenayidn, providing access to hearing-impaired austs, law enforcement assistance and
local number portability. Each of these governmmandates has imposed new requirements for capétite could not have predicted with
any precision. Along with these obligations, thedH@as imposed deadlines for compliance with thesedates. We may not be able to pro
services that comply with these or other
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regulatory or other regulatory mandates. Furthercannot predict whether other mandates from the &CGother regulatory authorities, will
occur in the future or the demands they may placeur capital expenditures. For more informatioroanregulatory environment and the ri
it presents to us, see “ltem 1, Business — Regulati

There is a risk that the Transformation Order wilaterially impact our revenue.

The Transformation Order establishes a new franmk Yoo high cost loop support that will ultimatghhase out existing HCLS mechanisms
that today provide support to carriers, like uat tferve higleost areas. Though the future HCLS rules remaiheancwe do not expect them
be as favorable to the Company as the existing iauhel we expect future HCLS revenue will decreasiéoa the capital we will spend to under
these programs will increase significantly. We gruged $18.8 million and $20.2 million in HCLS renees to support our wireline operations
in high cost areas in the twelve months ended Deeeidl, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The orderieditas the “identical support” rule that
permits competitive carriers, such as ACSW andwiteless competitors, to apply for funding basedr@nsupport received by the incumbent
carrier. The uncertainty in the implementationted Transformation Order and the shape of folmwFCC rule making and model developrn
efforts prevents us from accurately measuring theumt of future HCLS revenue decreases, the anuaflarty new support the Company will
qualify to receive, or the financial obligationgjuéred to achieve that qualification.

In addition, the FCC has imposed strict new cornmgkarequirements governing enrolliment of low-incaubscribers in the FCC's Lifeline
program, which provides carriers like us with USipport to reduce the cost of wireline and wirekesswices to lonincome consumers. For t
twelve months ended December 31, 2013, we recogmizeline and wireless lifeline revenue of $4.8liom and $6.5 million, respectively. In
part as a result of these rules, the number ofih&#ecustomers we served decreased from 2,794imgrahd 9,106 wireless lifeline customer
December 31, 2012 to 2,151 wireline and 7,145 es®Lifeline customers at December 31, 2013. Weaxpe amount of Lifeline USF
support we receive to decrease. Going forward, xpec that it will be more difficult for low-incomeonsumers to qualify for Lifeline, and to
remain enrolled in Lifeline, than it was under fhamer rules.

Economic Conditions

The successful operation and growth of our buseedepends heavily on economic conditions in Alaska

The vast majority of our customers and operatiosadacated in Alaska. Due to our geographical catred¢ion, the successful operation and
growth of our businesses depends on economic ¢ongliin Alaska. The Alaska economy, in turn, depemgon many factors, including:

» the strength of the natural resources industriagiqularly oil production and price
» the strength of the Alaska tourism indus
» the level of government and military spending;

» the continued growth of service industri

The population of Alaska is approximately 730,0dthvAnchorage, Fairbanks and Juneau serving agrttrary population and economic
centers in the state.

It is estimated that one-third of Alaska’s econamgependent on federal spending, one-third orofetm and the remaining one-third on
drivers such as tourism, mining, timber, seafontérnational air cargo and miscellaneous suppovices.

The sector with the greatest decline in 2013, atingrto the Labor Department, was the federal gawent, which lost an estimated 800 jobs.
Federal government employment in Alaska averagpdoapmately 15,600 during 2013.

Alaska’s economy is heavily dependent on investrbgrdil companies, and state tax revenues correlilethe price of oil. During 2013, the
price of crude oil continued to exhibit significardlatility. While the near term outlook for Alaskaeconomy is relatively stable, the state is
experiencing reduced oil and natural gas productoaduction of barrels of oil per day declinednfrapproximately 527,000 in 2012 to
approximately 514,000 in 2013, or 2.5%. The consitien of potential tax policy changes to stem ekrse this decline is a high priority
with both the state Legislature and Administratidfe do not know what the long-term effect on thaskla economy will be.
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On the positive side, the tourism industry mairgesteady progress as the overall national econtaylizes. Visitor volume was up 7% year
over year, increasing from 1,586,600 in the sumofi@012 to 1,693,800 in the summer of 2013.

Erosion of Access Lines

We provide services to many customers over aciress bnd if we continue to lose access linesyevenues, earnings and cash flow from
operating activities may decrease.

Our business generates revenue by delivering \aridedata services over access lines. We have erped net access line loss over the past
few years and the rate of loss with consumersaitiqular, has been accelerating. During the yaded December 31, 2013 and 2012 our
business access line erosion was 1,036 and 2 2§3ctively, while over the same period our conswaneess line erosion was 6,526 and
6,684 respectively. We expect to continue to exgmee net access line loss in our markets, affectimgevenues, earnings and cash flow from
operating activities.

Network / E-911 Failure

A failure of our network could cause significantaye or interruptions of service, which could causeto lose customet

To be successful, we will need to continue to pilevdur customers reliable service over our netwOrk. network and infrastructure are
constantly at risk of physical damage as a regliuman, natural or other factors. These factorg imelude pandemics, acts of terrorism,
sabotage, natural disasters, power surges or aytsgfware defects, contractor or vendor failulasor disputes and other disruptions that
be beyond our control. Should we experience a pged system failure or a significant service intption, our customers may choose a
different provider and our reputation may be dandag@rther, we may not have adequate insurancea@ag&ewhich would result in unexpec
expense. Notably, similar to other undersea filpgicacable operators, we do not carry insuranceviioalld cover the cost of repair of our
undersea cables and, thus, we would bear thedsllaf any necessary repairs.

A failure of enhanced emergency calling servicedeaiated with our network may harm our busin

We provide E-911 service to our customers wheré sacvice is available. We also contract from ttméme with municipalities to upgrade
their public safety answering points such that ¢hfagilities become capable of receiving our traission of a 911 caller’s location information
and telephone number. If the emergency call cestenable to process such information, the cadlgrrovided only basic 911 services. In these
instances, the emergency caller may be requirgdrtually advise the operator of such caller’s lmratt the time of the call. Any inability of
the answering point to automatically recognizedaker’s location or telephone number, whetheratrinoccurs as a result of our network
operations, may cause us to incur liability or @aosr reputation or financial results to suffer.

Wireless Devices

Wireless devices may pose health and safety ristksldaving while using a wireless phone may be foitdd; as a result, demand for our
services may decrease.

Media reports have suggested that, and studiesbeareundertaken to determine whether, certaio fagfjuency emissions from wireless
devices and cell sites may be linked to varioustheancerns, including cancer. Further, radio fiecy emissions may interfere with various
electronic medical devices, including hearing @idd pacemakers. If consumers’ health concernsrad@ frequency emission increase, they
may be discouraged from using wireless deviceadtition, studies have indicated that using wireksvices while driving may impair a
driver’s attention. Regulators may impose or insesgestrictions on the location and operation Bfsites or increase regulation on the use of
devices, and wireless providers may be exposedtigation. Our fleet management service allowstf@ remote starting of vehicles. In certain
situations this could result in injuries or damafygsvhich we may be exposed to litigation. New gaument regulations in any of these ma
may adversely affect our results of operations.
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Employees

We depend on the availability of personnel within geographic location with the requisite levete€hnical expertise in the
telecommunications industry.

Our ability to develop and maintain our networks @xecute our business plan is dependent on thialality of technical engineering, IT,
service delivery and monitoring, product developtnsales, management, finance and other key pesbaiithin our geographic location

Labor costs and the terms of our principal colleetbargaining agreement (CBA) may hurt our abilityemain competitive, which could ca
our financial performance to suffer.

Labor costs are a significant component of our egps and, as of December 31, 2013, approximatéydour workforce is represented by
the IBEW. We believe our labor costs are highen thar competitors who employ a non-unionized workdéobecause we are required by the
CBA to contribute to the IBEW Health and Welfarai3irand the Alaska Electrical Pension Fund for fiepegrams, including defined bene
pension plans and health benefit plans, that areeflective of the competitive marketplace anduiegus to pay substantially more costs than
incurred by our competitors. In addition, we maykmatrategic and operational decisions that regb&eonsent of the IBEW. The IBEW may
not provide consent when we need it, or it may ireqadditional wages, benefits or other considerakie paid in return for its consent.
Furthermore, work rules under the existing agrednait our ability to efficiently manage our resmes and make the incremental cost of
work performed outside normal work hours relativieigh. Our current CBA with the IBEW that is in et until December 31, 2015, includes
provisions that allow us to be more cost competitivcertain areas. The IBEW has entered into séagreements with us over the last year
which have provided for isolated cost savings; heevewe are facing resistance to changes thatssenéal for our future success. Should we
not reach agreement with the IBEW on these mattensability to be competitive will be impactedw#l our future financial results.

Our primary in-state competitor, GCI, does not us®n labor and we believe their overall cost tfdais lower than our cost. While we
continue to work with IBEW to become more cost cetitjve, we cannot assure you that our labor cafit®ever become competitive.

In addition, the IBEW has brought and may contitaubring grievances to binding arbitration. The WBEnay also bring court actions and n
seek to compel us to engage in the bargaining psesawhere we believe we have no such obligafisnctessful, there is a risk these judicial
or arbitral avenues could create additional cdsswe did not anticipate.

Vendors

We rely on a limited number of key suppliers anmtbiees for timely supply of equipment and servioe®tir network infrastructure and
customer support services. If these suppliers ndues experience problems or favor our competitetes could fail to obtain the equipment :
services we require to operate our business sufidhss

We depend on a limited number of suppliers and @entbr equipment and services for our network @erthin customer services. If suppliers
of our equipment or providers of services on whighrely experience financial difficulties, servieebilling interruptions, patent litigation or
other problems, subscriber growth and our operatisglts could suffer.

Suppliers that use proprietary technology, effedivock us into one or a few suppliers for keywatk components. Other suppliers require u
to maintain exclusive relationships under a contras a result, we have become reliant upon adichitumber of network equipment
manufacturers and one wireless bhilling service ji@v In the event it becomes necessary to seeknalive suppliers and vendors, we may be
unable to obtain satisfactory replacement supptierendors on economically attractive terms oimely basis, or at all, which could increase
costs and may cause disruption in service.

Networks, Monitoring Centers and Data Hosting Facities

Maintaining the Compar's networks, around the clock monitoring centerd data hosting facilities requires significant cegbiexpenditures,
and our inability or failure to maintain and upgraaur networks and data centers would have a naltenipact on our market share and
ability to generate revenue.
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The Company currently operates an extensive netthatkincludes monitoring and hosting facilitie®. grovide contractual levels of service to
our customers and remain competitive, we must exg@nificant amounts of capital. In many casespwist rely on outside vendors whose
performance and costs may not be sufficiently withur control. Additionally, other Alaska and naidb wireless carriers are upgrading their
networks with various technologies including 4G. NW full implementation of 4G technology will likgltake several years and the Company
may lag behind competitors. If we cannot adequatedintain and upgrade our network, or AWN maintaid upgrade the wireless network it
would have a material adverse effect on our busineet income and cash flow from operations.

Information Technology Systems

A failure of bac-office IT systems could adversely affect the Cayipaesults of operations and financial condition.

The efficient operation of the Company’s businesgethds on back-office IT systems. The Companyseliebacksffice IT systems, includin
certain systems provided by third party vendorgftectively manage customer billing, business datanmunications, supply chain, order
entry and fulfillment and other business procesSeme of these systems are no longer supported oraletenance agreements from the
underlying vendor. A failure of the Company’s ITstgms, or the IT systems provided by third partydegs, to perform as anticipated could
disrupt the Company’s business and result in arilo collect accounts receivable, transactioorgriprocessing inefficiencies, and the loss o
sales and customers, causing the Company’s repuitatid results of operations to suffer. In addijtidnsystems may be vulnerable to damage
or interruption from circumstances beyond the Camyfsacontrol, including fire, natural disastersst®ms failures, security breaches and
viruses. Any such damage or interruption could heweaterial adverse effect on our business, operatisults, margins and financial
condition.

Cyber-attacks may damage our networks or breactoousr and other proprietary data, leading to seevitisruption, harm to reputation, loss
of customers, and litigation over privacy violatn

All industries that rely on technology in custon@eractions are increasingly at risk for cyberekss. A cyber-attack could be levied against
our network, causing disruption of operations agwise, requiring implementation of greater netwsekurity measures, and resulting in lost
revenue due to lost service. A cyber-attack coldd be targeted to infiltrate customer proprietang other data, breaching customer privacy,
resulting in misuse of customer information anceotttata, and possibly leading to litigation ovevacy breaches and causing harm to the
Company’s reputation. We rely on a variety of pohaes to guard against cyber-attacks, but theofatareats from these attacks is growing
globally and the risk to us is also growing.

Undersea Fiber Optic Cable Systems

If failures occur in our undersea fiber optic calslgstems, our ability to immediately restore ouvee may be limitec

Our undersea fiber optic cable systems carry alpggtion of our traffic to and from the contigudasier 48 states. If a failure occurs and we
are not able to secure alternative facilities, soffthe communications services we offer to out@uers could be interrupted, which could
have a material adverse effect on our businesaial position, results of operations or liquidity

Intellectual Property

Third parties may claim that the Company is infiimgupon their intellectual property, and the Compaould suffer significant litigation or
licensing expenses or be prevented from sellingyts.

Although the Company does not believe that anysgbioducts or services infringe upon the valiéliettual property rights of third parties,
the Company may be unaware of intellectual propegtyts of others that may cover some of its tedtapg products or services. Any litigati
growing out of third party patents or other intetleal property claims could be costly and time comi&g and could divert the Company’s
management and key personnel from its businessitiqes. The complexity of the technology involvediahe uncertainty of intellectual
property litigation increase these risks. Resotuttbclaims of intellectual property infringemenight also require the Company to enter into
costly license
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agreements. Likewise, the Company may not be aliétain license agreements on acceptable ternesCompany also may be subject to
significant damages or injunctions against develapnand sale of certain of its products. Further,Gompany often relies on licenses of third
party intellectual property for its businesses. Twenpany cannot ensure these licenses will beabtaiin the future on favorable terms or at
all. If any of these risks materialize, it couldveaa material adverse effect on our business, tipgnesults, margins and financial condition.

Security Breaches

A failure in or breach of our operational or sedyrsystems or infrastructure, or those of third s, could disrupt our businesses, resu
the disclosure of confidential information or dareamur reputation. Any such failure also could haw&gnificant adverse effect on our
reputation, cash flows, financial condition, andués of operations.

Our operations rely on the secure processing,gosad transmission of confidential and other imfation in our computer systems and
networks. Although we take protective measuresautbavor to modify them as circumstances warrhatsécurity of our computer systems,
software and networks may be vulnerable to breachesithorized access, misuse, computer virusether malicious code and other events
that could have a security impact. Additionallyeéches of security may occur through intentionalrdntentional acts by those having
authorized or unauthorized access to confidentiattwer information. If one or more of such evemtsur, this potentially could jeopardize our
information or our customers’ information processaed stored in, and transmitted through, our coemmitstems and networks. We may be
required to expend significant additional resoutoemodify our protective measures or to investigatd remediate vulnerabilities or other
exposures arising from operational and securigsriand we may be subject to litigation and finahldsses that are either not insured against
or not fully covered through any insurance mairgdiby us.

With regard to the physical infrastructure thatsonbs our operations, we have taken measures teingmt backup systems and other
safeguards, but our ability to conduct business beagdversely affected by any disruption to th&astructure. Such disruptions could involve
electrical, communications, internet, transportatio other services used by us or third partieh witom we conduct business. The costs
associated with such disruptions, including anyg lasbusiness, could have a significant adversce&in our results of operations or financial
condition.

Any of these operational and security risks coaltllto significant and negative consequences,dimueputational harm as well as loss of
customers and business opportunities, which ind¢ouid have a significant adverse effect on ouiasses, financial condition and results of
operations. In 2014 a laptop of one of our empleyeas infected with a virus, which then transmitiath to an unknown third party site. We
do not know what data was transmitted, but afteestigation, we identified information on this maehthat included names, social security
numbers and addresses of former and current emgdoyée do not know if this information was transedt but we are taking additional
security measures to prevent this type of incidetiie future. We have offered free credit monitgrservices to these employees for one yeal
to provide protection should there have been aragnp

Pension and Deferred Compensation Plans
We may incur substantial and unexpected liabiliigsing out of our pension and deferred compewsatilans.

Our pension and deferred compensation plans cesldtrin substantial liabilities on our balanceeth&hese plans and activities have and will
generate substantial cash requirements for usherse requirements may increase beyond our expetati future years based on changing
market conditions. The difference between plangattiobns and assets, or the funded status of thms pka significant factor in determining the
net periodic benefit costs of our pension plansthedngoing funding requirements of those plaf&rng@es in interest rates, mortality rates,
health care costs, early retirement rates, investneturns and the market value of plan assetaffant the funded status of our defined benefi
pension, other post-retirement and post-employrengfit plans and cause volatility in the net pdiddenefit cost and future funding
requirements of the plans. In the future, we mayelgiired to make additional contributions to oefied benefit plan. Plan liabilities may
impair our liquidity, have an unfavorable impactaur ability to obtain financing and place us abanpetitive disadvantage compared to som
of our competitors who do not have such liabilitesl cash requirements.
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Our most significant pension plan is the AlaskacEleal Pension Fund (the “AEPF") in which we peaiiiate on behalf of substantially all of
our employees. The AEPF is a multi-employer penpian to which we make fixed, per employee contidns through our collective
bargaining agreement with the IBEW, which coversIBEW represented workforce, and a special agre¢meénich covers most of our non-
represented workforce. Because our contributionirements are fixed, we cannot easily adjust onuahplan contributions to address our
own financial circumstances. Currently, this plamot fully funded, which means we may be subjedb¢reased contribution obligations,
penalties, and ultimately we could incur a contimtgeithdrawal liability should we choose to withdrérom the AEPF for economic reasons.
Our contingent withdrawal liability is an amountsiea on our praata share among AEPF patrticipants of the valuaefunding shortfall. Thi
contingent liability becomes due and payable bif we terminate our participation in the AEPF. Mover, if another participant in the AEPF
goes bankrupt, we would become liable for a pra-shtare of the bankrupt participant’s vested, bpeid, liability for accrued benefits for that
participant’'s employees. This could result in astabtial unexpected contribution requirement andlingasuch a contribution could have a
material adverse effect on our cash position ahdrdinancial results. These sources of poterithility are difficult to predict.

Given the complexity of pension-related mattersmay not, in every instance, be in full compliandgthvapplicable requirements.

Key Members of Senior Management

We depend on key members of our senior manageesent t

Our success depends largely on the skills, expegiand performance of key members of our senioagement team as well as our ability to
attract and retain other highly qualified managenaenl technical personnel. There is intense cottipefior qualified personnel in our indus
and we may not be able to attract and retain thgopeel necessary for the development of our basir@ur remote location also presents a
challenge to us in attracting new talent. If weelasie or more of our key employees, our abilitguocessfully implement our business plan
could be materially adversely affected. We do naintain any “key person” insurance on any of ouspenel.

Future Acquisitions
Future acquisitions could result in operating ambhcial difficulties.

Our future growth may depend, in part, on acquisgi To the extent that we grow through acquisitiave will face the operational and
financial risks that commonly accompany that stnatéVe would also face operational risks, suchadm§ to assimilate the operations and
personnel of the acquired businesses, disruptieig tmgoing businesses, increasing the complexXiguo business, and impairing managemen
resources and managemsnelationships with employees and customers asudtrof changes in their ownership and managerfenther, the
evaluation and negotiation of potential acquisitiocas well as the integration of an acquired bgsinmay divert management time and other
resources. Some acquisitions may not be successfuiheir performance may result in the impairngértheir carrying value.

Volatility Risks Related to our Common Stock

Continued volatility in the price of our commondtavould negatively affect us and our stockholders.

The trading price of our common stock was volalileing 2013 in response to a number of factorduding the elimination of our quarterly
dividend in 2012, the AWN transaction which is urégn our industry, and the continued uncertaiatyarding the impact of Verizon's entry
into the market and future high cost support reeeruditional factors, many of which are beyond oomtrol, include actual or anticipated
variations in quarterly financial results, changefnancial expectations by securities analysts announcements by our current and future
competitors of significant acquisitions, strategastnerships, joint ventures or capital commitmelmsddition, our financial results may be
below the expectations of securities analysts awnestors. Broad market and industry factors hase a¢gatively affected the price of our
common stock regardless of our operating performamel we do not know how long these adverse madtetitions will continue. Future
volatility in our stock price could materially adgely affect the trading market and prices for cmmmon stock as well as our ability to issue
additional securities or to secure additional friag.
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Location Specific Risk
We operate in remote areas subject to geologi@abikty and other natural events which could negaly impact our operations.
Many of our operations are located in areas trepeone to earthquakes, fires, and other natustlidiance. Many of these areas have limited
emergency response assets and may be difficuithrin an emergency situation. Should an eventrpitcould be weeks or longer before

remediation efforts could be implemented, if theuyld be implemented at all. The scope and riskuohsan event occurring is difficult to
gauge.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None

Item 2. Properties

Our principal properties do not lend themselvesitgple description by character and location. Témpgonents of our gross investment in
property, plant and equipment consisted of thefalhg as of December 31, 2013 and 2012:

(in thousands 2013 2012

Land, buildings and support assets $ 222,21 $ 256,55
Central office switching and transmissi 374,50! 375,00:
Outside plant cable and wire faciliti 699,71¢ 690,92:
Wireless switching and transmissi — 86,90(
Other 3,147 2,977
Construction work in progre: 45,36¢ 50,96¢

$1,344,94! $1,463,32

Our property, plant and equipment are used in oarounications networks.

Land, buildings and support assets consist of l@md} improvements, central office and certain adstiative office buildings as well as
general purpose computers, office equipment, vedighd other general support equipment. Centrigkaffvitching and transmission and
wireless switching and transmission consist prilparf switches, routers and transmission electr®ifiic our regulated and wireless entities,
respectively. The wireless assets we contributesblal during the AWN transaction in July of 2013ut€lde plant and cable and wire facilities
include primarily conduit and cable. We own subg#dly all of our telecommunications equipment rizgd for our business. However, we
lease certain facilities and equipment under varicapital and operating lease arrangements whdedbimg arrangements are more favorable
to us than purchasing the assets.

We own and lease office facilities and related pognt for executive headquarters, administrativegrenel, central office buildings and
operations in locations throughout Alaska and One@uur principal executive and administrative affcare located in Anchorage, Alaska. We
believe we have appropriate easements, rights-gfamd other arrangements for the accommodatiomiiopole lines, underground conduits,
aerial, underground and undersea cables, and wimegever, these properties do not lend themsetvesiiple description by character and
location.

In addition to land and structures, our propertysists of equipment necessary for the provisiocoofimunication services. This includes
central office equipment, customer premises equipraed connections, radio and wireless antennag&ry pole lines, video head-end, remott
terminals, aerial, underground and undersea calolevire facilities, vehicles, furniture and fixtgrecomputers and other equipment. We also
own certain other communications equipment helishasntory for sale or lease. Substantially all of oommunications equipment and other
network equipment are located in buildings thatome or on land within our local service coverageaar
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We have insurance to cover losses incurred in ttimary course of business, including excess gétiabdity, property coverage including
business interruption, director and officers andess employment practices liability, excess auime; fiduciary, workers’ compensation and
non-owned aircraft insurance in amounts typicadiofilar operators in our industry and with repugainisurance providers. Central office
equipment, buildings, furniture and fixtures andai@ operating and other equipment are insure@uadlanket property insurance program.
This program provides substantial limits of coveragainst “all risks” of loss including fire, wirtdsm, flood, earthquake and other perils not
specifically excluded by the terms of the policias.is typical in the communications industry, we aelf-insured for damage or loss to certair
of our transmission facilities, including our butjeindersea and above ground transmission linesalfnsure with respect to employee
health insurance, primary general liability, primauto liability and primary employment practicesbility subject to stop-loss insurance with
insurance carriers that caps our liability at sfiegilimits. We believe our insurance coveragetisquate; however, if we become subject to
substantial uninsured liabilities due to damaglss to such facilities, our financial positionsuéis of operations or liquidity may be adversely
affected.

Substantially all of our assets (including thosewrf subsidiaries) have been pledged as colldi@ralur Senior Credit Facility.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are involved in various claims, legal actiorexspnnel matters and regulatory proceedings arigitite ordinary course of business,
including various legal proceedings involving regaly matters described under “Item 1, BusinessuRéign”. We have recorded litigation
reserves of $3.5 million as of December 31, 2018regg certain current claims and legal actions.BAleve that the disposition of these
matters will not have a material adverse effecttenCompany’s consolidated financial position, coehgnsive income or cash flows. It is the
Company’s policy to expense costs associated wih tontingencies, including any related legal,fagshey are incurred.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable

PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Edty Securities

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Globaé8&eMarket under the symbol ‘ALSK’. The followinglile presents, for the periods
indicated, the high and low sales prices of ourmmam stock as reported by NASDAQ.

2013 Quarters High Low 2012 Quarters High Low

4th $2.82 $1.8¢ 4th $2.37  $1.9C
3rd $3.9C $1.67 3rd $2.5C $2.0¢
2nd $1.97 $1.6C 2nd $3.1C $1.7¢
1st $2.07 $1.5t 1st $3.7¢  $2.5¢

As of February 14, 2014, there were 48.9 millioarsls of our common stock issued and outstandingpprbximately 486 record holders of
our common stock. Because brokers and other itistitihold many of our shares of existing commatlsbn behalf of stockholders, we are
unable to estimate the total number of stockholdepsesented by these record holders.

Dividends

In the fourth quarter of 2012, our Board of Diregsteuspended the quarterly dividend paid to shadehs For the first, second and third
quarter of 2012, the company paid a dividend 05%6€r share of common stock. The dividend suspengas required in connection with the
amendment to our Senior Credit Facility as pathefAWN transaction. Further payment of cash diwatleon our common stock is not
permitted until such time that the Company’s Taierage Ratio is not more than 3.50 to 1.00. &een"7, Management'’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Gytems.”
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Our ability to re-institute dividend payments irettuture will depend on future competitive marked &conomic conditions and on financial,
business, regulatory and other factors, many o€lwhre beyond our control.

Additional factors that may affect our future digidl policy include:

* we are a holding company and rely on dividendgrést and other payments, advances and transfienad from our subsidiaries
meet our debt service and pay dividends, if i

» reductions in the availability of cash due kages in our operating earnings, working cap@quirements and anticipated cash
needs

» nothing requires us to declare or pay dividel

» the decision to make any future distributiordifidends (subject to compliance with the termswf debt agreements) will remain,
at all times, entirely at the discretion of our Bbaf Directors;

« the amount of dividends that we may distributehim future is subject to restrictions under Delawave and

» our stockholders have no contractual or other laght to dividends

See “Item 1A, Risk Factors—Volatility Risks relatedour Common Stock”.

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Comensation Plans

The information set forth in this Report under fitd.2, Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Ovenend Management and Related
Stockholder Matters—Securities Authorized for Isseunder Equity Compensation Plans” is incorpdraerein by reference.

Common Stock Performance Graph

The stock performance information required undiritem is incorporated into this Form 10-K by mefece to our Proxy Statement for our
2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected consolidated financial dgttauld be read in conjunction with our Consolidakathncial Statements and the Notes
thereto in “Item 15, Exhibits, Financial Statem8chedules,” and “ltem 7, Management’s Discussiah/malysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations” of this report. We derivied $elected consolidated financial data from oditad consolidated financial statements.

(in thousands, except per share amot 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Operating Data:
Operating revenue $348,92: $367,71: $349,31: $341,52: $346,04(
Net income (loss 156,38: 17,40¢ 47z (30,689 33,77
Income (loss) per she—basic $ 332 $ 03t $ 001 $ (069 $ 0.77
Income (loss) per she—diluted $ 274 $ 03¢ $ 001 $ (069 $ 0.77
Cash dividends declared per sh $ — $ 01t $ 07C $ 08 $ 0.8¢
Balance Sheet Data (end of period
Total asset $748,92. $614,72° $605,10{ $620,61' $675,29¢
Long-term debt, including current portic 456,25° 555,40( 569,55 553,30¢ 539,35(
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Item 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis should bel ieaconjunction with the Consolidated Financiadt8iments and related notes and the othe
financial information included elsewhere in thigRal0-K.

OVERVIEW

We provide leading integrated communications ses/io consumer, business and wholesale customanglinut of Alaska. Our facilities
based communications network extends throughowutk&land connects to the contiguous states viaxaudiverse undersea fiber optic cable
systems. Our network is among the most expansivdaiska and forms the foundation of service to awstomers.

The sections that follow provide information abonportant aspects of our operations and investmamdsnclude discussions of our results of
operations, financial condition and sources and o$eash. In addition, we have highlighted keypdieand uncertainties to the extent
practicable. The content and organization of tharftial and non-financial data presented in thesgahs are consistent with information we
use in evaluating our own performance and allogatir resources. We also monitor the state of tba@my in general. In doing so, we
compare Alaska economic activity with broader eenizoconditions. In general, we believe that theskitelecommunications market, as v
as general economic activity in Alaska, is affedigdertain economic factors, which include:

» investment activity in the oil and gas markets igmrlevels

» governmental spending and activity of military mensel the price and price trends of bandw
» the growth in demand for bandwic

« decline in demand for voice and other legacy ses/local customer preferenc

e unemployment level

* housing activity and development patte

We have observed variances in the factors affe¢tiaghlaska economy as compared to the U.S. asodewBome factors, particularly the pr
of oil and gas, usually have a greater direct impadhe Alaska economy compared to other macro@o@ trends impacting the U.S.
economy as a whole.

Prior to 2012, although the Company had been espeing a steady decline in its retail customer el revenues remained relatively
unchanged. This was accomplished by generatingehiigiheign roaming and wireless CETC Revenue tsetfiower retail revenue. Two
significant events were expected to impact thigalyeevenue stability. The first is Verizon’s eninto the Alaska market, and the second, is
declines in wireless CETC Revenue and other wiedhigh cost loop support revenue as a result aiggsenacted by the FCC. Foreign
roaming revenue, CETC Revenue and high cost loppastirevenues represented approximately 23% atdd@ur total revenue in 2013 a
2012, respectively, and profit margins on thesemnees streams are relatively high.

As a result of these adverse events, managemetlidimplemented a business plan that focusedivimglisustained growth in retail
broadband revenue across multiple market segmmmgess, wholesale, and consumer; wireline anelegs. Previously, the Company had
focused on select market segments, primarily wesebnd enterprise, with the intent to maximizerretuThese adverse external events
necessitated a broader view of all market segmantsa move away from reliance on certain high sapport and roaming revenues.

Management's assessment of the telecom marketaskalindicated an estimated $1.0 billion marketwytg approximately five percent
annually. To generate sustained growth in this etadur business plan requires investments in sséegice, marketing and product
development and other initiatives, such as incatiog Lean methods to eliminate waste and simplifiybusiness.

In conjunction with the commencement of this lorgat plan and these future adverse impacts, manageme the Board of Directors
recognized that the Company needed to reduce tissamaling debt to sustainable levels. Consequdntie fourth quarter of 2012 our Board
of Directors completely suspended the common stask dividend.

This long-term plan is resulting in improved fin&lgesults. Broadband revenue growth has accekrétte Company is adding customers
across many different market segments, and the @oynipas reduced debt through cash and convertilyleatks totaling $125.0 million since
January 1, 2012.
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In addition to this plan, on July 22, 2013, the @amy announced the closing of the AWN Transactédiowing us to combine our wireless
network with that of GCI. ACS is a one-third owrmérAWN, while GCI owns the remaining two-thirds. G&d ACS are leading wireless
providers in Alaska, and in forming AWN, they bdtaive each contributed their respective wirelesstasmcluding spectrum licenses, cell
sites, backhaul facility usage rights, and otheetssnecessary for AWN to operate an infrastructanepany that designs, builds, and opers
statewide wireless network. AWN'’s network will covaore of Alaska’s population than the network oy ather wireless provider, and will
provide the latest wireless services, including LL¥Ets owners. GCI and ACS will independentlyl aése services to their respective retail
customers and continue to operate as competitdktaska.

Under the AWN structure, AWN will generate earnithgsed upon:

» wholesale revenues it will receive from its tretail owners, which are impacted by the numberaminections and the wholesale
rates established by AWN for these connections¢hvhie anticipated to be about 70% of our retaiéless revenue

» service charges to ACS and GCI for an amount empuBd0% of the CETC Revenues received by each cegpeompany
e roaming revenues from other wireless carriers,

» revenues by selling backhaul to other wiretessiers (note that this does not preclude the Gomgrom selling backhaul directly
to other wireless carriers in competition with b@&I and AWN).

AWN will incur all costs associated with operatioithe wireless network, and will provide a meclsamio support its owners for their
wireless equipment subsidies. AWN has no debtrdtian a working capital revolver, and the goveogaof AWN is designed to maximize 1
agreed-upon financial objectives of its ownersmiximize its free cash flow (“FCF”) and to distribithis FCF to its owners.

As an owner, ACS will profit from AWN in three ways

* GCl paid ACS $100.0 million at closing, and used $65.0 million of these proceeds to pay dowrseunior term loan facility. Of
the remaining $35.0 million of liquidity, $4.1 nmdh was used to unwind interest rate swaps, arisli®8lion to fund fees and
expenses due at closir

« AWN will pay ACS a preferred distribution ovitre first four years, after formation, totaling top$190.0 million, subject to criteria
set forth in the Operating Agreement as outlineNdte 3 in our audited financial statements forgheod ended December 31,
2013.

« After four years, we will receive future distriboii of FCF in proportion to our intere

ACS will continue to provide wireless servicestwretail wireless customers and our margins oeless services will now be based on the
wholesale charges paid to AWN as well as any direct costs we incur to support our retail wireslesstomers. Historical costs, such as
roaming COGS and wireless equipment subsidiei@seprimarily the responsibility of AWN. Our go feard wireless performance is now
affected by our ability to operate within the magjive generate under the AWN structure. These m&rgn average, are estimated to be 30
of our wireless retail revenue (margins being @tail revenue less the wholesale charges we pay AWNese margins are intended to recove
our fixed costs of operating our retail and indiresles channels, our costs to support our cus®imeluding customer care, billing and
collection, and other general and administrative@sadDuring the fourth quarter we began to implenaetions to address how we operate
within this operating margin, including reducingr @mployee levels in retail stores and our contaaters, and we expect further actions
throughout 2014 to reduce our overall costs to ipwireless services. This retail services busingsot anticipated to generate significant
FCF for ACS, and our profits from wireless are imtted to be generated through the AWN distribution.

We believe that AWN’s future financial performaneed the preferred distribution structure will ieé$u a higher degree of certainty for our
future FCF performance than we otherwise would lesyeected to generate as a standalone wirelesatopén particular with the entry of
Verizon into our market.

Finally, our business plan called for systematigez¥se management to ensure we operate efficiemdlylaliver the highest level of customer
service. In 2013, the company formally adopted Lasa framework to eliminate waste and simplify vesvdo business. We have establishec
a team of process
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improvement experts who have adopted LEAN and weémplementing LEAN, with a particular area of feda 2014 being supply chain
management and certain corporate functions. Weotxpat LEAN will empower our employees to elimi@ataste which will improve our
customer experience. We will spend less over tintkethis is expected to improve our profitabilitydamprove service levels to our customers.

Revenue Sources by Customer Group
We manage our revenues based on the sale of seandeproducts to the following major customer gsou
» Business and Wholesale
e Consumer
» Other Services (including access services and higbst support)
*  Wireless
* AWN Related

Business and Wholesale

Providing services to Business and Wholesale custeis our primary focus. Business services hapermanced significant growth since
January of 2012 and we believe the economics dhbsses services are attractive. Given the denranddur customers for more bandwidth
and services, we expect growth from these custotoersntinue for the foreseeable future. We prowidemunications services such as voice
and broadband, and managed services includinghéataork hosting, IT management, cloud-based sesyluiding and collection, and long
distance services to these customers primarily oueown network. Our business customers includallssnd medium businesses, larger
enterprises and government customers which inalugigcipal, local, state and federal governmenttiestischool districts, libraries and rural
health care hospitals.

Our acquisition of Tekmate, discussed in IteMahagement’s Discussion and Analysis of Financahdtion and Results of Operationader
the headingdther initiatives, is an example of our strategy to provide increg$gvels of managed services to business custosah as
monitoring and maintaining our customers informatiechnology infrastructures.

Our wholesale customers are other telecommunicatiarriers, including our primary competitor, G®ho rely on us to provide connectivity
for voice, long distance and broadband needs,desactheir customers over all or portions of otwnek. The wholesale market is
characterized as larger transactions that canecweaiability in our operating performance. Oveved expect wholesale revenue to grow
modestly.

Consumer

We primarily provide voice and broadband servicesesidential customers. Given that our primary getitor has extensive triple play
offerings (video, voice and broadband) we are sgle how we offer products and services to thistomer segment, to maximize our
returns. We expect revenue growth from these custemill be more modest than our revenue growtimfbusiness customers. In 2013 our
primary focus was to offer higher bandwidth spaedfiese customers, leveraging the capabilitiesuoxisting network, a process which will
continue into 2014. Our primary competitive advgetés we offer bandwidth without data caps, while primary competitor charges
customers for exceeding certain levels of dataeisag

Other Services Including Access Services and HighoSt Support

We provide voice and broadband termination serigéster and intrastate carriers who provide s&wito our retail customers. We are
compensated for these services, primarily by chartgrminating and originating per minute ratethse carriers. These revenue streams ha
been in decline and we expect them to continuetlinte.
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We also receive inter and intrastate high costensisd support funds and similar revenue strearmstsiied by state and federal regulatory
agencies that allow us to recover our costs ofigdnog universal service in Alaska. These revenueashs have experienced some erosion in
2013 due to changes in funding qualification byrelevant regulatory authority. As further discubsader “Regulation,” as a result of
substantial changes enacted by the Federal Comatiaris Commission (“FCC”), certain of these revestieams, are undergoing significant
reform and until this reform process is complets difficult to predict the positive or negativeogvth in these revenue streams in the future
the obligations we must inherit should we qualdy future funding.

Wireless

We provide wireless voice and broadband serviaas$other value-added wireless products and sensceh as wireless devices, across
Alaska with roaming coverage available in the auntius states, Hawaii and Canada by utilizing theNAlétwork.

Prior to the AWN structure, we provided these sasiutilizing our own wireless network. Under thé/K structure, we continue to provide
these services to our retail wireless customengtitiging the AWN network. We believe that the netk owned by AWN has the most
extensive statewide coverage of any wireless ¢aand also has a significant Wi-Fi network in thiban corridors. The AWN spectrum
licenses are the 800-900 MHz (for digital cellutaice and broadband services), 1800-1900 MHz (gitad PCS voice and broadband
services) , 3650-3700 MHz and AWS 1710-1735 MHL &6 LTE cellular service) The ACS and GCI conttdmispectrum have similar
characteristics which combined cover virtuallyalAlaska.

While a unique structure, because we are a minovityer of AWN, our future performance in wirelessaffected by the following factors
related to AWN:

» First, AWN's ability to integrate the ACS and GCI networksiiway that does not hinder the service experiemiceur customers

» Second, AWN's ability to offer wireless prodsi@nd services, including handsets in a compdijtiveutral manner to GCI and
ACS.

e Third, AWN's ability to establish wholesale eatfor wireless services that allow us to earraaageable profit for our provision of
retail wireless service

Our performance in wireless is also impacted byféewing market based events:

»  First, continued changes to the lifeline progi@s discussed in our regulatory section undehéaglers-ederal Universal Service
Support, Lifeline Reform, Alaska Universal SernkaeidandOther RCA proceedings which has undergone substantial new rules
which make it more difficult for us to maintain oarireless lifeline customer base (in 2012 and 2@&3ost approximately 9,500
lifeline customers due to these new rul:

e Second, the timing and pace of Verizon's ety the wireless retail market in Alaska. In 20¥8rizon turned up its wireless data
network in the major urban markets of Alaska. Thpact of this turn was deminimus because the AVdNsaction mitigated the
impact from lower roaming revenue as roaming is eawned by AWN. The Verizon market entry is expagttehave the most
material impact to us when Verizon enters the Iratarket and competes with us and the other wisatesriers in Alaska for
subscribers. Although it is difficult to predictevexpect that in 2014 Verizon will open retail s®in the state and begin to provide
retail wireless service

» Finally, our performance in wireless is affectyy our ability to operate within the expected gias we generate under the AWN
structure. These margins, on average, are estinatsel 30% of our wireless retail revenue. Thesgina are intended to recover
our fixed costs of operating our retail and indiresles channels, our costs to support our cus®imeluding customer care, billing
and collection, and other general and administatwsts. During the fourth quarter we began to émgant actions to address how
we operate within this operating margin, includiegucing our employee levels in retail stores amdcontact centers, and we
expect further actions throughout 2014 to redugeowerall costs to provide wireless servic
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AWN Related

We report revenues that are related to our ownebéition in AWN.

Because our network provides access to the retaiketplace, and as a result of the cost of progidiervice to high cost areas, we generate
CETC Revenues established by either state or fedsalatory agencies. As part of the AWN transattive have agreed to pay a service
charge to AWN for an amount equal to our CETC Reeeand therefore CETC Revenue has no impact onaiuncome or EBITDA
calculations.

Prior to the formation of AWN, we also served asaming partner for many national wireless carriedsich resulted in us generating roam
revenue. Because AWN now operates the networkoathing revenue is, and is expected to continleet@enerated by AWN.

Prior to the formation of AWN, we also providedrficant backhaul services to other wireless casriBackhaul services are broadband
connections between a wireless carrier’s cell iteiy central office switch and connectivity t@timternet. Upon the closing of AWN, all
backhaul contracts were transferred to AWN, whisuits in our loss of revenue. However, we areeroluded from providing backhaul
services in the future, and will compete with AWhHaGCl for these services and expect to grow thesenues going forward.

Executive Summary

The following summary should be read in conjunctioth “Non-GAAP Financial Measures” included inghWlanagements’ Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Gyiems.

Operating Revenues

Consolidated operating revenue of $348.9 millioordased $18.8 million, or 5.1%, in 2013. We beliewasolidated revenue should be
evaluated in three categories:

i) Retail service revenue which is intended to espnt recurring voice, broadband and other revgaoerated from business, wholesale
and consumer customers. Revenue of $141.3 millioreased $4.0 million, or 2.9% in 2013. Growth lindzlband revenue, caused by existing
customers consuming more bandwidth and increasingnarket share for broadband service was the pyifagtor for revenue growth in this
category.

ii) Other revenue, which primarily consists of ags@and high cost support revenue, decreased $bignmor 8.8% to $57.9 million.
Access revenue declined as a result of decliningevinaffic with long distance carriers, and higistsupport was impacted by lower revenue
associated with changes to this funding progranclibein other revenue was caused by lower equipisedias revenue, mainly due to a large
contract with a federal customer in 2012 that ditineoccur.

iii) Wireless and AWN related, which includes see/and equipment sales revenue from our wireles®ers, and roaming, and
backhaul revenue which we transferred to AWN asiolg, and CETC Revenue, which we continue to géadotlowing the AWN close, but
which we will pay a service charge to AWN for the@unt of revenue we receive. Revenue of $149.7anitleclined $17.2 million, or 10.3%.
A decline in foreign roaming revenue of $15.1 roitliwas the primary driver as this revenue move®éN. Lower retail wireless customer
base also contributed to the decline.

Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA, as defined in “Non-GAAP FinanciMEkasures” (“Adjusted EBITDA”) of $106.5 million dezsased $15.3 million from 2012
due largely to $18.8 million lower revenue, $18.ion of higher operating expenses, offset by $2&illion in preferred distributions from
AWN. Higher operating expenses were due to $3.lianilncrease in selling, general & administratespense and an increase of $14.9 mi
in Cost of services and sales including the newledade charges from AWN.

Operating Metrics

Operating metrics are essential to understandhtheacteristics of our revenues and drivers of @yrdreas of growth or decline. Business
broadband connections of 19,285 and average morghénue per user (“ARPU”) of $175.34 at Decemler2B13, were up from connections
of 18,718 and ARPU of
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$152.09 in 2012. We count connections on a untiasis regardless of the size of the bandwidthekample, a customer that has a 10MB
connection is counted as one connection as doestamser with a 1MB connection. We believe that ARBgrefore, is an important metric to
indicate the increasing amounts of bandwidth thapwovide to our customers, and it is expecteddw @t a faster rate than connections.

Wireless connections of 108,848 at December 313 2@treased 5.4% from 115,017 at December 31, Fad2paid wireless connections
(including life-line) experienced the most signdit decline and fell to 93,127 at December 31, Z0dr8 100,910 at December 31, 2012.
Weakness in postpaid is due to many factors, imetudissatisfaction from our customers who are mgwo the AWN network which, in
particular markets, has weaker coverage charatitsrfsom our legacy CDMA network, and customersving to national carriers with better
device availability and nationwide coverage. Péytiaffsetting this decline was growth in prepaiiteless connections which increased to
15,721 from 14,107 year over year. This growthrigpaid connections fell short of our expectatiohsva were delayed in moving to AWN’s
new prepaid platform to support LTE prepaid produantil the latter half of 2013.

Consumer broadband connections of 38,677 at DeaeBih@013 increased for the seventh consecutiaetguand were up 5.7% year over
year. Consumer broadband ARPU also improved to9®4i8.2013 compared with $42.46 in 2012 as thelreseustomers taking our high
bandwidth products.

Prior to the AWN transaction, our wireless equiptreibsidy was a significant part of our operatiegi@rmance and represented $9.2 million
for the twelve months ended December 31, 2013. UAWEN, we receive certain support payments on ahpedset basis from AWN, which
substantially reduces our overall cost of equipm@fe expect the wireless equipment subsidy to aa bignificant part of our operating
performance in future years.
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The table below provides connection levels, ARPulro and Wireless equipment subsidies as of, otlierperiods indicated:

2013 2012
Voice
At December 31
Consumer access lin 49,297 55,82
Business access lin 79,81¢ 80,85:
For the year ended December
Voice ARPU consume $ 26.71 $ 26.6¢
Voice ARPU busines $ 23.7¢ $ 24.2¢
Broadband
At December 31
Consumer connectior 38,67 36,57¢
Business connectior 19,28¢ 18,71¢
For the year ended December
ARPU consume $ 48.9: $ 42.4¢
ARPU busines: $ 175.3¢ $ 152.0¢
Wireless
At December 31
Postpaid connectior 85,98: 91,80¢
Lifeline connection: 7,14¢ 9,10¢
Prepaid connectior 15,72: 14,10
Total 108,84 115,01°
For the year ended December
Retail wireless ARPL $ 52.6: $ 52.1¢
Churn
For the quarters ended December
Voice access line 1.3% 1.4%
Broadband connectior 2.1% 2.1%
Wireless connectior 3.4% 3.7%
Wireless equipment subsidy (in thousands'
For the year ended December $ 9,157 $ 14,39

Liquidity
We generated $67.7 million of cash from operatictivéies in 2013 compared with $84.4 million in20 This cash flow along with the $10
million received as part of the AWN transactionswiilized for the repayment of debt of $99.6 roilliand total capital expenditures of $48.2

million. As of December 31, we had a $30.0 milliomdrawn revolving credit facility. Outstanding bt of credit commit $1.9 million of the
available revolving credit facility at December 2013.

Other Initiatives

A key focus in 2013 was to close the AWN Transactad provide wireless services over the AWN nekw@ur other key area of focus was
to work with the FCC to establish a stable and iptellle funding mechanism for high cost funding ditidnally, we continued to advance our
offerings of new products and services to our qusts including increased bandwidth speeds, hos@P\products, and cloud based product:
such as Microsoft 365 and managed services.
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To further accelerate our offerings for managedises, in January 2014 we announced the acquisifi@ur remaining ownership position, or
51% in Tekmate. Tekmate is one of Alaska’s leadiingervices firm which provides services such asr2detwork monitoring and support
primarily for business customers. Tekmate generaved $9.1 million in revenue in 2013 and has S8eskemployees. We look to combine
the services of Tekmate with our own broadbandiseswto move toward more managed service offenvigsour customers.

37



Table of Contents

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following tables summarize our results of ofiers for the years ended December 31, 2013, 20d2811. Net income for the year endec
December 31, 2013 was affected by the gain on th@Aransaction of $207.3 million, $18.1 million @guity from affiliates and costs
incurred for the AWN Transaction of $6.4 millior before tax. Net income for the year ended DecerBbhe2012 was affected by costs
incurred for the AWN Transaction of $6.1 millionfoee tax. Net income for the year ended DecembeB11 was affected by $13.4 million
in extinguishment of debt expenses before taxrayifiom the repurchase of $98.3 million principadaunt of our 5.75% Notes utilizing
proceeds from the sale of our 6.25% Notes.

(in thousands 2013 2012 2011
Service Revenue:
Business and Wholesale Custorr

Voice $ 22,947 $ 23,84 $ 25,61
Broadbanc 40,027 33,97: 30,65¢
Other 7,65¢ 7,38t 6,66¢
Wholesale _30,04; _ 33,39 _ 33,00
Business and Wholesale service reve 100,68( 98,59: 95,94(
Consumer Custome
Voice 16,81¢ 18,96¢ 21,00:
Broadbanc 22,10¢ 18,39¢ 17,01
Other _ 1,73 _1,38¢ _ 1,06z
Consumer service reven 40,66¢ 38,75: 39,07
Total Service Revenug 141,34! 137,34 135,01
Growth in Service Reveni 2.9% 1.7%
Growth in Broadband Service Rever 18.6% 9.9%
Other Revenue:
Equipment Sale 2,08: 3,021 1,45¢
Access 37,03: 40,25( 38,32:
High Cost Suppot 18,77¢ 20,22: 21,10:
Total Service and Other Revenu 199,23 200,83¢ 195,89¢
Growth in Service and Other Rever -0.8% 2.5%
Growth excluding equipment sal -0.3% 1.7%
Wireless Revenue
Business and Consumer retail service reve 71,195 73,84¢ 74,48
Equipment sale 4,84 6,01t 5,66¢
Other 5,04¢ 4,281 4,257
AWN Related:
Foreign Roaming 40,02¢ 55,10¢ 38,93«
Wireless Backhat 6,03¢ 6,897 3,21(
CETC 21,01¢ 20,73 26,87:
Amortization of deferred AWN capacity reven 1,512 — —
Total AWN Related 68,59/ 82,73¢ 69,01*
Total Wireless Revenue 149,68° 166,87¢ 153,41¢
Total Revenue $348,92: $367,71: $349,31«
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Operating expense

Cost of services and sales, -affiliates 138,12: 148,12! 135,73.
Cost of services and sales, affilia 25,15¢ 27¢ —
Selling, general and administrati 111,03« 107,31¢ 91,96:
Depreciation and amortizatic 42,19 51,48 58,55¢
Gain on disposal of assets, | (204,200 (2,66¢) (565)
Loss on impairment of equity investme 1,267 — —
Earnings from equity method investme (18,05¢) (115 —
Total operating expens 95,51¢ 304,42( 285,68t
Operating incom: 253,40¢ 63,294 63,62¢
Other income and (expens
Interest expens (39,790 (39,570 (38,277
Loss on extinguishment of de (2,370 (57%) (13,445
Interest incom 53 43 34
Other (13 — 174
Total other income and (expen: (42,120 (40,109 (51,50¢)
Income before income tax exper 211,28t 23,19: 12,11¢
Income tax expens (54,909 (5,789 (11,646
Net income $ 156,38 $ 17,40¢ $ 472

Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared to the YeanBed December 31, 2012
Operating Revenue
Business and Wholesale Retail Service Rev

Business and Wholesale revenue of $100.7 millicreiased $2.1 million, or 2.1%, in 2013 from $98i8iom in 2012. This improvement was
primarily driven by $6.1 million increase from nemd existing customers buying or increasing themsamption of bandwidth using our
advanced network services such as MPLS, dedicatethket and Enhanced Metro Ethernet. Although lyaad connections have grown
modestly, growth of broadband ARPU drove overaleraie growth and reflects customer demand for &sing amounts of bandwidth.
Broadband ARPU increased to $175.34 in 2013 froBR¥19 in 2012, an increase of 15.3%. These incseasee partially offset by a $0.9
million decrease in traditional voice revenue dué, 036 fewer connections year-over-year and |o¥RPU of $23.78 from $24.25 in the prior
year due to price compression. We also benefited ft $1.5 million no-recurring transaction from a wholesale carrie2®12 that impacted
year over year performanc

Consumer Retail Service Revenue

Consumer revenue of $40.7 million increased $118amj or 4.9%, in 2013 from $38.7 million in 201Rroadband revenue increased $3.7
million to $22.1 million in 2013 from $18.4 milliom 2012. Broadband connections increased 2,10l oxea year and customers are
subscribing to higher levels of bandwidth speedsckvresulted in an increase in ARPU of $48.92 f@4#2.46 in the prior year, an increase of
15.2%. Partially offsetting this increase in broawith, voice revenue decreased $2.2 million primatilg to 6,526 fewer connections offset by
marginally higher ARPU of $26.71 from $26.64 in fivéor year. This trend is expected to continuenase customers discontinue using their
fixed landline voice service and move to wireleltasraatives.

Other Revenue
Other revenue was impacted as follows:

* $3.2 million in lower access revenue, causetbiyer minutes of use from long distance carribeg tise our network to originate
and terminate their call

*  $1.5 million in lower high cost support reven

*  $1.0 million in lower equipment sales revenue, pritya&aused by a $1.5 million n-recurring sale in 201.
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Wireless

Wireless revenue of $81.1 million decreased $3l0amior 3.6%, in 2013 from $84.1 million in 201Qur wireless subscriber base of 108,848
connections decreased 6,169 year-over-year assgisgun the operating metrics section above.

AWN Relate(

AWN related revenues changed substantially on agesr year basis as a result of the AWN transactibich closed in July 2013. Foreign
roaming revenue of $40.0 million, declined $15.1liom from $55.1 million in the prior year. Uponading of AWN, we no longer generate
foreign roaming revenue. Wireless backhaul revarfi$6.0 million, declined $0.9 million from $6.9 liin in the previous year. All existing
backhaul contracts with wireless carriers transféto AWN at closing, resulting in this year oveay decrease. We intend to enter into new
backhaul agreements in the future and expectéhisnue stream to grow in the future. CETC Revenaeeased slightly on a year over year
basis to $21.0 million. Under the AWN structure, wi#l pay a service charge to AWN for an amountado our CETC revenue so it does not
contribute to our overall net income or cash frgmerations.

Operating Expenses
Cost of Services and Sales, Non-Affiliates

Cost of services and sales, non-affiliates of $28&illion decreased $9.9 million, or 6.7%, in 2013 $148.1 million in 2012. This decrease
was due to certain operating expenses that havedntovAWN such as $6.0 million in roaming costs &8dL lower leased circuit expense.
also experienced $1.8 million lower USF contribot@msts as a result of the Transformation Ordeg dsage no longer subject to USF
contributions, and a reduction in the USF contifuinterstate rate throughout 2013. Partially efisig these costs are an increase of $0.4
million in wireless device and accessory costs.

Cost of Services and Sales, Affiliates

Cost of services and sales, affiliates of $25.2ionilincreased $24.9 million in 2013 from $0.3 moifl in 2012. This increase was primarily due
to the consummation of the AWN transaction. Thesstcinclude $20.4 million in AWN wholesale cosepresenting a new cost for us
purchasing wholesale wireless plans from AWN, $Ifillion representing a contractual obligation ssp an amount equal to our CETC
Revenue to AWN, and an increase of $0.6 milliofékMate equipment and services. These higher easts partially offset by $6.8 million

in handset subsidy support received from AWN wlsiehves to lower our overall operating expenses.

Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, general and administrative expenses of lhillion increased $3.7 million, or 3.5%, in Z0ftom $107.3 million in 2012. This
increase was due primarily to higher labor cost$28 million related to management and sales inces) a $1.4 million increase in service
expenses such as advertising, consulting, legabtratr. AWN transaction costs increased $0.2 nnillibhese were patrtially offset by a $0.7
million decrease in bad debt costs primarily duthtosettlement of specific reserved accounts avitirge customer.

Depreciation and Amortizatio

Depreciation and amortization expense of $42.Zonillecreased $9.3 million, or 18.1%, in 2013 fi$®i.5 million in 2012 due primarily to
the sale of assets to GCI and the contributiorseéts with a book value of $63.4 million to AWNlate July 2013.

Gain on Disposal of Assets, Net

The $204.2 million gain on the disposal assetsroEzbin 2013 was primarily associated with the $20illion gain on the sale/contribution
wireless assets in connection with the formatioAWN offset by $3.1 million of losses on the disabsf other equipment during the year.
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Earnings on Equity Method Investme

Earnings on equity method investments income of B&@llion increased $18.0 million in 2013 from $0million due to the new equity
investment in AWN.

Other Income and Expense

Interest expense of $39.8 million in 2013 decre&ed million, or 0.6%, compared with $39.6 million2012 due to a higher weighted-
average interest rate, partially offset by lowegrage borrowings. Interest expense was impactehebfollowing: (i) a $4.9 million decrease
due to overall lower debt balances, (ii) a $0.9ionilincrease from floating-to-fixed interest rat@ap agreements, which became effective in
the third quarter of 2012, (iii) a $2.3 million i@ase associated with an amendment to our Senan Eacility which took place November 1,
2012, and increased our cost of borrowing by 7%sljasints. Under the amendment, our stated cosbibwing increased from LIBOR plus
400 basis points to LIBOR plus 475 basis pointd, @n) a $0.8 million charge to interest expendatesl to an unfavorable legal settlement
with a IT vendor on a claim originating in 2009.

In the fourth quarter of 2012, an interest ratepsimethe notional amount of $192.5 million no longeet the criteria for prospective hedge
accounting treatment. In 2013, the $0.8 milliondiable change in the fair value of this swap waslited to interest expense and $1.6 million
of unrealized losses previously recorded to accatadlother comprehensive loss was charged to gttexpense.

Loss on extinguishment of debt of $2.4 million B3 relates to $1.6 million pay-downs on our Sehwman Facility and $0.7 million
representing the portion of the interest rate sthapwas over-hedged and moved from accumulatest sdmprehensive income when the
$65.0 million debt payment was made at AWN closing.

A $0.6 million loss on extinguishment of debt wasarded in 2012 in connection with the repurchdsepmrtion of the 5.75% Notes.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense and the effective tax rate I82@ere $54.9 million and 26.0%, respectively. 012, the Company reversed previously
recorded amounts related to the favorable Crest|fiternal Revenue Service examination. In addlijtio 2013, the Company reversed defe
tax valuation allowances in the amount of $1.9iomll Excluding these reversals, the effective inedax rate was 41.2%. Income tax expense
and the effective tax rate in 2012 were $5.8 millimd 24.9%, respectively. In 2012, the Compangned deferred tax valuation allowance
the amount of $3.6 million. Excluding this reverghk effective income tax was 40.4%.

Net ncome

Net income was $156.4 million in 2013 compared1@.$ million in 2012. The ye-over-year improvement reflects the gains relateith¢
AWN transaction, as well as the operating revenperating expense, and income tax items discussmcea

Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared to the YeanBed December 31, 2011
Operating Revenues
Business and Wholesale Retail Service Rev

Business and Wholesale revenue of $98.6 millioneiased $2.7 million, or 2.8%, in 2012 from $95.4iom in 2011. This improvement was
primarily driven by a $3.3 million increase fromnemercial customers using advanced network sergigels as MPLS, dedicated Internet and
Enhanced Metro Ethernet. Although broadband coioreshave remained relatively flat in total, grovribroadband ARPU reflected
customer demand for increasing amounts of bandwitibadband ARPU increased to $152.09 in 2012 f486.61 in 2011. This increase
was partially offset by a $1.8 million decreasestail voice revenue due to 2,203 fewer connecty@as over year and lower ARPU of $24.25
from $25.16 in the prior year due to price compmssWe also benefited from a $1.5 million n@eurring transaction from a wholesale cai
in 2012.
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Consumer Retail Service Revenue

Consumer revenue of $38.8 million decreased $0l&mior .8%, in 2012 from $39.1 million in 201¥oice revenue decreased $2.0 million
primarily due to 6,684 fewer connections, even §ipARPU of $26.64 increased slightly from $26.8%he prior year. This trend reflects m
customers cutting their fixed landline voice seevaad moving to wireless alternatives. Offsettimg decrease in voice, broadband revenue
increased $1.4 million. Broadband connections ied 81 year-over-year, as customers are subggtivimgher levels of bandwidth speeds,
which resulted in an increase in ARPU to $42.46nf§88.41 in the prior year.

Other

Other revenue was impacted as follows:
e $1.6 million in increased equipment sales reveniragmly caused by a n«recurring sale in 201
» $1.9 million in increased access revenue primatilg tb changes in intrastate access funding re

* $9 million in decreased high cost support reventeed to interstate support associated with adoess$osses

Wireless

Wireless revenue of $84.1 million decreased $.8anil or .3%, in 2012 from $84.4 million in 2011uwireless subscriber base of 115,017
decreased 2,542 in 2012, from 117,559 in 2011ec8flg a decrease of 4,028 in postpaid connectifinis.decline was partially offset by an
increase of 4,078 in prepaid connections.

AWN Relatet

Foreign roaming revenue increased $16.2 millioml0b%, due to the large number of customers friirarccarriers roaming on our network.
CETC Revenue of $20.7 million decreased $6.1 millar 22.8%, in 2012 from $26.9 million in 2011.Mless backhaul revenue of $6.9
million, increased $3.7 million from $3.2 million the previous year.

Operating Expense
Cost of Services and Sales, Non-Affiliates

Cost of services and sales, non-affiliates of $14&illion increased $12.4 million, or 9.1%, in 20ft@m $135.7 million in 2011. This increase
was driven by increases of $3.6 million in Homeetnet and advanced network service costs reflectisgpmer premise equipment such as
modems and third party leased circuits to carrjpéigamounts of bandwidth between certain of owsllegchange markets, $3.2 million in L
contribution expense associated with Intrastatesscoeform which is driving down the cost of inta&s rates to be more in line with interstate
rates, $3.0 million in roaming COGS due to our oostrs consuming higher amounts of bandwidth onratheier’s networks when they trav
outside of Alaska, $2.8 million in device and asteg expenses primarily driven by our customerslpasing higher cost wireless devices,
$1.3 million in land and building costs associatéth new cell site leases and collocation agreemeith other carriers, and $0.6 million in
circuit costs. Offsetting these increases was aedse of $2.8 million in Interstate and Intrastateess COGS associated with a decline in
access lines.

Cost of Services and Sales, Affiliates

Cost of services and sales, affiliates totaled $ilBon in 2012 and zero in 2011. The increas&@f million is due to TekMate equipment i
services.

Selling, General Administrative

Selling, general and administrative expenses of LMillion increased $15.3 million, or 16.7%, 012 from $92.0 million in 2011. This
growth was due to increases of $7.8 million in fatedlecting $2.4 million of incentive compensati&1.9 million in higher health and welfare
costs, $1.7 million in annual wage increases anfl filllion for increased staffing in sales and ounstr service functions associated with
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improving performance to our customer promisesddition, we incurred $6.1 million in transactiarsts and other administrative expenses
associated with the AWN Transaction, and $0.6 artilin bad debt expense due in part to specificausdor which funding from outside
agencies is currently uncertain. These items wartgtly offset by a $0.5 million reduction in adtising, consulting, legal and other outside
services expense. In addition, selling, generaladinistrative expenses in 2011 were favorablgcéd by a $1.4 million settlement of a
contract dispute with a bankrupt vendor.

Depreciation and Amortizatio

Depreciation and amortization expense of $51.5onillecreased $7.1 million, or 12.1%, in 2012 fi$®8.6 million in 2011 due primarily to a
number of pooled asset classes reaching their memidepreciable lives. These decreases were patifdlet by depreciation on additions to
our IT asset base during 2012.

Gain on Disposal of Assets

The $2.7 million gain on the disposal assets remmbid 2012 was primarily associated with the sélexaess property.

Other Income and Expense

Interest expense of $39.6 million in 2012 increa®&® million compared with $38.3 million in 201Lielto a marginally higher weighted
average interest rate. The higher interest rateatsf$1.9 million associated with forward floatitigfixed interest rate swap agreements which
became effective in the third quarter of 2012. thpact of the interest rate swaps was partiallgeaifby the sale of our 6.25% Notes in the
second quarter of 2011 and subsequent repurchaspasfion of our 5.75% Notes, which carry a higéiéective rate. In the fourth quarter of
2012, an interest rate swap in the notional amofifii92.5 million no longer met the criteria fooppective hedge accounting treatment. In th
fourth quarter, the $0.2 million favorable changéhie fair value of this swap was credited to ieseexpense and $0.3 million of unrealized
losses previously recorded to accumulated othepeoehensive loss was charged to interest expen$6.6Amillion loss on extinguishment of
debt was recorded in 2012 in connection with thpeirehase of $13.7 million aggregate principal anadfiour 5.75% Notes. A $13.4 million
loss on extinguishment of debt was recorded irséo®nd quarter of 2011 in connection with the relpase of a portion of the 5.75% Notes.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense and the effective tax rate i220@ere $5.8 million and 24.9%, respectively. I120the Company reversed deferred tax

valuation allowances in the amount of $3.6 millama result of utilizing bonus depreciation whidh allow it to utilize additional amounts of

its NOL carry forwards. Excluding this reversak thffective income tax rate was 40.4%. Income iqoense of $11.6 million in 2011 reflects

the $5.5 million deferred tax valuation allowaneearded during the third quarter discussed belautjglly offset by tax benefits from certain

discreet items. Excluding the valuation allowariné,including permanent differences and other anjaats, the effective tax rate was 50.7%
in 2011. Income tax expense will not involve sigraht cash outflows until these NOLs are exhausted.

Net Income

Net income was $17.4 million in 2012 compared tcb$aillion in 2011. The year over year change primaeflects the operating revenue
operating expense items discussed above, the $iiligh loss on the extinguishment of debt recorite@011 in connection with the
repurchase of a portion of our 5.75% Notes and/#ae over year reduction in income tax expense.

FINANCIAL CONDITION, LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCE S
Cash Flows

We satisfied our cash requirements for operaticagital expenditures, and debt service in 20132201 2011 primarily through internally
generated funds and the $100.0 million in cashivedeas part of the AWN transaction. At DecemberZl 3, we had $43.0 million in cash
and cash equivalents and $0.5 million in restrictesh. As of December 31, 2013, we also had a $8{li6n undrawn revolving credit
facility. Outstanding standby letters of credit aoin$1.9 million of the available revolving creditcility at December 31, 2013.
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A summary of significant sources and use of furigtie years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 andi2@kIfollows:

(in thousands 2013 2012 2011
Net cash provided by operating activit $ 67,70° $ 84,35¢ $ 79,08!
Capital expenditure $ (47,739 $(54,20¢) $(50,179)
Capitalized interes $ (1,920 $ (1,967) $ (1,989
Change in unsettled capital expenditt $ 1,492 $ (2,726 $ 4,42t
Proceeds on sale of ass $ 4,747 $ 3,61¢ $ 2,66¢
Proceeds on sale/contribution of asset to A $100,00( $ — $ —
Return of capital from equity investme $ — $ 32 $ —
Change in unsettled acquisition cc $ (3,34%) $ — $ —
Net change in shc-term investmen $ 2,03i $ (2,050 $ —
Net change in restricted accou $ 3,40¢ $ 1,081 $ (49
Net debt (repayments) borrowin $(99,56%) $(19,477) $ 15,85¢
Debt issuance cos $ (206 $ (3,167%) $ (4,44%)
Payment of cash dividend on common st $ — $ (9,117) $(38,81¢)
Net stock issuance (payment of withholding ta: $ (41)) $ 58 $ (1,685
Interest paic $(35,18)) $(36,15%) $(34,367)
Cash paid on extinguishment of hedge instrum $ (4,079 $ — $ —

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash provided by operating activities of $67.7 imillin 2013 reflected net income excluding non-céstms of $57.5 million, a $2.1 million
decrease in accounts payable excluding capitaki@md a $1.0 million increase in accrued payrdl laenefits. These items were partially
offset by a $0.7 million increase in materials angplies and a $5.5 million increase in accourtsivable. Payment of AWN Transaction
related costs totaled $8.3 million. The Companyired AWN Transaction costs up to and following te@summation of the transaction. The
Company has funded these costs primarily througtnabination of internally generated funds and pedsefrom the transaction.

Cash provided by operating activities of $84.4 imillin 2012 reflected net income excluding non-césms of $84.5 million, a $5.1 million
increase in accounts payable excluding capitalstand a $2.5 million increase in accrued payrdll laenefits. These items were partially of
by a $4.0 million increase in materials and suppdied a $2.7 million increase in accounts recee/dhyment of AWN Transaction related
costs totaled $4.2 million.

Cash provided by operating activities of $79.1 imnllin 2011 reflected net income excluding non-céesms of $89.7 million offset by the
release of revenue reserves of approximately $1l@mand cash payments of approximately $1.5iomllassociated with various federal
funding programs.

Interest payments, net of cash interest incomearanidding capitalized interest, were $35.2 milli&36.2 million and $34.4 million in 2013,
2012 and 2011, respectively. Through a seriestefést rate swap transactions, interest on 56%iiofesm loan at December 31, 2013 is
effectively fixed at an annual rate of 6.47% foe fheriod January 2013 through March 2013, 6.72%h®period April 2013 through May
2013, 6.97% for the period June 2013 through JaB32and 7.22% for the period August 2013 througpt&mber 2015. Our $120.0 million
convertible debt has a fixed coupon rate of 6.25%hacurrent outstanding balance of $114.0.

Cash Flows from I nvesting Activities

Cash provided by investing activities of $58.7 faiilin 2013 increased $115.0 million from cash usedvesting activities of $56.3 million in
2012. This increase primarily reflects the recef$100 million from the sale of wireless asset&tl and a $10.7 million decrease in capital
expenditures, inclusive of capitalized interest Hrelsettlement of capital expenditure payables.
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Cash used in investing activities of $56.3 milliar2012 increased $11.5 million from $44.8 millimn2011. This increase reflects an $11.2
million increase in capital expenditures, inclusbfeapitalized interest and the settlement oftehpixpenditure payables, due primarily to the
construction of our 4G LTE wireless network.

Our historical capital expenditures have been &amt, but we expect them to be reduced from Eirdurred in 2013. Our networks require
the timely maintenance of plant and infrastruct&gure capital requirements may change due todtsps regulatory decisions that affect our
ability to recover our investments, changes innebdbgy, the effects of competition, changes inlousiness strategy, our decision to pursue
specific acquisition and investment opportunitied the future funding of capital expenditures ietato wireless operations which become the
responsibility of AWN subsequent to closing. Weeimd to fund future capital expenditures with casthand and net cash generated from
operations.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Cash used in financing activities was $100.2 niillie 2013 relating almost exclusively to the payvdmf $99.6 million in debt. Payments
included (a) scheduled principal payments of $7ilBan on the term loan component of our Seniordiré&acility, (b) principal prepayments
on the term loan component of our Senior Crediflfjatotaling $78.0 million and (c) the full redestion of our 5.75% Notes totaling $13.0
million.

Cash used in financing activities was $31.7 millior2012. Payments on debt of $19.5 million incldigeincipal payments on our 5.75% Notes
totaling $13.7 million and scheduled payments @ntémm loan component of our Senior Credit Facttityling $4.4 million. Reducing the
outstanding balance of the 5.75% Notes to $25.0amibr lower precluded an acceleration of the migtulate on the term loan component of
the Senior Credit Facility from October 21, 201@&@cember 19, 2012.

Cash used in financing activities was $29.1 millior2011. Net proceeds of $115.6 million from thsuance of our 6.25% Notes were used to
repurchase $98.3 million principal amount of out®% Notes at a premium of $6.9 million. Debt issteanosts associated with the transactior
totaled $4.4 million. Cash dividends of $38.8 mitliwere paid in 2011.

Effective in the fourth quarter of 2011, the ComgarBoard of Directors reduced the quarterly casfdend from $0.215 per share to $0.05
per share. The suspension was incorporated amanedification to our Senior Credit Facility effae November 1, 2012, which prohibits the
payment of a common dividend unless the Compangtal Leverage Ratio is in excess of 3.5 times Adjd€BITDA as defined in the Senior
Credit Facility.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Consistent with our history, our current and loag# liquidity could be impacted by a number of tdvades, including, but not limited to:

(i) potential future reductions in our revenuesuhéisg from governmental and public policy changasluding regulatory actions affecting
inter-carrier compensation and changes in revermme Universal Service Funds; (ii) the entrance efi%on into the Alaska wireless market
and the potential negative impact on our retaNiserrevenues beginning in 2014; (iii) servicing substantial debt and funding principal
payments; (iv) the funding of other obligationglirding our pension plans and lease commitmenixther competitive pressures in the
markets we serve; (vi) the capital intensive natfreur industry; (vii) our ability to respond ta@fund the rapid technological changes
inherent to our industry, including new productsg dviii) our ability to obtain adequate financit@support our business and pursue growth
opportunities.

We are responding to these challenges by (i) dyigiowth in broadband service revenues with a@aetr focus on business and wholesale
customers; (ii) and maintaining our wireless custmso support AWN and maximize our preferred itistrons in the future, and

(iii) managing our cost structure to deliver coteis free cash flow performance. We also anticipagticating a significant portion of our free
cash flow to pay down debt and reduce our intaregénse over time.
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As of December 31, 2013, total long-term obligasimutstanding, including current portion, were $858illion consisting of a $344.2 million
draw from our Senior Credit Facility, net of a $in#llion debt discount, $104.8 million of conveigtnotes, net of $9.2 million in debt
discounts, and $7.3 million in capital lease artteobbligations. As of December 31, 2013, we ha&iG4illion in cash and access to $28.1
million of our $30.0 million revolver. On January 2014, we made $13.2 in principal payments onang-term debt representing 100% of 1
required payments for 2014.

We believe that we will have sufficient cash ondharash provided by operations and available bamgwapacity under our revolving credit
facility to service our debt, and fund our openasiocapital expenditures and other obligations tivemnext twelve months. Our ability to meet
such obligations will be dependent upon our fufimancial performance, which is, in turn, subjecfuture economic conditions and to
financial, business, regulatory and other factorany of which are beyond our control.

Senior Credit Facility

On October 21, 2010, we entered into a $470.0anilBenior Credit Facility which consists of a draierm loan of $440.0 million and an
undrawn revolving loan of $30.0 million (the “revel”). At December 31, 2013, we had access to $2filibn under the revolving credit
facility, representing 94% of available capacityt€landing standby letters of credit totaled $1ilon at December 31, 2013.

The term loan component of the Senior Credit Rgaifiatures on October 21, 2016 and the revolveuraaton October 21, 2015. Our Senior
Credit Facility contains a number of restrictivevenants and events of default, including coventimiting capital expenditures, incurrence of
debt and payment of dividends. The Senior Creditliiaalso has a requirement that 25% - 75% ofaiarcash flow generated by our busines:
be used to pay down outstanding principal. The @ediedit Facility also requires that we achieveaia financial ratios quarterly including a
total leverage ratio, senior secured leverage matiba fixed charges coverage ratio. As of Decel®be2013, we were in compliance with
these ratios. These measures are defined mordisalgibelow.

The AWN transaction required numerous conditionslése, one of which was an amendment to our S&riedit Facility. On November 1,
2012, an amendment was entered into allowing isdie to GCI and transfer directly to AWN of certaireless assets. Although we expect
to reduce our outstanding debt, the AWN cash tistibns were structured to serve as a surrogatinéoFree Cash Flow (as defined in “Non-
GAAP Financial Measures”) historically generatedooy wireless assets. Therefore, additional terrdifivations were required to provide the
flexibility necessary to address the resulting Iovdjusted EBITDA, as defined in our senior crdditility, from the AWN Transaction.
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A comparison of certain original terms of our Serioedit Facility with the corresponding amendeatni®is summarized as follows:

Senior Credit Facility Terms

Original As Amendec
Interest rate
Margin over LIBOR 4.00% 4.75%
LIBOR floor 1.5(% 1.5(%
Quarterly principal payments (in thousands
Through quarter ended December 31, 2 $ 1,10C $ 1,10C
Effective quarter beginning January 1, 2( $ 1,10C $ 1,82t
Effective quarter beginning January 1, 2( $ 1,20C $ 3,30¢
Effective quarter beginning January 1, 2( $ 1,10( $ 3,67¢
Effective quarter beginning January 1, 2( $ 1,20C $ 3,30¢
Total Leverage to Adjusted EBITDA Ratio Lim
Through June 30, 201 5.2F 6.0C
Through December 31, 20: 5.2t 5.5C
Thereafte 5.2F 5.2E
Senior Secured Leverage to Adjusted EBITDA RatimiL:i
Through June 30, 201 4.4C 4.7t
Through December 31, 20: 4.4C 4.5(C
Thereafte 4.4C 4.2t
Adjusted EBITDA to Fixed Charges Coverage Ratio ilium:
Through June 30, 201 2.7t 2.2t
Through September 30, 20 2.7t 2.5C
Thereafte 2.7t 2.7¢
Total Leverage Ratio limit on which cash dividemaiscommon
stock may be paid 5.0C 3.5C

* Term modification effective November 1, 20:

Total Leverage RatidOur “total leverage ratio” may not exceed 6.00 1801 “Total leverage ratio” means, generally, athatlast day of any
fiscal quarter, the ratio of our (a) adjusted talkalbt to (b) Adjusted EBITDA (as defined in our BerCredit Facility more specifically below)
for the period of four of our consecutive fiscabgers ended on such date, all determined on atidated basis in accordance with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles. Payment of casliddivds on common stock is not permitted until sirdle that the Company’s Total
Leverage Ratio is not more than 3.50 to 1.00. ©ked teverage ratio was 3.94 to 1.00 as of Decer@beR013.

Senior Secured Leverage Ratiour “senior secured leverage ratio” may not exce&8 to 1.00. “Senior secured leverage ratio” meas®f
the last day of any fiscal quarter, the ratio of @) senior secured debt to (b) Adjusted EBITD#&dafined in our Senior Credit Facility. The
senior secured leverage ratio was 3.33 to 1.00 Becember 31, 2013.

Fixed Charges Coverage RatiOur “fixed charges coverage ratio” may not be thss 2.25 to 1.00. The ratio of (a) Adjusted EBIT,Cxs
defined in our Senior Credit Facility, to (b) “Fk€harges” is defined specifically in our Senioedlt Facility, and more generally, below. The
fixed charges coverage ratio was 3.02 to 1.00 &ecember 31, 2013.

Adjusted EBITD/, as defined in our Senior Credit Facility, meaossolidated net income, plus the sum of;
» consolidated interest expen:

» provision for income taxes based on incol
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» depreciation and amortization exper

» certain specified expenses incurred in conoaatiith the AWN Transaction, including charges agsed with the potential
termination of hedging agreemer

» unrealized losses on financial derivativ

e nor-cash, stoc-based compensation exper

e extraordinary, nc-recurring or unusual losse

» cash dividends or distributions from AW

» the cumulative effect of a change in accountinggples; anc

» all other no-cash charges that represent an accrual for whiactasio is expected to be paid in the next twelvethsy

minus (to the extent included in determining coitlsted net income) the sum of:
e unrealized gains on financial derivativ
e extraordinary, nc-recurring or unusual gain
» gains on sales of assets other than in the ordi@rse of business; a

» all other norcash income
“Fixed charges”means (a) cash interest expense plus (b) cash extm

The above definition of Adjusted EBITDA is not nssarily consistent with the Non-GAAP measure ofustid EBITDA presented elsewhere
in this “Item 7, Management’s Discussion and Analyg Financial Condition and Results of Operatibns

Principal payments totaling $85.3 and $4.4 milkeere made on the term loan during the years endéegbber 31, 2013 and 2012
respectively.

Substantially all of our assets, including thosewf subsidiaries, have been pledged as colld@ralur Senior Credit Facility.

In connection with the Senior Credit Facility, tBempany entered into forward floating-to-fixed st rate swaps and a buy back of the 1.59
LIBOR floor, as a component of its cash flow hedgatrategy. The notional amounts of the swaps $&82.5 million, $115.5 million and
$77.0 million with interest rates of 6.463%, 6.47@% 6.475%, respectively, inclusive of a 4.0% LMB&pread. The swaps began on June 3(
2012 and were expected to continue through Septe®ih@015. To protect against movements in LIBORrpo the start of the swaps, the
Company acquired an interest rate cap at a cdd.dfmillion for the period between December 3,(and June 30, 2012, capping LIBOR a
3.0% on a notional principal amount of $385.0 roilli On November 1, 2012, the effective date ofatinendment to the Company’s Senior
Credit Facility, and as a result of the increme®&8.0 million AWN transaction principal payment ihre term loan required by this
amendment, it was determined that the swap in ¢tiemal amount of $192.5 million no longer met tiexlge effectiveness criteria. The $192.-
million swap was extinguished and settled on Auduf013 for $4.1 million in cash. The portion ofrealized losses on this swap was
recorded to accumulated other comprehensive loss, the swap’s inception through the date hedgewding treatment was discontinued
(November 1, 2012), and amounts associated withdhable rate interest payments underlying thelkecated $65.0 million principal
payment, were reclassified to loss on extinguisttroédebt. The amount of this reclassification Ws7 million. The remaining balance of
amounts recorded to accumulated other comprehelmsiseassociated with this hedge will be amortizeihterest expense over the period of
the remaining originally designated hedged variasite interest payments. The notional amount ofileeremaining swaps are $115.5 million
and $77.0 million with interest rates of 7.220% dr2R5%, respectively, inclusive of a 4.75% LIBOiRead.

Other Debt I nstruments

The balance of our 6.25% Notes due in 2016 was $Ihdlion as of December 31, 2013.

We may periodically consider repurchasing outstagidionvertible notes, for cash or shares of the izoy's common stock, or a combination
thereof. The amount of any convertible notes todpeirchased, as well as the timing of any repueshasill be based on business, market anc

other conditions and factors, including price, latpry matters, contractual requirements or corssemtd capital availability. Any repurchases
might be made using a variety of methods, which malude open
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market purchases, privately negotiated transactmmisy any combination of those methods, in coarge with applicable securities laws and
regulations. There can be no assurance that wdevilble to successfully repurchase any convertitiles on terms acceptable to the
Company.

Contractual Obligations

Our contractual obligations as of December 31, 2ai@ presented in the following table. Generaddigg-term liabilities are included in the
table based on the year of required payment ostimate of the year of payment. Such estimatesagignt are based on a review of past
trends for these items as well as a forecast afdudctivities. As described below, certain itenesevexcluded from the following table where
the year of payment is unknown and could not beaeably estimated.

(in thousands Total 2014 2015-2016 2013%-2018 Thereafter
Long-term debt $467,15  $14,31( $334,22( $114,727 $ 3,90(
Interest on lon-term debi 98,66 31,50: 53,75: 10,32! 3,08¢
Capital lease 7,251 1,11C 1,52( 727 3,90(
Operating lease 66,73: 6,55: 12,15¢ 9,95¢ 38,06
Unconditional purchase obligatio 5,732 3,78( 1,49: 387 72
Total contractual cash obligatio $645,54¢ $57,25¢  $403,14¢ $136,12( $ 49,02:

Total pension benefit liabilities associated whik ACS Retirement Plan recognized on the conselidaalance sheet as of December 31, 201
and December 31, 2012 were $3.7 million and $5Ibomj respectively, and is included in “Other loteym liabilities-non affiliate” on our
consolidated balance sheet. Because this lialslitppacted by, among other items, plan fundinglgwchanges in plan demographics and
assumptions, and investment return on plans assdt®s not represent expected liquidity needsofdingly, we did not include this liability

in the “Contractual Obligationdable. We made cash contributions of $0.4 millier2013 and $0.5 million in 2012. No cash contribo$i wert
made in 2011. This plan is not fully funded.

We also participate in the Alaska Electrical Pend$tond, a multi-employer defined benefit plan, tueh we pay a contractual hourly amount
based on employee classification or base compensatie contributed $9.2 million, $9.6 million an@l.$ million to this plan in 2013, 2012
and 2011, respectively. Minimum required futuretcibations to this plan are subject to the numidegroployees in each classification and/or
base compensation of employees in future yearsthackfore, are not included in the “Contractualigations” table. This plan is not fully
funded.

As of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 ¢lmpany had an accumulated asset retirement obligat $3.7 million and $6.9
million. This liability was not included in the “@tractual Obligations” table due primarily to thecertainty as to the timing of future
payments.

As of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 201X timepany had deferred tax liabilities totaling $9&illion and $27.5 million, exclusive

of deferred tax assets. This amount is not includebde “Contractual Obligations” table because@wenpany believes this presentation would
not be meaningful. Deferred income tax liabilitaas calculated based on temporary differences legtthe tax basis of assets and liabilities
and their book basis, which will result in taxahlaounts in future years when the book basis itedeffhe results of these calculations do not
have a direct connection with the amount of cazbg&o be paid in any future periods.

In addition, funding obligation associated with geif insurance programs have been excluded frenethle due primarily to the uncertainty
to the timing of future payments.

NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

In an effort to provide investors with additionafarmation regarding our financial results, in parar with regards to our liquidity and capital
resources, we have disclosed certain non-GAAP fishimformation which management utilizes to asgerformance and believe provides
useful information to investors. We have disclosachings before interest expense and income, losstinguishment of debt, depreciation
and amortization, gain on sale of long-term investts, gain and loss on disposal of assets, g#enfices, AWN transaction related costs,
income taxes and stock-based compensation, and
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including return of capital from equity investmeas, defined and reconciled below (“Adjusted EBITDAdnd Adjusted EBITDA Margin,
defined as Adjusted EBITDA divided by operatingerues, because we believe they are important peafure indicators and provide
information about our ability to service debt, phyidends to the extent permitted and fund cagixgdenditures. We also disclose Free Cash
Flow, as defined and reconciled below, becauseelieve it is an important measure of our abilityfund business activities. Adjusted
EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA Margin and Free Cash Flove ot GAAP measures and should not be considesetstitute for operating
income, net cash provided by operating activities)et cash provided or used. Adjusted EBITDA awnpmated below is not consistent with the
definition of Adjusted EBITDA referenced in the Etk Charges Coverage Ratio covenant of our Senaditracility.
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The following table provides the computation of Astied EBITDA and Free Cash Flow for the years emgszember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2(

(in thousands 2013 2012 2011
Net income $ 156,38: 17,40¢ 472
Add (subtract)
Interest expens 39,79( 39,57( 38,27:
Loss on extinguishment of de 2,37( 57& 13,44*
Interest income (53 (43 (39
Depreciation and amortizatic 42,19 51,48 58,55¢
Loss on impairment of equity investme 1,267 — —
Loss on sale of sh-term investment 13 — —
Gain on sale of lor-term investment — — (1749
(Gain) loss on disposal of ass 3,11¢ (2,66¢) (565)
Earnings from equity method investment in Tekn (93 (115 —
Earnings from equity method investment in Av (17,967 — —
Gain on sale/contribution of asset to AV (207,319 — —
Tekmate distribution receive — 147 —
AWN distributions receive: 17,84« — —
AWN distributions receivable within 12 da 4,167 — —
Income tax expens 54,90t 5,78 11,64¢
Stocl-based compensation and l-term cash incentive 3,491 3,55( 3,88¢
Gift of services — — (52)
AWN transactio-related cost 6,382 6,12¢ 50C
Adjusted EBITDA $ 106,49: $121,82: $125,95°
Less:
Incurred capital expenditures (47,739 (54,206 (50,179
Amortization of deferred AWN capacity reven (1,519 — —
AWN transactio-related capital costs, net char (47) 1,58( —
Cash interest expen (35,18) (36,159 (34,36))
Free Cash Floy $ 22,01 $ 33,04( $ 41,41
Operating revenue $ 348,92« $367,71: $349,31:
Adjusted EBITDA Margin 30.5% 33.1% 36.1%

* Excludes capitalized interest (includec* Cash interest exper”) and the change in unsettled capital expenditi

OUTLOOK
Operating Results, Liquidity and Capital Resources

We expect to see continued strength in businessvantesale and consumer customer service revelageby broadband revenue growth
across all customer groups. These revenue increasesiven by new broadband products and seragicdsncreasing demand for broadband.
We also believe we will generate revenue growtlgtmwing market share. Our acquisition of TekMatdamuary 2014 will also contribute to
our operating results in 2014.
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Other revenue categories are expected to see mesatts. We expect equipment sales to be a vanialiknue stream and will be impacted by
large nonrecurring events. We expect access revenues timaertb decline as voice traffic experiences decliith long distance carriers. It
uncertain the direction of high cost support rexerAs discussed in Item 1. Business and Item 18k Ractors, this revenue stream is
undergoing significant reform. It is difficult tagdict the future direction of this source or rewems well as the future obligations we will
inherit to sustain this revenue stream.

Wireless service, equipment sales and other revisnexpected to see continued declines, due t@be's anticipated retail entry into the
Alaska marketplace.

Regarding our cost structure, as we move into 2@&4pok certain actions to continue to managecost structure, primarily related to our
cost of supporting wireless services to ensure aveegate consistent cash flow from operations, AdflEBITDA and Free Cash Flow, the
latter of which will be dedicated to further delatypdowns. These actions include selective reduci@pproximately 5% of our workforce in
the fourth quarter of 2013, reduction in elevateshpotional activity for consumer broadband, anducedi sales and incentive compensation
expense through better alignment of our retaieatiand indirect sales channels with the markebdppity and lower anticipated year over
year management incentive compensation payoutexpect to make continued adjustments to our casttsire in 2014, as we-position oul
wireless offerings in the face of the entry of \Zen wireless in the market. This re-positioninglimiprove our competitiveness and cost of
delivery of our service offerings. We believe thabugh continued top line revenue growth in servigvenue, and expense management we
should continue to generate sufficient Free Castw b further reduce our indebtedness. We belibag tve will have sufficient cash on hand,
cash provided by operations and available borrowaygacity under our revolving credit facility tangee our debt and fund our operations,
capital expenditures and other obligations ovemtnd twelve months.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no special purpose or limited purposeiestihat provide off-balance sheet financing, lifityi or market or credit risk support and we
do not engage in leasing, hedging, research anela@went services or other relationships that expesto any material liabilities that are not
reflected on our balance sheet or included in “Gattial Obligations” above.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of our consolidated financial stegets, in conformity with accounting principles geadly accepted in the United States of
America, requires us to make estimates and assonspifiat affect the reported amounts of assetsiahitties and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the finamstialements and the reported amounts of revenuesxpenses during the reporting period.

We have identified certain policies and estimatesraical to our business operations and the wstdeding of our past or present results of
operations. We consider these policies and estswaitcal because they had a material impacthey have the potential to have a material
impact, on our financial statements and they regsignificant judgments, assumptions or estimates.

Revenue Recognition Policies

We recognize revenue for recurring services whenesh which is usually on a month-to-month basig. &0 recognize non-recurring
revenues, including activation fees and usage themsharges, when earned. Where we have deterrtia¢dertain bundled products,
including coupled wireline and wireless servicemstitute arrangements with multiple deliverables,allocate and measure using units of
accounting and our judgment within the arrangerbased on relative fair values.

We recognize access revenue when we earn it. Wieipate in access revenue pools with other telaplemmpanies. Such pools are funde
toll revenue and/or access charges regulated biy@l@within the interstate jurisdiction. Much ottmterstate access revenue is initially
recorded based on
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estimates. These estimates are derived from intémancial statements, available separations ssuaiie the most recent information available
about achieved rates of return. These estimatesusdject to adjustment in future accounting perasiadditional operational information
becomes available for us and the other telephompanies. To the extent that disputes arise oveamney settlements, we defer revenue
collected until settlement methodologies are resbland finalized. Although we have withdrawn frorterstate access pools, we have a
remaining liability for certain periods prior tolyd, 2009.

Income Taxes

We use the asset-liability method of accountingrficome taxes and account for income tax unceitainising the “more-likely-than-not”
threshold. Under the asset-liability method, defériaxes reflect the temporary differences betwkeiriinancial and tax bases of assets and
liabilities using the enacted tax rates in effacthie years in which the differences are expededverse. Deferred tax assets are reduced by :
valuation allowance to the extent management détesit is more-likely-than-not that the value of aleferred tax assets will not be fully
realized.

Derivative Financial Instruments

We recognize all asset or liability derivativedait value. The accounting for changes in fair eailsicontingent on the intended use of the
derivative and its designation as a hedge. Devigatithat are not hedges are adjusted to fair vhhoeigh earnings. If a derivative is a hedge,
depending on the nature of the hedge, change# indlaie either offset the change in fair valugha hedged assets, liabilities or firm
commitments through earnings, or are recognizedtiar comprehensive income until the hedged tradiosais recognized in earnings. The
change in a derivative’s fair value related toitteffective portion of a hedge, if any, is immedigtrecognized in earnings. We do not enter
into any derivative contracts for speculative pgg® On the date a derivative contract is enterted e designate the derivative as either ¢
value or cash flow hedge. We formally assess, Gbthe hedge’s inception and on an ongoing bagisthver the derivatives that are used in
hedging transactions are highly effective in otisgtchanges in fair values or cash flows of hedtgs. If we determine that a derivative is
not highly effective as a hedge or that it has edds be a highly effective hedge, we discontinegge accounting prospectively. The chang
a derivative’s fair value related to the ineffeetportion of a hedge is immediately recognizedamings. Amounts recorded to accumulated
other comprehensive income (loss) from the dateefierivative’s inception to the date of ineffeetiess are amortized to earnings over the
remaining term of the hedged item. If the hedgenhits settled prior to its originally scheduledejany remaining accumulated comprehen
income (loss) associated with the derivative imaent is reclassified to earnings. Termination désdvative instrument prior to its scheduled
settlement date may result in charges for ternondees.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

The Company evaluated recently issued accountiogguncements to determine the impact of new procements on GAAP and our
consolidated financial statements. There are noam@unting pronouncements that have been issuadiopted during the year ended
December 31, 2013, that we expect will have a B@ait effect on our consolidated financial statatse

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Aout Market Risk

Our primary exposure to market risk is associatigld @hanges in interest rates. The interest ratdscash interest payments were effectively
fixed on approximately $304.5 million, or 67%, afrdotal borrowings of $456.3 million as of DecemBé&, 2013. Our 6.25% Notes and 5.7
Notes have fixed coupon rates. The term loan commpoof our Senior Credit Facility bears interest BOR plus 4.75% with a LIBOR floc
of 1.5% as of December 31, 2013.

We manage our exposure to fluxuations in LIBOR tdoedresulting impact on interest expense and ¢#eheist payments on our Senior Credit
Facility through the utilization of floating-to-fed interest rate swaps designated as cash flonekedg of December 31, 2013, interest
expense on $192.5 million, or 56%, of the amoumstanding under the Senior Credit Facility was teelg\ hypothetical 100 basis point
increase in LIBOR over the floor of 1.5% during 20&ould result in an approximately $1.5 millionigase in interest expense and cash
interest payments associated with the unhedgedpat the Senior Credit Facility.
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Liquidity Risk

Our substantial debt, specifically its term andumi&t, could have a material adverse effect onauailable liquidity. See the matters describec
in “ltem 1A, Risk Factors — Risks Relating to Ouzhid.”

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Consolidated financial statements of Alaska Comeations Systems Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries, ladinancial statements of AWN (as
required under Regulation S-X 3-09) are submitted aeparate section of this Form 10-K. See “IndéXonsolidated Financial Statements”,
which appears on page F-1 hereof.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Account&on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures.

As of the end of the period covered by this AnriR@port on Form 10-K, we carried out an evaluatinder the supervision and with the
participation of our management, including our €Hrecutive Officer and our Chief Financial Officef the effectiveness of the design and
operation of our disclosure controls and procedptgsuant to Rule 13a-15 under the Securities Enghdct of 1934, as amended.

Based on the evaluation, our Chief Executive Offared our Chief Financial Officer believe that,odshe end of the period covered by this
Annual Report on Form 10-K, our disclosure contauisl procedures were effective at ensuring thainfleemation required to be disclosed by
us in the reports that we file or submit underBxehange Act is (i) recorded, processed, summaenredeported within the time periods
specified in the SEG'rules and forms and (ii) accumulated and comnat@itto our management, including our principakeiige officer anc
principal financial officer, as appropriate, tooall timely decisions regarding required disclosures.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finandal Reporting.

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting, as such term is defined in
Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Our internal contre¢iofinancial reporting is designed to provide mreble assurance to our management anc
Board of Directors regarding the preparation amddi@sentation of published financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Therefore, even those
systems determined to be effective can provide mrdgonable assurance with respect to financiedratant preparation and presentation.

Under the supervision and with the participatiomof management, including our Chief Executive €ffiand our Chief Financial Officer, we
conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness ofirternal control over financial reporting basedtlea framework in thénternal Control —
Integrated Framewor(1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Omgdiuns of the Treadway Commission (“COSQO”).

Based on our evaluation using tinéernal Control — Integrated Framework (1992)ur management concluded that our internal cobotrer
financial reporting was effective as of DecemberZ113.

Our independent registered public accounting fias issued an attestation report on the Compantgmial control over financial reporting,
which is included in “Item 8, Financial Statemeatsl Supplementary Data” of this Annual Report omia0-K.
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Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg .

As discussed in Note Bquity Method Investmenteffective July 22, 2013, the Company and Ger@amhmunication, Inc. (“GCI") completed
the transactions contemplated by the June 4, 2@%52tA°urchase and Contribution Agreement betwesnglves, two of their respective
subsidiaries, and Alaska Wireless Network, LLC (“ANY for the purpose of combining their wirelesswetks into AWN. The Company
incorporated additional internal controls and pchges over financial reporting related to the AWahsaction and our recognition of equity
method earnings from our investment in AWN.

There was no change in our internal control ovgairfcial reporting that occurred in the fourth geladf 2013 that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, our interoantrol over financial reporting other than thossed above.

Item 9B. Other Information

Not applicable

PART lIl
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance

The information required by this item is incorp@dinto this Form 10-K by reference to our Proxgt&mnent for our 2014 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Information on compensation of our directors anecexive officers is incorporated into this Form K@y reference to our Proxy Statement fol
our 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial @Qvners and Management and Related Stockholder Matter

Information with respect to security ownership eftain beneficial owners and management is incatpdrinto this Form 10-K by reference to
our Proxy Statement for our 2014 Annual Meetingtifckholders.

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Comensation Plans

As of December 31, 2013, the number of securitesaining available for future issuance under equitypensation plans includes 1,553,694
shares under the Alaska Communications SystemspGhaet 2012 Incentive Award Plan and 1,193,522eshander the Alaska
Communications Systems Group, Inc. 2013 Employeek3eurchase Plan.
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Number of securitie

Number of remaining available for futu
securities to be Weighter-averag
issued upon issuance under equity
exercise of exercise price of compensation plans
outstanding option outstanding (excluding securities reflect
options, warrant
warrants and right and rights in column (a))
Equity compensation pla ()] (b) (c)
Approved by security holder
Stock options 23,80( $ 5.3¢
Restricted stoc 2,300,90: $ — 2,747,211
Not approved by security holde
Stock options — $ —
Subject to future approval by
security holders
Restricted stock unit
equivalents — $ —

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa@ns, and Director Independence

Information with respect to such contractual relaships is incorporated into this Form 10-K by refee to our Proxy Statement for our 2014
Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

Information on our audit committee’s pre-approvaligy for audit services and information on oumgipal accounting fees and services is
incorporated into this Form 10-K by reference to Btoxy Statement for our 2014 Annual Meeting afcgholders.
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PART IV

Iltem 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

(a) The following documents are filed as a part of tieisort:

Financial Statements: Our consolidated findreteEtements are submitted as a separate sectibisdform 10-K. See “Index to

Consolidated Financial Stateme” which appears on page+-1.

Financial Statement Schedules: Financial statgérschedules are omitted because they are natalplel, not required, or because

the required information is included in the condated financial statements or notes thei

The financial statements of AWN are filed as péathés report and are listed in the Index to Coitsibd Financial Statemen
Exhibits: The exhibits to this report are lsteelow. Other than exhibits that are filed herbwatll exhibits listed below are exhibits

of the Registrant and are incorporated herein fgreace as exhibits there

Exhibit

Where Locate(

1)
(2)
3)
(4)

Exhibit No

2.1%

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

4.1

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated April 1, 2008,ralyaanong the Registrant, Crest
Communications Corporations Group, Inc., and thiengestockholders specified there

Asset Purchase and Contribution Agreement, dated &sne 4, 2012, among Alaska
Communications Systems Group, Inc., General Comeatinin, Inc., ACS Wireless, Inc., G
Wireless Holdings, LLC and The Alaska Wireless Natwy LLC, with Form of First
Amended and Restated Operating Agreement of ThekAlsVireless Network, LLC among
The Alaska Wireless Network, LLC, GCI Wireless Halgs, LLC, ACS Wireless, Inc.,
Alaska Communications Systems Group, Inc. and Gé@ymmunication, Inc. attached
thereto as Exhibit A (portions of this Exhibit haween omitted pursuant to a request for
confidential treatment under Rule -2 under the Securities Exchange Act of 19

Amendment, dated as October 1, 2012, to Asset Bsechnd Contribution Agreement, dated
as of June 4, 2012, among Alaska Communicatione8ysGroup, Inc., General
Communication, Inc., ACS Wireless, Inc., GCI WisddHoldings, LLC and The Alaska

Wireless Network, LLC

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatiothe Registrant.

Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant.

Specimen of Common Stock Certificate.
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Exhibit 2.1 to Form 8-K (filed
August 7, 2008

Exhibit 2.1 to Form 8-K (filed
August 6, 2012)

Exhibit 2.1 to Form 8-K (filed
October 2, 2012)

Exhibit to Form S-1/A File No.
333-888753 (filed November
17,1999)

Exhibit 3.1 to Form 8-K (filed
September 30, 201

Exhibit to Form S-1/A File No.
333-888753 (filed November
17, 1999)
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4.2

4.3

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

Indenture, dated April 8, 2008, by and among thgifeant, the guarantors hamed therein, andexhibit 4.1 to Form 8-K (filed
The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., as trestith respect to the Registrant’s 5.75%April 14, 2008)

Convertible Notes due 201

Indenture, dated as of May 10, 2011, by and ambag_ompany, the Guarantors named thereigxhibit 4.1 to Form 8-K (filed

and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.&s trustee, with respect to 6.25%
Convertible Notes due 201

Alaska Communications Systems Group, Inc. 1999kSiocentive Plan.

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement between the $egjit and certain participants in the
Registrar’s 1999 Stock Incentive Pla

Form of Performance Share Unit Agreement betweerRtgistrant and certain participants in
Registrar’s 1999 Stock Incentive Pla

Amendment to Alaska Communications Systems Graup,1999 Stock Incentive Plan.

May 11, 2011)

Exhibit to Form S-1/A File No.
333-888753 (filed November 17,
1999)

Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q (filed
August 3, 2007

Exhibit 99.1 to Form 8-K/A (filed
June 12, 200¢

Exhibit 10.5 to Form 10-K (filed
March 9, 2010

Alaska Communications Systems Group, Inc. 1999 NBmployee Director Compensation PlanExhibit to Form S-1/A File No.

Amendment to Alaska Communications Systems Graup,1999 Non-Employee Director
Compensation Plau

Alaska Communications Systems Group, Inc. 1999 Bygd Stock Purchase Plan.

333-888753 (filed November 17,
1999)

Exhibit 10.7 to Form 10-K (filed
March 9, 2010

Exhibit to Form S-1/A File No.
333-888753 (filed November 17,
1999)

Alaska Communications Systems Group, Inc. 2012 Bygd Stock Purchase Plan (Appendix AExhibit 10.1 to Form S-8 File

to the Company'’s Definitive Proxy Statement on Sicthe 14A filed on April 25, 2012).

Amendment to Alaska Communications Systems Graup,1999 Employee Stock Purchase
Plan.

No.33:-181660 (filed May 24,
2012)

Exhibit 10.9 to Form 10-K (filed
March 9, 2010

Amendment ratified on October 4, 2012, to CollextBargaining Agreement, effective Februangxhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K (filed

28, 2010, between Alaska Communications Systemdiitgs, Inc. and the International
Brotherhood of Electrical Workers, Local Union Ni&47.

October 10, 2012)

Collective Bargaining Agreement, effective Febru28y 2010, between Alaska Communicatiorsxhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K (filed
Systems, Holdings, Inc. and the International Bedtlbod of Electrical Workers, Local Union I October 10, 2012)

1547.
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10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

2010 Officer Severance Policy. Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K (filed
November 4, 201C

Purchase Agreement, dated April 2, 2008, by andngmidaska Communications Systems Grc Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K (filed
Inc., the guarantors listed therein and the InRiatchasers, regarding the Registrant’s 5.75% April 14, 2008)
Convertible Notes due 201

Confirmations of Convertible Bond Hedges by andveen Alaska Communications Systems Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K (filed
Group, Inc. and certain affiliates of the Initialrehasers April 14, 2008)

Confirmations of Warrant Transactions by and betwgkska Communications Systems Grouggxhibit 10.3 to Form 8-K (filed
Inc. and certain affiliates of the Initial Purches: April 14, 2008)

Credit Agreement, dated as of October 21, 201@&rayamong Alaska Communications Systenixhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K (filed
Holdings, Inc., as Borrower, Alaska Communicati&@ystems Group, Inc, as Parent, several February 26, 2010)

banks and other financial institutions or entit@sJenders named therein, and JPMorgan Chase

Bank, N.A., as Administrative Ager

First Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as ofédaber 1, 2012, by and among Alaska Exhibit 10.4 to Form 10-Q (filed
Communications Systems Holdings, Inc., as Borrowkaska Communications Systems GroupNovember 5, 2012
Inc., as Parent, the lenders, and JPMorgan Chasle BaA. as Administrative Agen

Employment Agreement between Alaska Communicat8ystems Group, Inc., and Anand Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K (filed
Vadapalli entered into on February 21, 2C February 24, 2011

Employment Agreement between Alaska Communicat®ysiems Group, Inc., and Wayne  Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K (filed
Graham entered into on February 21, 2( March 5, 2011

Purchase Agreement, dated May 4, 2011, by and athengompany, the Guarantors named Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K (filed
therein and J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, as reptaiga of the several initial purchasers nameMay 11, 2011)
therein.

Alaska Communications Systems Group, Inc. 2011ntiee Award Plan Restricted Stock Unit Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K (filed

Agreement July 8, 2011
Alaska Communications Systems Group, Inc. 2011ntiee Award Plan Performance Stock L Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K (filed
Agreement July 8, 2011
Alaska Communications Systems Group, Inc. Post-Bympént Stock Incentive Award Vesting Exhibit 10.3 to Form 8-K (filed
Policy. July 8, 2011
Employment Arrangement between the Company andareldBteinberg. Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K (filed

January 26, 201
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10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

211
23.1

23.2

31.1

31.2

32.1

32.2

Employment Agreement between the Company and Midread. Exhibit 10.37 to Form 10-K/A
(filed September 14, 201

Employment Agreement, dated as of October 13, 20dtlyeen Alaska Communications Systi Exhibit 10.5 to Form 10-Q (filed

Group, Inc. and James R. Johns November 5, 201z

Employment Agreement, dated as of September 242, 2@&tween Alaska Communications  Exhibit 10.6 to Form 10-Q (filed
Systems Group, Inc. and David C. Eisenb November 5, 201z

2012 and 2013 Compensation Letter From Alaska Comizations Systems Group, Inc. to Davifxhibit 10.28 to Form 10-K (filed
Eisenberg dated February 12, 20 March 1, 2013

2012 and 2013 Compensation Letter From Alaska Comications Systems Group, Inc. to Exhibit 10.29 to Form 10-K (filed
Wayne Graham dated February 12, 2( March 1, 2013

2012 and 2013 Compensation Letter From Alaska Comizations Systems Group, Inc. to Jamé&shibit 10.30 to Form 10-K (filed
Johnsen dated February 12, 2C March 1, 2013

2012 and 2013 Compensation Letter From Alaska Comigations Systems Group, Inc. to Exhibit 10.31 to Form 10-K (filed
Leonard Steinberg dated February 12, 2( March 1, 2013

2012 and 2013 Compensation Letter From Alaska Comizations Systems Group, Inc. to Exhibit 10.32 to Form 10-K (filed
Michael Todd dated February 12, 20 March 1, 2013

Employment Agreement between Alaska Communicat8ystems Group, Inc., and Anand Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K (filed
Vadapalli entered into on March 29, 20 March 29, 2013

Subsidiaries of the Registre Filed herewitt

Consent of KPMG LLP relating to the audited finaatatements of Alaska Communications Filed herewith
Systems Group, In

Consent of Grant Thornton LLP relating to the aedifinancial statements of Alaska Wireless Filed herewith
Network, LLC

Certification of Anand Vadapalli, President and €Hixecutive Officer, pursuant to Section 30Filed herewith
of the Sarban«-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Wayne Graham, Chief Financial O#i, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarban&#led herewith
Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Anand Vadapalli, President and €Hixecutive Officer, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Filed herewith
Section 1350, as adopted to Section 906 oSarbane-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Wayne Graham, Chief Financial ©Ofi, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, agiled herewith
adopted to Section 906 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 2002
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101.INS XBRL Instance Documer Filed herewitt
101.SCF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum Filed herewitt
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntr Filed herewitt
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurh Filed herewitt
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum Filed herewitt
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent Filed herewitt

**  Confidential treatment of certain portions ofgtexhibit has been granted pursuant to a reqoesbhfidential treatment filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission. Omitted pastimve been filed separately with the Commiss
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or &edtb(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, régistrant has duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theoedly authorized.

Date: March 26, 2014 Alaska Communicatiopst&ns Group, Inc.

By: /s/ Anand Vadapal
Anand Vadapall
President and Chief Executive Offic

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed belptine following persons on behalf of 1
registrant and in the capacities and on the datéisated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ Anand Vadapalli President and Chief Executive Officer and Dire¢Rrincipal March 26, 2014
Anand Vadapall Executive Officer)

/s| Wayne Graham Chief Financial Officer (Principal Accounting Oféic) March 26, 2014
Wayne Grahan

/sl Edward J. Hayes, Jr. Chairman of the Board of Directors March 26, 2014
Edward J. Hayes, J

/s/ Margaret L. Brown Director March 26, 2014
Margaret L. Browr

/s/ David W. Karp Director March 26, 2014
David W. Karp

/sl Peter D. Ley Director March 26, 2014
Peter D. Ley

/s/ Brian A. Ross Director March 26, 2014
Brian A. Ross

/s/ John N. Wanamaker Director March 26, 2014
John N. Wanamak

/sl Carol G Mills Director March 26, 2014
Carol G. Mills

62



Table of Contents

ALASKA COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS GROUP, INC.
INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Alaska Communications Systems Group, Inc

Reports of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Pubticounting Firm F-2
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&0d.201% F-4
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomssjlfor the Years Ended December 31, 2013, 20d2ah1 F-5
Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ Equity (Deficit) for the Years Ended December 3013, 2012 and 201 F-6
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Yeaded December 31, 2013, 2012 and = F-7
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements foiviars Ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and : F-8
Alaska Wireless Network, LLC F-43
Reports of Grant Thorton LLP, Independent Registéheblic Accounting Firn F-44
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, F-45
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomssjlfor the Years Ended December 31, 2 F-47
Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ Equity (Deficit) for the Year Ended December 3112 F-48
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the ¥aaled December 31, 20 F-49
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements foiyisars Ended December 31, 2( F-50

F-1



Table of Contents

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Alaska Communications Systems Group, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Alaska Communications Systems Grogpahd subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related cdasetl statements of comprehensive income (losgktsblders’ equity (deficit), and cash
flows for each of the years in the three-year gkdnded December 31, 2013. These consolidatedcfadastatements are the responsibility of
the Company’s management. Our responsibility exjgress an opinion on these consolidated finastaa&ments based on our audits. We did
not audit the financial statements of Alaska Wssldletwork, LLC (AWN) (a 33 percent owned investempany). The Company’s
investment in AWN at December 31, 2013 was $236,@88 its equity in earnings of AWN was $22,791tfer year ended December 31,
2013. The financial statements of AWN were audiigdther auditors whose report has been furnished tand our opinion, insofar as it
relates to the amounts included for AWN, is bas#dlg on the report of other auditors.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those standard:
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether the finataieiments are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on Blasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digds in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princied and significant estimates made by managenenelaas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the reploother auditors, the consolidated financial stests referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of AlaSlammunications Systems Group, Inc. and subsidiaseof December 31, 2013 and 2012,
the results of their operations and their cash $léov each of the years in the three-year periattdrDecember 31, 2013, in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), Alaska
Communications System’s Group, Inc.’s internal coindver financial reporting as of December 31,2dased on criteria established in
Internal Control— Integrated Frameworkl992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Omgitins of the Treadway Commission (COSO),
and our report dated March 26, 2014 expressed @ualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Compsiinternal control over financial
reporting.

KPMe LLP

Anchorage, Alaska
March 26, 2014
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Alaska Communications Systems Group, Inc.:

We have audited Alaska Communications Systems Giaaps internal control over financial reportiag of December 31, 2013, based on
criteria established imternal Control — Integrated Framewo(#992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Omgditins of the Treadway
Commission (COSO). Alaska Communications SystenmiGrinc.’s management is responsible for maimagimffective internal control over
financial reporting and for its assessment of fifiecéveness of internal control over financial ogjing, included in the accompanying
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over FitariReporting (Item 9A). Our responsibility is tagress an opinion on the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting basedoam audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the staigdof the Public Company Accounting OversightriBq&nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtagasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal corax@r financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing aald&ing the design and operating effectivenesstefnal control based on the assessed risk.
Our audit also included performing such other pdoces as we considered necessary in the circunestave believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableamesuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statets:iéor external purposes in accordance with gelyesatepted accounting principles. A
company'’s internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (ftajmeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettitansactions and dispositions of the assetsofdmpany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatg@aparation of financial statements in accor@anwith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely detectfainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzaneterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal coht@iver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agject to the risk that controls may become inadegjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Alaska Communications Systems Grdéng. maintained, in all material respects, effexinternal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2013, based on aitstiablished internal Control — Integrated Framewo(k992) issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), the consolidated
balance sheets of Alaska Communications SystemgpGitoc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 288132812, and the related consolidatec
statements of comprehensive income (loss), stodkinsl equity (deficit), and cash flows for eachtud years in the three-year period ended
December 31, 2013, and our report, based on oltsaart! the report of other auditors, dated Mai@h2D14 expressed an unqualified opinion
on those consolidated financial statements.

KPMe LP

Anchorage, Alaska
March 26, 2014
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ALASKA COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS GROUP, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2013 and 2012
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

Assets
Current assett
Cash and cash equivalel
Restricted cas
Shor-term investment
Accounts receivable, n-affiliates, net
Accounts receivable, affiliate
Materials and supplie
Prepayments and other current as
Deferred income taxe
Total current asse
Property, plant and equipme
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortize
Property, plant and equipment, |
Goodwill
Intangible assets, n
Debt issuance cos
Deferred income taxe
Equity method investmen
Other asset

Total asset

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)

Current liabilities:

Current portion of lon-term obligations

Accounts payable, accrued and other current ligdsli nor-affiliates

Accounts payable, accrued and other current lizsli affiliates

Advance billings and customer depo:

Total current liabilities

Long-term obligations, net of current porti
Other lon¢-term liabilities
Deferred AWN capacity revent
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingenci
Stockholder' equity (deficit):

Common stock, $0.01 par value; 145,000 authori28¢§80 and 45,765 issued and outstanding at

December 31, 2013 and 2012, respecti'

Additional paid in capita

Accumulated defici

Accumulated other comprehensive |

Total stockholder equity (deficit)

Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity (deficit)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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2013 2012

$ 43,03¢ $ 16,83¢

467 3,87¢

— 2,05(
34,06t 39,69
137 15
10,13 9,40¢
7,30 5,56¢
7,14 8,301
102,28 85,75:
1,344,94! 1,463,32
(992,93) (1,052,45)
352,01 410,86
4,65 8,85(
— 24,11¢
6,92¢ 10,55¢
15,57. 69,04
266,97 2,02¢
502 3,51(

$ 748,92 $ 614,72

$ 14,25¢ $ 21,62¢

55,47 56,37¢
14,70: —
9,10¢ 8,97(
93,53¢ 86,97¢
442,00 533,77.
16,94° 28,66
63,26 —
615,74 649,41(
487 45¢
152,19: 144,37
(13,899 (170,279
(5,609) (9,239
133,17 (34,68

$ 748,92 $ 614,72
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ALASKA COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS GROUP, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (ks)
Years Ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

2013 2012 2011
Operating revenue
Operating revenues, n-affiliates $345,61: $367,57¢  $349,31«
Operating revenues, affiliat: 3,31: 14C —
Total operating revenut 348,92: 367,71« 349,31
Operating expense
Cost of services and sales, -affiliates 138,12 148,12! 135,73.
Cost of services and sales, affilia 25,15¢ 27¢ —
Selling, general and administrati 111,03« 107,31¢ 91,96:
Depreciation and amortizatic 42,19: 51,48: 58,55¢
Gain on disposal of assets, (204,200 (2,669 (565)
Loss on impairment of equity investme 1,267 — —
Earnings from equity method investme (18,05¢6) (115) —
Total operating expens 95,51¢ 304,42( 285,68
Operating incom: 253,40t 63,29« 63,62¢
Other income and (expens
Interest expens (39,790 (39,570 (38,277)
Loss on extinguishment of de (2,370 (57%) (13,445
Interest incomi 53 43 34
Other (13 — 174
Total other income and (expen: (42,12() (40,107) (51,50¢)
Income before income tax exper 211,28t 23,19: 12,11¢
Income tax expens (54,905 (5,789 (11,646
Net income 156,38: 17,40¢ 472
Other comprehensive income (los
Minimum pension liability adjustmel 1,412 (1,107 (997)
Income tax effec (580 452 40¢
Amortization of defined benefit plan lo 717 81¢ 57€
Income tax effec (29€) (336 (237)
Interest rate swap marked to fair va 1,72¢ (1,572 (15,34
Income tax effec (709 64¢€ 6,301
Reclassification of loss on ineffective hec 2,301 292 —
Income tax effec (949 (120 —
Total other comprehensive income (lo 3,63( (920) (9,289
Total comprehensive income (lo¢ $160,01° $ 16,48¢ $ (8,81)
Net income per shar
Basic $ 332 $ 03 §$ 0.0
Diluted $ 27 $ 03 §$ 0.0
Weighted average shares outstand
Basic 47,09: 45,55! 45,10!
Diluted 59,10} 45,87¢ 45,417
Cash dividends declared per common s| $ = $ 0.15C $ 0.69¢

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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ALASKA COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS GROUP, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity (Cfeeit)
Years Ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011

(In Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

Balance, January 1, 2011

Total comprehensive income (lo:

Dividends declare

Stock compensatic

Equity component of convertible note issuance
of tax benefit

Debt issuance, net of tax bent

Tax benefit of convertible note call optic

Extinguishment of convertible note optic

Surrender of shares to cover withholding taxes
stocl-based compensatic

Issuance of common stock, pursuant to stock
plans, $.01 ps

Balance, December 31, 20

Total comprehensive income (lo:

Dividends declare

Stock compensatic

Equity component of convertible note issuance
of tax benefit

Tax benefit of convertible note call optic

Extinguishment of convertible note optic

Surrender of shares to cover withholding taxes on

stocl-based compensatic

Issuance of common stock, pursuant to stock
plans, $.01 ps

Balance, December 31, 20

Total comprehensive incon

Stock compensatia

Tax benefit of convertible note call optic

Surrender of shares to cover withholding taxes on

stocl-based compensatic

Issuance of common stock, pursuant to stock
plans, $.01 ps

Balance, December 31, 20

Accumulated

Other Stockholders’
Common Additional Paid Accumulated Comprehensive

Equity

Shares Stock in Capital Deficit Income (Loss) (Deficit)
4470: $ 447 $ 166,25¢ $(188,16() $ 965 $ (20,489
— — — 472 (9,284 (8,81%)
— — (31,45¢) — — (31,45¢)
— — 3,88¢ — — 3,88¢
— — 8,50( — — 8,50(
— — (309) — — (309)
— — 3,79: — — 3,79z
— — (4,350) — — (4,350
_ — (2,049 — — (2,049
59¢€ 6 352 — — 35¢
45,30( 457 144,63: (187,689 (8,319 (50,929
_ — — 17,40¢ (920) 16,48¢
— — (6,849 — — (6,849
— — 3,55( — — 3,55(
— — 2,53¢ — — 2,53¢
— — 503 — — 503
— — (45) — — (45)
— — (249) — — (249)
465 5 302 — — 307
45,76¢ 45¢ 144,37 (170,279 (9,239 (34,687
— — — 156,38: 3,63( 160,01:
— — 2,86( — — 2,86(
— — 16 — — 16
— — (63€) — — (63€)
2,91¢ 29 5,57¢ — — 5,607
4868 $ 487 $ 152,190 $ (13,89) 3 (5,609 $ 133,17:

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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ALASKA COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS GROUP, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

Cash Flows from Operating Activitie
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activitie:

Depreciation and amortizatic
Gain on sale/contribution of asset to AV
(Gain) loss on the disposal of ass
Loss on the impairment of equity investm
Gain on ineffective hedge adjustmi
Amortization of debt issuance costs and debt dist
Amortization of ineffective hedg
Amortization of deferred AWN capacity reven
Stocl-based compensatic
Deferred income tax expen
Provision for uncollectible accour
Cash distribution from equity method investme
Earnings from equity method investme
Other noi-cash income, ne
Changes in operating assets and liabili

Net cash provided by operating activit

Cash Flows from Investing Activitie

Capital expenditure
Capitalized interes
Change in unsettled capital expenditt
Proceeds on sale of ass
Proceeds on sale/contribution of asset to A
Return of capital from equity investme
Change in unsettled acquisition cc
Net change in shc-term investment
Net change in nc¢-current investment
Net change in restricted accou

Net cash provided (used) by investing activi

Cash Flows from Financing Activitie

Repayments of lor-term debt
Proceeds from the issuance of I-term debt
Debt issuance cos
Payment of cash dividend on common st
Payment of withholding taxes on st-based compensatic
Proceeds from the issuance of common s

Net cash used by financing activiti

Change in cash and cash equival
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of pe

Cash and cash equivalents, end of pe

Supplemental Cash Flow Da
Interest paic
Cash paid on extinguishment of hedging instrun
Income taxes (refunded) paid, |
Supplemental Nc-cash Transaction
Property acquired under capital lea
Dividend declared, but not pa
Additions to ARO ass¢
Exchange of debt with common stc

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement
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2013 2012 2011
$156,38:  $17,40¢ $ 472
42,19: 51,48 58,55¢
(207,319 — —
3,11¢ (2,66¢) —
1,267 — —
(785) (231) —
6,93: 5,97t 12,90;
2,307 292 —
(1,519) — —
2,86( 3,55( 3,88¢
54,90 5,771 11,64¢
1,847 2,58¢ 2,33:
17,84 11F —
(18,056) (115) —
282 292 (109)
5,44: (110) (10,619
67,70 84,35¢ 79,08
(47,739 (54,209 (50,179
(1,926) (1,967) (1,987)
1,49: (2,726) 4,42t
4,747 3,61¢ 2,66¢
100,00 — —
(3,345) (90) (224)
2,037 (2,050) —
— — 52¢
3,40¢ 1,081 (44)
58,67 (56,309) (44,810
(99,565  (19,47) (104,14
— — 120,00
(206) (3,16 (4,44%)
— (9,117) (38,81
(639) (249 (2,049
227 307 35¢
(100,18) (31,709 (29,09)
26,20( (3,65]) 5,171
16,83¢ 20,49( 15,31
$ 4303¢ $16,83¢ $ 20,49
$ 35187 $36,158 $ 34,36
$ 4,07 $ — $ —
$ 6 $ (12 $ (127
$ 171 $ 143 $ 1,90¢
N $ — $  2,26¢
$ 22¢ $ 132 $  48¢
$ 6000 $ — —
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ALASKA COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS GROUP, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Years Ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

1. DESCRIPTION OF COMPANY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICAN T ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Alaska Communications Systems Group, Inc. (“weyr‘t “us”, the “Company”, or “ACS” ), a Delawar@iporation, through its operating
subsidiaries, provides integrated communicatiouises to business, wholesale and consumer custamtrs State of Alaska and beyond
using its statewide and interstate telecommuninatigetwork.

The accompanying consolidated financial statemam@ss of December 31, 2013 and 2012 and for thes wnded December 31, 2013, 2012
and 2011. They represent the consolidated finapoisition, results of operations and cash flowA®@6 and the following wholly owned
subsidiaries:

» Alaska Communications Systems Holdings, I* ACS Holding") « Crest Communications Corporatic‘Cres”)
* ACS of Alaska, LLC.“ACSAK") * WCI Cable, Inc

e ACS of the Northland, LLC.“ACSN") e WCIC Hillshoro, LLC.

» ACS of Fairbanks, LLC.“ACSF") « Alaska Northstar Communications, LL

* ACS of Anchorage, LLC.“ACSA") * WCI Lightpoint, LLC.

* ACS Wireless, Inc.*"ACSW") *  Worldnet Communications, In

* ACS Long Distance, LLC.*ACSLD") « Alaska Fiber Star, LLC

e ACS Internet, LLC.“ACSI")
* ACS Messaging, Inc*ACSM”)
* ACS Cable Systems, LLC*ACSC")

In addition to the wholly-owned subsidiaries, thenfpany owns a 49% interest in TekMate, LLC (“Tek&Tatind a one-third interest in the
Alaska Wireless Network, LLC (“AWN?") which are reggented in the Company’s condensed consolidataddial statements as equity
method investments. See Note Buity Method Investment$tr additional information.

A summary of significant accounting policies folled/by the Company is set forth below.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements and footniotdade all accounts and subsidiaries of the Camia which it maintains a controlling
financial interest. All significant intercompanycatints and transactions have been eliminated. timegds in entities where the Company is
able to exercise significant influence, but notteoln are accounted for by the equity method. Famgactions with entities accounted for under
the equity method, any intercompany profits on amt®still remaining are eliminated. Amounts oriding from any deferral of intercompany
profits are recorded within either the Companyigestment account or the account balance to wheetrémsaction specifically relates (e.g.,
construction of fixed assets). Only upon settlenodrthe intercompany transaction with a third pastyhe deferral of the intercompany profit
recognized by the Company. In the opinion of mansagd, the financial statements contain all normeadurring adjustments necessary to
present fairly the consolidated financial positioamprehensive income (loss) and cash flows fapeatliods presented. Certain reclassification:
have been made to the prior years’ financial statémto conform to the current year presentatitvese reclassifications had no effect on
previously reported results of operations, balasfmet amounts, or cash flows.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith Generally Accepted Accounting Principlegli®e United States (“GAAP”) requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfenetttae reported amounts of assets and liakslgied disclosure of contingent assets anc
liabilities at the date of the financial statemeamsl the reported amounts of revenues and expduoseg the reporting period. Among the
significant estimates affecting the financial sta¢ats are those related to the realizable val@Eaodunts receivable and long-lived assets, the
value of our derivative instruments, the value wf mvestment in AWN and the related deferred AWAparity revenue, our legal
contingencies, stock-based compensation and intaxes. These estimates and assumptions are baseanagement’s best estimates and
judgment. Management evaluates its estimates anoigitions on an ongoing basis using historical Bpee and other factors, including
current economic environment, which managemenetbeti is reasonable under the
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ALASKA COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS GROUP, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Contirad
Years Ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011

(In Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont inued)

circumstances. Assumptions are adjusted as fadtsimumstances dictate. llliquid credit marketslatile equity and energy markets, and
declines in consumer spending, continued unceytaintinterest rates, and political circumstancest@mbined to increase the uncertainty in
such estimates and assumptions. As future evedtthair effects cannot be determined with precisamtual results may differ significantly
from those estimates. Changes in those estimagaking from continuing changes in the economiciemment will be reflected in the
financial statements of future periods.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the “Consolidated Balance Sheeid™@onsolidated Statements of Cash Flows”, the gamg generally considers all highly
liquid investments with a maturity at acquisitiofitloree months or less to be cash equivalents.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash as of December 31, 2013 consi§i46) held in certificates of deposits as requineder the terms of certain contracts to w
the Company is a party. When the restrictionsiétezl| the Company will transfer these funds intodperating accounts.

Short-term | nvestments

For purposes of the “Consolidated Balance Sheetd™@onsolidated Statements of Cash Flows”, the gamyg considers highly liquid
investments with a maturity at acquisition of mtran three months but less than one year to bé-trar investments. These investments are
classified as available for sale and are statéleat estimated fair market value. Income earnethese investments while held is classified as
interest income.

Trade Accounts Receivable and Bad Debt Reserves

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at thedadamount and do not bear interest. Amounts deliiean trade accounts receivable are
included in net cash provided by operating actsiiin the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.Cldmpany does not have any béffance
sheet credit exposure related to its customers Cidmpany evaluates its bad debt as a single pardgoice all of our companies primarily
operate within Alaska and are subject to the sasnaamic and risk conditions across industry segmantl geographic locations within
Alaska. The Company establishes estimated badrdséitves against uncollectible receivables incudtgthg the period. These estimates are
derived through a monthly analysis of account agirgjiles and a review of historical recovery expece. Receivables are charged off agains
the allowance when management believes the untatiiity of the receivable is confirmed. Subsequerbveries, if any, are credited to the
allowance. The Company records bad debt expenseamponent of “Selling, general and administraéixpense” in the “Consolidated
Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)”.

Materials and Supplies

Materials and supplies are carried in inventorthatlower of weighted average cost or market. Glasys related to the sale of inventory,
primarily wireless devices and accessories, afleded in operating activities in the Company’s “Golidated Statements of Cash Flows”.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Telephone property, plant and equipment are sttbistorical cost of construction including cemtabpitalized overhead and interest charges
Renewals and betterments of telephone plant attatiapd, while repairs, as well as renewals of onilems, are charged to cost of sales and
services as incurred. The Company uses a groupasitagepreciation method in accordance with ingystactice. Under this method,
telephone plant, with the exception of land andtehfeases, retired in the ordinary course of bess, less salvage, is charged to accumulate
depreciation with no gain or loss recognized. Nelegthone plant is stated at historical cost inclgdiertain capitalized overhead and interest
charges, and when sold or retired a gain or losscisgnized. Depreciation of property is providedite straight-line method over estimated
service lives ranging from 2 to 50 years.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont inued)

The Company is the lessee of equipment and buidimgler capital leases expiring in various yeanmuth 2033. The assets and liabilities
under capital leases are initially recorded atitheer of the present value of the minimum leasenpayts or the fair value of the assets at the
inception of the lease. The assets are amortizedtbe lower of their related lease terms or thieneged productive lives. Amortization of
assets under capital leases is included in depi@tiand amortization expense.

The Company is also the lessee of various landlibgiand personal property under operating legseeaments for which expense is
recognized on a monthly basis. Increases in reate$ are recorded as incurred which approximagesttaight-line method.

The Company capitalizes interest charges assoaidgthaonstruction in progress based on a weightextage interest cost calculated on the
Company’s outstanding debt.

Asset Retirement Obligations

The Company records liabilities for obligationsated to the retirement and removal of long-liveseés The Company records, as liabilities,
the fair value of asset retirement obligations aliseounted basis when they are incurred, whitppieally at the time the asset is installed or
acquired. The obligations are conditional on theuoence of future events. Uncertainty about threniy or settlement of the obligation is
factored into the measurement of the liability. Amts recorded for the related assets are incrégstite amount of these obligations. Over
time, the liabilities increase due to the changthéir present value, the potential changes inraptians or inputs, and the initial capitalized
assets decline as they are depreciated over thid liteof the related assets. The liabilities arentually extinguished when the asset is taker
out of service.

Non-operating Assets

The Company periodically evaluates the fair valfigsonon-current investments and other non-opegadissets against their carrying value
whenever market conditions indicate a change inftiavalue. Any changes relating to declineshie fair value of non-operating assets are
charged to non-operating expense under the cafiiithrer” in the “Consolidated Statements of Comprediee Income (Loss)”.

Equity Method of Accounting

Investments in entities where the Company is abkxercise significant influence, but not contesk accounted for by the equity method.
Under this method, our equity investments are edrat acquisition cost, increased by the Compgmyportionate share of the investee’s net
income, and decreased by the investee’s net logsesour proportional ownership interest and adistributions. The Company evaluates its
investments in equity method investments for impaint whenever events or changes in circumstandesate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. The Company evaluates whethesteach equity method investment is able to ggaend sustain sufficient earnings an
cash flows to justify its carrying value.

Deferred AWN Capacity Revenue

As part of the AWN transaction, the Company conitiélol certain network usage rights necessary for Ald/dperate the Alaska network.
These rights have been fair valued and the regultibility was recorded ibeferred AWN Capacity revenirethe “Consolidated Balance
Sheets”. This balance is being amortized on agditdine basis to revenue in the “ConsolidatedeStegnts of Comprehensive Income (Loss)”,
over the 20 year contract period for which the Camphas contracted to provide service.

Goodwill and Other I ntangible Assets

Gooduwill is assessed for impairment annually orerfoequently if events or changes in circumstaigisate potential impairment. The
Company may first assess qualitative factors terd@he whether it is more-likely-than-not that trearying value of its single reporting unit
exceeds its fair value. If this assessment indéctitat it is more-likely-than-not that the carrywaue of the reporting unit exceeds its fair
value, a two-step quantitative assessment willdvepteted. The first step consists of comparingctimeying value of the reporting unit with its
estimated fair value. The Company determines ttimated fair value of its reporting unit utilizirggdiscounted cash flow valuation technique.
Significant estimates used in the valuation inclagémates of future cash flows, both future shemt and long-term growth rates and the
estimated cost of
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont inued)

capital for purposes of determining a discountdadf the carrying value of the reporting unit eeds its estimated fair value, the Company
will determine the implied fair value of its goodinand an impairment loss will recognized to théee the carrying value of goodwill exceeds
the implied fair value.

Other indefinite-lived intangible assets, consigtif licenses for wireless spectrum, are statewsitand are not amortized but are assessed f
impairment annually or more frequently if eventbanges in circumstances indicate potential inmpexit.

Long-lived Asset | mpairment

Long-lived assets, such as property, plant, anébetgnt, and purchased intangible assets subjeghtitization, are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances irdibat the carrying amount of an asset may nott@verable. If circumstances require a
long-lived asset or asset group be tested for plessnpairment, the Company first compares undiatedicash flows expected to be generate
by that asset to its carrying amount. If the cangyamount of the long-lived asset is not recoverabl an undiscounted cash flow basis,
impairment is recognized to the extent that theyaag amount exceeds its fair value. Fair valudatermined through various valuation
techniques including discounted cash flow modaisted market values and third-party independentaaggds. Impairment is displayed in the
caption operating expenses on the Company’s Cataeli Statements of Comprehensive Income (LosS).

Debt | ssuance Costs and Discounts

Debt issuance costs, including underwriter’'s faes @her associated costs, are capitalized andtaeito interest expense using the straight:
line method, which approximates the effective ias¢method over the term of the related instrumérabt discounts are accreted to interest
expense using the effective interest method.

Preferred Stock

The Company has 5,000 shares of $0.01 par valderprd stock authorized, none of which were issuregutstanding at December 31, 2013
and 2012.

Revenue Recognition

Substantially all recurring non-usage sensitiveiserrevenues are billed one month in advance esmdeferred until earned. Nogeurring an
usage sensitive revenues are billed in arrearsasnrecognized when earned. Certain of the Companyidled products and services,
primarily in wireless, have been determined todanue arrangements with multiple deliverablesallainsideration received in these
arrangements is allocated and measured usingafratscounting within the arrangement based oniveldair values. Wireless offerings
include wireless devices and service contractstegjdther in the Company’s stores and agent latsitibhe device and accessories associate
with these direct and indirect sales channelseregnized at the time the related wireless degis®id and is classified as equipment sales.
Monthly service revenue from the majority of then@fany’s customer base is recognized as servicasmdered. Revenue earned from the
Company'’s Lifeline customer base is less certathianherefore recognized on the cash basis as gratgnare received.

The Company also receives high cost support amdasisd on estimated spending amounts, estimatézheerscounts and other factors,
which are subject to final reporting and tug-mechanisms, many times in future reporting pistid\s of December 31, 2013 these reserve
$3,921. Reserves are released to revenue or peggutatory agencies based on external triggemegits that change management’s
assessment of the overall outcome of retentiohexd received amounts.

Concentrations of Risk

Verizon Wireless (“Verizon”), the Company’s primaigaming partner outside of Alaska and a custommewhich it provides roaming services
in Alaska, accounted for 13.6% and 16.4% of the @amy’s consolidated revenues in 2013 and 2012eotisply. Total roaming revenue
accounted for 11.5% and 15.0% of the Company'saataed revenues in 2013 and 2012, respectivedyofAluly 22, 2013, the date of the
formation of AWN, these revenues will be recordgdWWN. For additional information regarding the AWNansaction, See Note FEquity
Method Investmen.” No other customers represent a material conagatr of risk.
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Years Ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont inued)

Although, for the first four years of AWN's operaitis, the distributions we receive from AWN are prehtial to us, we rely on management o
AWN to generate sufficient free cash flow (“FCFY)ppay those distributions. AWN's cash flows areeféd by many factors, such as network
quality, ongoing network rationalization, the numbéretail customers served by GCI and AWN, Venisoongoing build out of its Alaska
network and other factors, most of which are beyaundcontrol. For the period July 23, 2013 to DebenB1, 2013, our preferred distribution
represents 40.8% of AWN'’s FCF. AWN'’s operating mawes are significantly impacted by roaming rever(@8sl% of AWN’s revenues for
the period July 23, 2013 to December 31, 2013) nfRiog revenue is generated through charges to tineless providers whose customers
traveled within our coverage areas. With the clfs@WN these arrangements and the related revemue gontributed to AWN. This revenue
stream is affected by many events, including seaigpriue to Alaska's summer tourist season, Vearigmngoing entry into the Alaska marl
the migration from 3G to 4G handsets and AWN'sigbib successfully renew expiring agreements aggbtiate new ones. Significant
declines in roaming revenue may place pressureWN'A ability to execute its business plan, provigdenpetitive service, and pay its
distributions to ACS.

Cash is maintained with several financial instdns. Deposits held with banks may exceed the anwfinsurance provided on such deposits
and the Company enters into arrangements to cllate these amounts with securities of the undegl§inancial institutions. Generally, these
deposits may be redeemed upon demand. The Compamphexperienced any losses on such deposits.

The Company also depends on a limited number gfl®rp and vendors for equipment and servicest§anétwork, and in the case of systems
one of the Company’s billing platforms is providau a hosted basis. The Company’s subscriber bakeparating results could be adversely
affected if these suppliers experience financiaredit difficulties, service interruptions, or ettproblems.

As of December 31, 2013, approximately 65% of tbenfBany’s employees are represented by the Interr@dtBrotherhood of Electrical
Workers, Local 1547 (“IBEW"). The Master CollectiBargaining Agreement (“CBA”) between the Compang ¢he IBEW expires on
December 31, 2015. The CBA provides the terms anditions of employment for all IBEW representedpdoyees working for the Company
in the state of Alaska and have significant ecomampacts on the company as it relates to wagebandfit costs and work rules that affect
ability to provide superior service to our customdrhe Company considers relations with the IBEWawe improved in 2013, resulting in
several cost saving initiatives; however any detation in the relationship with the IBEW would fea& negative impact on the Company’s
operations.

The Company provides voice, broadband and manadgecbmmunication services to its customers througAtaska. Accordingly, the
Company’s financial performance is directly inflged by the competitive environment in Alaska, idahg the entrance of Verizon into the
Alaskan retail telecom market in 2013, and by ecaicdactors specifically in Alaska. The most sigeait economic factor is the level of
Alaskan oil production since the state is almosirely dependent on this resource for its geneparating revenue. Other factors influencing
the Alaskan economy include the level of tourismyernment spending, and the movement of UniteceStailitary personnel. Any
deterioration in these factors would likely haveegiative impact on the Company’s performance.

As an entity that relies on the FCC and state edgny} agencies to provide stable funding sourcesduide services in high cost areas, the
Company is also impacted by any changes in reguigir future funding mechanisms that are beingbished by these regulatory agencies.
In 2013, 11.4% of the Company’s revenues were ddrftom Universal Service Fund funding for wirel€smpetitive Eligible
Telecommunications Carriers (“CETC”) and high cagbport for wireline carriers. Although the Compapntinues to receive CETC funding,
as of July 22, 2013, those funds are remitted toNA&¥d are recorded in Operating expense — affiiat¢he “Consolidated Statements of
Comprehensive Income (Loss)”. Funding mechanismaiiffh cost loop support are undergoing substaatiahges with the FCC that will
impact our level of funding as well as future obtigns we must meet as a condition to that funding.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont inued)

The company, like most other businesses, is inorg@igsvulnerable to cyber threats. While the comphas several mitigating policies and
technologies in place, including some insurancesage, it is not possible to prevent every posshisleat to our network and IT systems.

Advertising Costs

The Company expenses advertising costs as incuktabrtising expense totaled $5,918, $6,204 andéiibin 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively and is included in “Selling, genenadl @dministrative expense” in the Company’s “Coitlsteéd Statements of Comprehensive
Income (Loss)".

Income Taxes

The Company utilizes the asset-liability methododounting for income taxes. Under the asset-ltghiitethod, deferred taxes reflect the
temporary differences between the financial ancbtssis of assets and liabilities using the enatetedates in effect in the years in which the
differences are expected to reverse. Deferreddssta are reduced by a valuation allowance toxtemethat management believes it is more-
likely-thannot that such deferred tax assets will not bezedliThe Company evaluates tax positions takerpeated to be taken in the cot
of preparing its financial statements to determimether the tax positions are “more-likely-than*raftbeing sustained by the applicable tax
authority. The Company records interest and persaftr underpayment of income taxes as incomexperese.

Taxes Collected from Customers and Remitted to Government Authorities

The Company excludes taxes collected from custoaraipayable to government authorities from reveiages payable to government
authorities are presented as a liability on therf€ttidated Balance Sheets”.

Regulatory Accounting and Regulation

Certain activities of the Company are subject te ragulation by the FCC for interstate telecomroation service and the Regulatory
Commission of Alaska (“RCA”") for intrastate and &dexchange telecommunication service. The Compyequired by the FCC, accounts
for such activity separately. Long distance sewiockthe Company are subject to regulation as adomninant interexchange carrier by the
FCC for interstate telecommunication services &edRCA for intrastate telecommunication servicegeld'ss, Internet and other noommon
carrier services are not subject to rate regulation

Derivative Financial | nstruments

The Company does not enter into derivative cordrimtspeculative purposes. The Company recogaitesset or liability derivatives at fair
value. The accounting for changes in fair valueoistingent on the intended use of the derivativkitdesignation as a hedge. Derivatives
are not hedges are adjusted to fair value throaghiregs. If a derivative is a hedge, dependinghemature of the hedge, changes in fair value
either offset the change in fair value of the hebgssets, liabilities or firm commitments througinreéngs, or are recognized in other
comprehensive income (loss) until the hedged tiwsais recognized in earnings. On the date avd#vie contract is entered into, the
Company designates the derivative as either arédire or cash flow hedge. The Company formally sss& both at the hedge’s inception and
on an on-going basis, whether the derivativesdahaused in hedging transactions are highly effedti off-setting changes in the fair values ol
cash flows of hedged items. If the Company deteesithat a derivative is not highly effective asedde or that it has ceased to be a highly
effective hedge, the Company discontinues hedgeuating prospectively. The change in a derivatifaisvalue related to the ineffective
portion of a hedge is immediately recognized imegys. Amounts recorded to accumulated other congmsve income (loss) from the date
the derivative’s inception to the date of ineffeetiess are amortized to earnings over the remaiamgof the hedged item. If the hedged item
is settled prior to its originally scheduled datey remaining accumulated comprehensive incoms)(lssociated with the derivative
instrument is reclassified to earnings. Terminatba derivative instrument prior to its schedusedtlement date may result in charges for
termination fees.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont inued)

Dividend Policy

The Company’s dividend policy is set by the CompsuBoard of Directors and is subject to the termgsoSenior Credit Facility, as amended,
and the continued current and future performancddigaidity needs of the Company. Dividends on @@mmpany’s common stock are not
cumulative to the extent they are declared. Irfitlsethree quarters of 2011 the Company’s BoarBioéctors declared a quarterly cash
dividend of $0.215 per share of common stock, 08&@er share on an annualized basis. The Bodbitettors reduced the quarterly cash
dividend payment to $0.05 per share effective enfturth quarter of 2011. In the fourth quarte612, the Board of Directors suspended the
cash dividend and there are currently no planeittstate the dividend. Further, the payment of cigldends is not permitted under the terms
of our 2010 Senior Credit Facility agreement ustith time that the Company’s Total Leverage Ratiwoit more than 3.50 to 1.00. As of
December 31, 2013, the Company’s Total LeveragmRats 3.94 to 1.00.

Share-based Payments
Restricted Stoc

The Company determines the fair value of restristedk based on the number of shares granted argutited market price of the Company’s
common stock on the date of grant, discounted$tmated dividend payments that do not accruedethployee during the vesting period.

Performance Share Unit*PSUs")

The Company measures the fair value of each newd&®dch reporting period and records adjustedrsepattributable to such period based
on changes to the expected performance periodrordiue of the Company’s common stock, or if tH& R otherwise vest, expire, or are
determined by the Compensation Committee to bdeiglto vest prior to expiration. Compensation engeeis recorded over the expected
performance period.

Stock-settled Stock Appreciation Rights (“SSARs”)

The Company computes the fair value of each SSAReadlate of grant using the same Black-Scholeingrimethodology that its uses to
compute the fair value of a stock option on the @any’s common stock.

Stock Options

The fair value for each stock option granted wéisreded at the date of grant using a Black-Schopemn pricing model. Expected volatilities
are based on historical volatilities of the Compargommon stock; the expected life represents thightesl average period of time that opti
granted are expected to be outstanding giving densfion to vesting schedules and the Companyteridal exercise patterns; the dividend
yield is based on dividend yield of the optionksrprice at grant date; and the risk free interast on the grant date, is based on the lowes
effective Federal Funds interest rate stated btierd of Governors of the Federal Reserve Sys&tatk options have not been granted since
2005.

Employee Stock Purchase PIZESPP ")

The Company makes payroll deduction from 1 to 15%ompensation from employees who elect to pamigipn ESPP. A liability accretes
during the 6-month offering period and at the efthe offering period (June 30and December 3%), the Company issues the shares fron
2012 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (2012 ESPPmheosation expense is recorded based upon theagstimumber of shares to be
purchased multiplied by the discount rate per share

Tax Treatment

Stock-based compensation is treated as a tempdiffagence for income tax purposes and increasts el tax assets until the compensation
is realized for income tax purposes. To the extatrealized tax benefits exceed the book basegbensation, the excess tax benefit is
credited to additional paid in capital.

Pension Benefits
Multi-employer Defined Benefit Plan

Pension benefits for substantially all of the Comy's Alaski-based employees are provided through the Alaskarigial Pension Fund. Tt



Company pays a contractual hourly amount basedmmiogee classification or base compensation. Tlearaalated benefits and plan assets
are not determined for, or allocated separatelyhtjndividual employer.

F-14



Table of Contents

ALASKA COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS GROUP, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Contirad
Years Ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011

(In Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont inued)
Defined Benefit Pla

The ACS Retirement Plan, which is the Company’s sotlgleemployer defined benefit plan, covers certain eygeds previously employed

a predecessor to one of our subsidiaries, Centeligphone Enterprise, Inc., and is frozen. The Compecognizes the under-funded status of
this plan as a liability on its balance sheet agabgnizes changes in that funded status in theigeghnich the changes occur. The ACS
Retirement Plan’s accumulated benefit obligatiothésactuarial present value, as of the Compangseber 31, 2013 measurement date,

of all benefits attributed by the pension benefitiula. The amount of benefit to be paid dependa number of future events incorporated
the pension benefit formula, including estimatethefaverage life of employees or survivors andagyeyears of service rendered. It is
measured based on assumptions concerning futemesttrates and future employee compensation levatecognized prior service credits
and costs and net actuarial gains and losses@rgmzed as a component of other comprehensiveniacoet of tax.

Defined Contribution Plai

The Company provides a 401(k) retirement savinga pbvering substantially all of it employees. Dé$imnary company-matching
contributions are determined by the Board of Divext

Earnings per Share

The Company computes earnings per share base@ ovetghted number of shares of common stock armdieél potential common share
equivalents outstanding. This includes all issusdl @utstanding share-based payments.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2012, the FASB issued ASU No. 2012402angibles — Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Tagtindefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for
Impairment(“ASU 2012-02"). This ASU permits an entity first assess qualitative factors to determine whethgmore-likely-than-not that
an indefinite-lived intangible asset is impairedaasasis for determining whether it is necessapetform the quantitative impairment test in
accordance with Subtopic 350-30. The more-likelgrtmot threshold is defined as having a likelihobdhore than 50 percent. If an entity
determines that it is more-likely-than-not thatiagefinitedived intangible asset is impaired, the fair vahfiehe asset is to be compared witt
carrying value. If the carrying value exceeds thiealue, an impairment loss is recognized inaimunt of that excess. An entity also has the
option to bypass the qualitative assessment prduigeASU 2012-02 for any indefinitésed intangible asset in any period and proceeectly

to performing the quantitative impairment test. étity will be able to resume performing the qualite assessment in any subsequent perio
ASU 2012-02 is effective for annual and interim aiyment tests performed for fiscal years beginrifigr September 15, 2012, or the
Company’s 2013 fiscal year. Early adoption is péedi The Company elected to adopt ASU 2012-0Rerfourth quarter of 2012 in
conjunction with its annual assessment of indeditiited intangible assets other than goodwill.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013@2nprehensive Income (Topic 220): Reporting of AntwReclassified Out of
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Inc((*ASU 2013-02"). This ASU does not change the catrequirements for reporting net income or
other comprehensive income, but does require atditinformation about the amounts reclassifiedafgtccumulated other comprehensive
income by component. An entity is required to pnésggnificant amounts reclassified out of accurtadaother comprehensive income by the
respective line items of net income if the amowatassified is required under GAAP to be reclasdifo net income in its entirety in the same
reporting period. ASU 2013-02 is effective prospegty for reporting periods beginning after Decemb®, 2012 and was adopted by the
Company in the first quarter of 2013. The requidestiosures are presented in Notéadr Value Measurements.

Recently | ssued Accounting Pronouncements

As of December 31, 2013, there were no recentlyeidsiccounting standards the future adoption ofkwisi expected to have a material effect
on the Company'’s future financial condition andutessof operations.
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2. ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

The following table summarizes the activity in aceuated other comprehensive loss for the twelvetimanded December 31, 2012 and

2013:
Defined
Benefit
Pension Interest
Plans Rate Swaps Total
Balance, December 31, 2011 $ (3,329 $ (4999) % (8,319
Other comprehensive loss before reclassificat (64¢) (92€) (1,579
Reclassifications from accumulated comprehensisg 1o net
income 482 172 654
Net other comprehensive lc (16€) (7549 (920)
Balance, December 31, 20 $ (349) $ (5749 $ (9239
Other comprehensive loss before reclassificat 832 1,01¢ 1,851
Reclassifications from accumulated comprehensiss 1o net
income 421 1,35¢ 1,77¢
Net other comprehensive lc 1,25: 2,371 3,63(
Balance, December 31, 20 $ (2,235 $ (3,37) % (5,609

The following table summarizes the reclassificatimom accumulated other comprehensive loss tinceme for the twelve months ended

December 31, 2011, 2012, and 2013, respectively:

2013 2012 2011
For the twelve months ended December
Amortization of defined benefit plan pension itei®)
Amortization of los<3) $ 717 $ 81¢ $ 57€
Income tax effec (29€) (336) (237)
After tax 421 482 33¢
Amortization of loss on ineffective interest raveap: (2
Reclassification to interest exper 2,301 292 —
Income tax effec (949) (120 —
After tax 1,35¢ 172 —
Total reclassifications net of income 1 $ 1,77¢ $ 654 $ 33¢

@
@

®  Included in sales and selling, general and adnnatise expense

See Note 1 Retirement Plar” for additional information regarding the Comp’s pension plan:
See Note ¢ Fair Value Measuremer” for additional information regarding the plan tonénate this sway

The estimated amount of accumulated other compsdhetoss to be reclassified to interest expenseinvihe next twelve months is $1,424.
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3. EQUITY METHOD INVESTMENTS
The following table provides the Company’s owngpshiterest and investment in TekMate and AWN atddelger 31, 2013 and 2012:

Interest 2013 2012
TekMate, LLC 49% $ 8532 $2,02¢
Alaska Wireless Network, LL¢ 33% $266,11¢ $ —

TekMate

On August 31, 2010, the Company acquired a 49%dstén TekMate for $2,060. The Company’s investnieekMate is accounted for
under the equity method as the Company has signifinfluence over TekMate. The price paid to aagthe Companyg share of the net ass

of TekMate differs from the underlying book valuets interest in TekMate’s net assets. This premaf $1,641 is accounted for as
unamortized equity method goodwill and is inclugéthin the “Equity method investments” on the “Colidated Balance Sheets.” The
investment represents the Company’s maximum expdsupss as a result of the Company’s ownershgrést. In the twelve-month period
ended December 31, 2013, the Company'’s intereBtkiMate’s income was $93 and TekMate made no ciastibditions to the Company. At
December 31, 2013, there were no undistributedregsnThe Company recorded $115 and $0 of equityirgs to Operating revenues in 2(
and 2011, respectively. As of December 31, 201RMete had made cash distributions to the Compatajing $147, including $32
representing distributions in excess of the Comfgatymulative share of TekMate's earnings. Thisesscdistribution was recorded as a returt
of capital in the “Consolidated Statement of Cakiwg.”

Subsequent to year-end on January 31, 2014, theo@onpurchased the remaining 51% interest in TekNtatthe following consideration:
« $800, payable in cash or the Comp’s common stock at the Compi’'s option, on or about May 15, 2014 a

* Zero to $700, payable in cash on or about M&8i2015, subject to the attainment of certairenee projections in 2014 and
certain other terms regarding the founders of TelkMemaining employed with ACS for a specified pérof time.

Using this subsequent market transaction as itis basletermine fair value, the Company has reasskthe value of its original 49% equity
interest in TekMate, and has recorded an impairrdeatge of $1,267 in the “Consolidated Statemeh@omprehensive Income (Loss)” under
the caption “Loss on impairment of equity investiieRor more information on this impairment see &ldfair Value Measures.

In 2014, the Company will cease to report TekMatamequity method investment and will consolidisteperations into Alaska
Communications Systems Group, Inc.

AWN

On July 22, 2013, the Company and General Commtimigdnc. (“GCI”) completed the transactions cang#ated by the June 4, 2012 Asset
Purchase and Contribution Agreement (the “ContrilouAgreement”) between themselves, two of thespeetive subsidiaries (the “ACS
Member” and the “GCI Member”) and AWN for the pusggoof combining their wireless networks into AWN.

Pursuant to the Contribution Agreement, the ACS Mensold certain wireless assets to the GCI Merfdyex cash payment of $100,000. The
GCI Member then contributed these assets, togetitleIGCl's wireless assets, to AWN in exchangeddwo-thirds membership interest in
AWN. The ACS Member contributed the Company’s véssl assets that were not sold to GCI to AWN in argk for a one-third membership
interest in AWN.

At the closing, the parties to the AWN transactmtered into the First Amended and Restated Opegraiijreement of The Alaska Wireless
Network, LLC (the"Operating Agreement”) and other related agreemwehish will govern the ongoing relationship amohg parties. Under
the terms of the Operating Agreement, AWN will banaged by its majority owner, GCI, subject to darfaotective rights retained by the
Company and representation of one of three sea#8\diN's Board. Accordingly, ACS has the ability taexcise significant influence over
AWN and accounts for its investment under the gqui¢thod in accordance with ASC 3R®estments—Equity Method and Joint Ventures
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3. EQUITY METHOD INVESTMENTS (Continued)

The Operating Agreement provides that the ACS Mearisbentitled to a cumulative preferred cash distiion of up to $12,500 of Adjusted
Free Cash Flow, as defined in the agreement, in ebihe first eight quarters after closing and 850 in each of the eight quarters thereafter
(ACS'’ preference period). Such preferred cashibigtions will be made on a monthly basis. GCl Memb#él receive distributions of the
Adjusted Free Cash Flow in excess of the prefedistiibutions in each quarter during ACS’ prefereperiod. The distributions to each
member are subject to certain adjustments basel@ceases in the number of ACS Member and GCI Megtections, with the aggregate
adjustment capped at $21,800 for each member beaespective testing periods for each membehéend of ACS’ preference period and
payment of accumulated preference amounts, disivitsiwill be made in accordance with membershierasts. Since inception through
December 31, 2013 the Company has received casibdiins from AWN of $17,844.

A national valuation firm was engaged by ACS and @Gssist in the determination of the fair vatdéAWN including the preferred
distribution and the allocation of the purchase®tb the assets and liabilities. At the time vedfour Form 10-Q and 1Q/A for the three an
nine months ended September 30, 2013, the firmigedva preliminary valuation subject to review dmdher input from both GCI and ACS.
Based upon our latest correspondence with the tiatueirm our estimate, which includes the valudltd preferred distributions, now stands a
$266,000.

The assets sold or contributed included spectraem$ies and wireless switching and transmissiorpaerit having a carrying value on the
Company'’s books of $90,500. Additionally, the Compaontributed certain network usage rights negggssaoperate the combined Alaska
state-wide network contributed to AWN. Using therkvperformed by the national valuation firm notdmbae, these rights have been fair
valued and the resulting liability was recorded\ccounts payable and other accrued liabilitieaffliatesandDeferred AWN Capacity rever

in the “Consolidated Balance Sheets”. This balasdeing amortized on a straight-line basis to nexeein the “Consolidated Statements of
Comprehensive Income (Loss)”, over the 20 yearreghperiod for which the Company has contractegrtwide service. Cost to maintain our
state-wide network are not maintained at a levalpafcificity that would allow us to determine angremental direct costs associated with
providing capacity to AWN. For the period from J@$, 2013 to December 31, 2013, the Company anedrt4,512. In future twelve month
periods, the Company will amortize approximatelyd83 annually.

Contributed liabilities included certain assetnestient obligations and the obligations arising urde contributed contracts and direct third-
party data circuit costs provided by tariff or pusse orders after the closing date.

In accordance with the Operating agreement, ACSrasmber of AWN is required to purchase its whdéeséreless services from AWN. As
these services are performed they are recordepeaating revenue by AWN and Cost of services atessaaffiliate by ACS.

In accordance with ASC 810-10, paragraph 4De6onsolidation the Contribution Agreement and the Operating Agrent cannot be
bifurcated and are treated as a single transaftircsccounting and financial reporting purposescakdingly, the sale by ACS of certain
wireless assets to GCI, the contribution by AC®tbEr certain wireless assets directly to AWN, #iredacquisition of one-third interest,
including the preferred distribution, in AWN by AG8e accounted for as a single transaction.

During 2013, the Company recorded a pre-tax gab0f7,318 representing the gain on the sale ofl@siseassets to GCI and the contribution
of wireless assets to AWN. Approximately $83,20@hef pre-tax gain relates to ACS’ one-third retdimeerest in its wireless assets
sold/contributed to AWN.
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3. EQUITY METHOD INVESTMENTS (Continued)

The following table represents the calculationhaf gain:

Consideration receive:

Investmen $266,00(
Cash 100,00(
Total consideration receive 366,00(
Consideration providec
Net intangible and tangible ass 90,50(
Deferred AWN Capacity revent 68,18:
Total consideration provide 158,68.
Gain on disposal of ass¢ $207,31¢

In the twelve-month period ended December 31, 28(8cifically July 23, 2013 through December 31,20he Company’s share of AWN’s
adjusted free cash flow was $22,011, of which $44 ®as received during the period and $4,167 wabwi¢hin the 12-day contractual
period. The Company'’s equity in earnings of AWNnfrduly 23, 2013 to December 31, 2013 was $17,963.

Summarized financial information on AWN is as folls

December 3.

2013
Current Assets $ 119,68:
Non-Current Asset $ 549,91:
Current Liabilities $ 72,24:
Non-Current Liabilities $ 20,57(
Equity $ 576,78:
Inception to
December 3.

2013
Operating Revenues $ 118,91t
Gross Profit $ 86,20
Operating Incom: $ 56,54
Net Income $ 56,34:
Adjusted Free Cash Flo®) $ 53,97¢

(1) Adjusted free cash flow is defined in the Operatugeement

The excess of ACS’ investment in AWN over the Compsshare of net assets in AWN is estimated t82#%331 at December 31, 2013. This
difference represents the increase in basis o6tbeMember’s contribution to AWN, as AWN is accoumngt for the GClI membes’ contributior

at carryover basis and ACS is accounting for éstimated fair value. Approximately 88.1% of thaddnce represents an increase in the ba
GClI's depreciable contributed assets and will bersized over the estimated remaining useful livethese assets. The remaining difference i
not amortized; however, the investment in AWN ialgmed for impairment. No impairment has been réedron ACS’ investment of AWN to-
date.

AWN and TekMate are organized as limited liabittyrporations and are flow-through entities for imeotax purposes.
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3. EQUITY METHOD INVESTMENTS (Continued)

The following table provides a reconciliation AWNttal equity and ACS’ equity method investmenbBecember 31, 2013:

AWN total equity as reporte $576,78:
Less amount attributed to G 339,99
Amount attributed to AC! 236,78t
Plus:
Step-up in basis of GCI contribution attributaldedCS, net of
Amortization of FV adjustmer 33,94:
Difference in distributior 4,167
Less:
Difference in preliminary estimate of fair val (3,950
Difference in income allocation meth (4,829
ACS investment in AW $266,11¢

4. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Company has developed valuation techniquesihgsen observable and unobservable inputs to @akethe fair value of non-current
monetary assets and liabilities. Observable inpeftect market data obtained from independent ssuand unobservable inputs reflect interna
market assumptions. These two types of inputs eithat following fair value hierarchy:

e Level 7—Quoted prices for identical instruments in activarkets.

» Level 2—Quoted prices for similar instrumentsactive markets, quoted prices for identical orilsir instruments in markets that
are not active, and mocderived valuations whose inputs are observablehmse significant value drivers are observa

» Level =—Significant inputs to the valuation model are ureslable.

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents,ictsdrcash, short-term investments, net accountivable, and payable, other short-term
monetary assets and liabilities and capital leappsoximate their carrying values due to their ratlihe non-monetary consideration
exchanged in the Company’s deconsolidation, refettéde AWN transaction, has been valued usingiplaelvaluation methods using
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3). Impainnef the equity method investment in Tekmate waseld on a valuation method using the
acquisition price to purchase the remaining 51%eainip interest in Tekmate adjusted by a 5% cdimgpinterest premium and applying that
fair value on a pro-rata basis to the existing 4996ty method investment. The fair value used §icarit unobservable inputs (Level 3). The
fair value of the Company’s 2010 Senior Credit Fggiconvertible notes and other long-term obligas of $436,909 at December 31, 2013,
were estimated based on dealer quoted prices (1¢v&he carrying values of these liabilities widb6,257 at December 31, 2013.

Fair Value Measurements on a Recurring Basis

Financial assets and liabilities are classifiethmfair value hierarchy in their entirety basedtomlowest level of input that is significant teet
fair value measurements. The Company’s assessr#rg significance of a particular input to therfe@lue measurements requires judgment
and may affect the valuation of the assets andlitiab being measured, as well as their level waitthe fair value hierarchy.
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4. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

The following table presents the liabilities measlat fair value on a recurring basis as of Decer@be2013 and 2012 at each hierarchical
level. There were no transfers into or out of Levkeland 2 during 2013.

December 31, 201 December 31, 201,
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level & Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 2
Other lon¢-term liabilities:
Interest rate sway $(3,239) $ — $(3,239) $ — $(9,819) $ — $(9,819) $ —

Derivative Financial | nstruments

Prior to the AWN transaction, the Company had tHieaging-to-fixed interest rate swaps to manageaide interest rate risk. The notional
amount of these swaps was $192,500, $115,500 ah@®Y with interest rates of 6.963%, 6.970% and®®, respectively, inclusive of a
4.5% LIBOR spread. The swaps began on June 30, 2@d 2xpire on September 30, 2015. At low LIBORs$apayments under the swaps
increased the Company’s cash interest expense.

On November 1, 2012, the effective date of the atmemnt to the Company’s Senior Credit Facility, asda result of the incremental $65,000
AWN transaction principal payment on the term loaquired by this amendment, it was determinedtti@swap in the notional amount of
$192,500 no longer met the hedge effectivenesarizriinder ASC 81Berivatives and HedgingAccordingly, hedge accounting treatment
discontinued prospectively on this swap effectiveémber 1, 2012, and subsequent changes in thealai were recognized as interest
expense. Amounts recorded to other comprehenssgeflom the date of the swap’s inception througtoBer 31, 2012 were amortized to
interest expense over the period of the originatiyeduled interest payments. On July 19, 2013, wheCompany received final approval
from the SEC regarding the investment companytbetAWN transaction moved from “possible” to “pralel’ and triggered the movement of
$707 from other comprehensive loss to loss on xtiaguishment of debt, representing the portiothef $192,500 swap that was over-hedged
when the $65,000 payment was made. The remainingiainwill be amortized from other comprehensives ltisinterest expense over the life
of the term loan. The $192,500 swap was settleflugrust 1, 2013 for $4,073 in cash and, simultankgotise marked-to-market resulted in an
adjustment to interest expense of $231.

In conjunction with the November 1, 2012 amendmima,notional amount of the two remaining swaps$rks,500 and $77,000 with interest
rates of 7.220% and 7.225%, respectively, inclusiva 4.75% LIBOR spread. The outstanding amoumi@fwo remaining swaps as of
period-end are reported on the balance sheetratdiie, represented by the estimated amount tinep@ny would receive, or pay, to terminate
the swaps. They are valued using models basedadily®bservable market parameters for all subistbtatrms of the contracts and are
classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierbyc

The following table presents information about flleating-to-fixed interest rate swaps at Decemter2913 and 2012 which are included in
“Other long-term liabilities” on the balance shaatl for the twelve-month periods ending Decembef813 and 2012:

2013 2012
Beginning Balance at January 1, $9,81¢ $8,47¢
Reclassified from other long-term liabilities tocamulated other
comprehensive los (1,727 1,57z
Change in fair value credited to interest expe (785) (237)
Cash paid on extinguishment of hedging instrun (4,079 —
Ending Balance at December . $ 3,23¢ $9,81¢
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4. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

Fair Value Measurements on a Non-recurring Basis
No impairment of lon-lived assets was recognized during 2013, 201Ddd 2

TekMate Impairment

The Company recorded impairment of its equity métimwvestment in TekMate in the fourth quarter o£2@or $1,267 and is included in the
caption “Loss on impairment of equity investment’tbe “Consolidated Statement of Comprehensivenira@@oss)”. See Note 3Equity
Method Investmen” for a discussion of this impairment.

Fair Value of AWN

As described in Note Bquity Method Investments national valuation firm was engaged by ACS @l to assist in the determination of the
enterprise fair value of AWN and the allocatiorttoé purchase price to the assets and liabilities.avé in the process of finalizing this
valuation which is anticipated to be completedhwy time we file our Form 10-Q for the period endiéaich 31, 2014. The estimate of fair
value of the Company’s interest in AWN is $266,@0@ the contributed network usage rights are $&8,1IBe estimates may be adjusted upo
finalization. The deferred AWN capacity revenueresgnts the value of the capacity contributionstaedperations and maintenance suppor
of these facilities. The benefit of this deferredenue will be recognized over 20 years.

The following table represents certain valuatiathtéques used to measure the fair value of sud¢huments, and the significant unobservable
inputs and values for those inputs:

Estimated Valuation Level 3 Significant
Descriptior Fair Value Technique Unobservable Input Input Values
Investment in AWN $266,00(  Discounted Cash Flow Weighted Average Cost of  7.8% - 11.5%
Capital
Annual cash flow projectior ~ $50,000- $65,00C
Non-controlling interest 0.00%
discount
Deferred AWN Capacity $ 68,18 Cost/Replacement Value  Weighted Average Cost of  11.50%
Revenue Capital
Cost trend facto 1.00%- 2.17%

Estimated % used by AW 4%-100%

Historical cost of underlying Actual cost
asset:
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5. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Accounts receivable—trade consists of the follonandpecember 31, 2013 and 2012:

2013 2012
Retail customers $28,31¢ $27,67¢
Wholesale carrier 3,74¢ 4,76¢
Other 8,19:¢ 13,49
40,25¢ 45,92¢
Less: allowance for doubtful accoul (6,199 (6,23])
Accounts receivab—trade, ne $34,06¢ $39,69¢

Allowance for doubtful accounts consists of thédaing at December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011.

2013 2012 2011
Balance, as of December 31, $ 6,231 $5,78¢ $6,61¢
Provision for uncollectible accour 1,84 2,58¢ 2,33:
Charged to other accour 2 (D) 2
Deductions (1,889 (2,149 (3,159
Balance, as of December ¢ $ 6,19¢ $ 6,231 $ 5,78¢
6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment consist of the foillgrat December 31, 2013 and 2012:
2013 2012 Useful Lives
Land, buildings and support assets* $ 222,21! $ 256,55( 3-42
Central office switching and transmissi 374,50! 375,00: 2-12
Outside plant cable and wire faciliti 699,71¢ 690,92: 10- 50
Wireless switching and transmissi — 86,90(
Other 3,147 2,977 2-5
Construction work in progre: 45,36¢ 50,96¢
1,344,94! 1,463,32
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortize (992,939 (1,052,45)
Property, plant and equipment, | $ 352,01 $ 410,86:

* No depreciation charges are recorded for i

Capitalized interest associated with constructioprogress for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2nd 2011 was $1,926, $1,961, and
$1,982, respectively. The capitalization rate usad based on a weighted average of the Compamygstésm debt outstanding and for the
years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011.8a%87.27%, and 7.18%, respective

The following is a summary of property held undapital leases included in the above property, mantequipment at December 31, 2013
2012:

2013 2012

Land, buildings and support assets $19,89: $ 23,07
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortize (8,196 (11,309
Property held under capital leases, $11,69: $ 11,772
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6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Amortization of assets under capital leases inaudalepreciation expense for the years ended DieeeB1, 2013, 2012, and 2011 was
$1,827, $1,934 and $1,662, respectively. Futuréemmim payments, including interest, under theseeleéar the next five years and thereafter
are as follows:

2014 $ 1,71¢
2015 1,27:
2016 1,29
2017 87¢
2018 687
Thereaftel 6,98¢
12,83¢

Interest (5,57¢)
$ 7,257

The Company leases various land, buildings, rightrays and personal property under operating legseements. Rental expense under
operating leases for the years ended Decembei038, 2012 and 2011 was $9,785, $9,997 and $9,&5pectively.

Future minimum payments under these leases fandkefive years and thereafter are as follows:

2014 $ 6,55
2015 6,27¢
2016 5,88
2017 5,08:
2018 4.87%
Thereaftel 38,06

$66,73:

7. ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

The Company’s asset retirement obligation is inetlith “Other long-term liabilities” on the “Consdéited Balance Sheets” and represents the
estimated obligation related to the removal angafial of certain property and equipment (includiagteries) in both leased and owned
properties. As part of the AWN transaction in Jofy2013 the Company settled $3,048 in ARO obligaticelated to removal costs of certain
cell sites.

The following table outlines the changes in theuatglated retirement obligation liability:

2013 2012
Balance, December 31, $ 6,94: $6,58¢
Asset retirement obligatic 22¢ 132
Accretion expens 31C 405
Settlement of obligation (77€) (180)
Transfer of obligation to AW! (3,04¢) —
Balance, December 3 $ 3,657 $6,94:
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8. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

In the third quarter of 2013 as part of the AWNsaction the Company performed an assessmentgdatbwill and bifurcated the balance
between the business being sold to AWN and thenbasibeing retained resulting in the retireme$4200 in goodwill.

On October 1, 2013, the Company conducted a gtiaitassessment of its remaining goodwill. Thiseasment indicated that it was not more-
likely-than-not that the carrying value of its dimgeporting unit exceeded its fair value. Accoglyn the Company concluded that its goodwiill
was not impaired as of the assessment date.

Additionally, as part of the AWN transaction, alltbe Company’s other intangible assets were soidfibuted to AWN during 2013 and the
Company no longer holds any indefinite-lived inténig assets. The Company’s wireless spectrum leshad contract terms of ten years, but
were renewable indefinitely through a routine pescimvolving a nominal fee. These fees were exmkasencurred.

The original carrying value and accumulated impaintof the Company’s goodwill and other indefiriteed intangible assets at December
2013, 2012 and 2011 was as follows:

2013 2012 2011
Goodwill:
Original carrying valut $ 38,40: $ 38,401 $ 38,40:
Accumulated impairmer (29,557 (29,557 (29,557
Retirement due to AWN transacti (4,200 — —
Balance $ 4,65( $ 8,85( $ 8,85(
Indefinite lived intangible asse $ — $24,11¢ $24,11¢

9. CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable, accrued and other current liadsli non-affiliates consist of the following atd@enber 31, 2013 and 2012:

2013 2012
Accounts payable—trade $20,84: $24,75(
Accrued payroll, benefits, and related liabilit 18,011 16,98¢
Other 16,61: 14,63¢

$55,47¢ $56,37¢

Advance billings and customer deposits consisheffbllowing at December 31, 2013 and 2012:

2013 2012
Advance billings $8,38¢ $8,30¢
Customer deposit 71¢ 665

$9,10¢ $8,97(
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10. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
Long-term obligations consist of the following a¢€mber 31, 2013 and 2012:

2013 2012

2010 senior credit facility term loan due 2016 $345,90( $431,20(
Debt discour—2010 senior credit facility term loan due 2( (1,687 (2,796
6.25% convertible notes due 2C 114,00( 120,00(
Debt discour—6.25% convertible notes due 2C (9,219 (11,607
5.75% convertible notes due 2C — 12,98(
Debt discour—5.75% convertible notes due 2C — (1149
Capital leases and other lc-term obligations 7,251 5,732

456,25 555,40(
Less current portio (14,256 (21,62%)
Long-term obligations, net of current porti $442,00: $533,77.

The aggregate maturities of long-term obligatiasrseflach of the next five years and thereafter,eatenber 31, 2013, are as follows:

2014 $ 14,31(
2015 15,42«
2016 318,79¢
2017 44C
2018 114,28
Thereaftel 3,90(

$467,15

6.25% Convertible Notes due 2018

On May 10, 2011, the Company closed the sale 0 ®0D aggregate principal amount of its 6.25% Cdihle Notes due 2018 (“6.25%
Note¢") to certain initial purchasers in a private plaant. The Company received net proceeds from tleeing of $115,636 after underwriter
fees and other associated costs. The Company ysadi@n of the proceeds to repurchase $98,34@pahamount of its 5.75% Convertible
Notes due 2013'5.75% Notes”) at a premium of $6,874. In connattiath the repurchase, the Company recognizedsadnsxtinguishment
of debt of $13,445 for the difference between teeaarrying amount of the notes and the repurchasaint.

The 6.25% Notes are fully and unconditionally guéead (“Note Guarantees”), on a joint and sevanakaured basis, by all of the Company’s
existing subsidiaries, other than its license glibges, and certain of the Company’s future dorestbsidiaries (“Guarantors”). The 6.25%
Notes will pay interest serannually on May 1 and November 1 at a rate of % 2®r year and will mature on May 1, 2018.

The 6.25% Notes will be convertible at an initiahgersion rate of 97.2668 shares of common stocE&p©00 principal amount of the 6.25%
Notes, which is equivalent to an initial converspite of approximately $10.28 per share of comstock. The Company may not redeem
6.25% Notes prior to maturity.

Beginning on February 1, 2018, the 6.25% Noteslé@ltonvertible by the holder at any time untillb@m., New York City time, on the
second scheduled trading-day immediately precefiegtated maturity date.

Prior to February 1, 2018, holder may convert t125% Notes:

» During any fiscal quarter beginning after J38¢ 2011 following any previous fiscal quarter ihieh the trading price of the
Company’s common stock equals or exceeds 130%eafdhversion price of the 6.25% Notes for at |@8@stradingdays during thi
last 30 tradin-days of the previous fiscal quart

» During any five business day period followingydive trading-day period in which the tradingqgeriof the 6.25% Notes is less than
98% of parity value on each day of that five trg-day period; an
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10. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

» Upon the occurrence of certain significant cogte transactions, holders who convert their 6.2&%es, in connection with a
change of control, may be entitled to a make-wipoéanium in the form of an increase in the conversaie. In addition, upon a
change in control, liquidation, dissolution or gdélig, the holders of the 6.25% Notes may reqhieeGompany to repurchase for
cash all or any portion of their 6.25% Notes fo@%of the principal amount plus accrued and unpdatest.

As of December 31, 2013, none of the conditiorsndhig holders of the 6.25% Notes to convert, ounéag the Company to repurchase the
6.25% Notes, had been met.

Additionally, the 6.25% Notes contain events ofadéff which, if they occur, entitle the holders b&16.25% Notes to declare them to be
immediately due and payable. Those events of defallide: (i) payment defaults on either the ndbtesnselves or other large obligations;
(i) failure to comply with the terms of the notesid (iii) most bankruptcy proceedings.

The 6.25% Notes are unsecured obligations, subatetinn right of payment to the Compasgbligations under its 2010 Senior Credit Fac
as well as certain hedging agreements within thaning of the Company’s 2010 Senior Credit Facilltge 6.25% Notes also rank equally in
right of payment with all of the Company’s otheisting and future senior indebtedness and are seni@ht of payment to all of the
Company'’s future subordinated obligations. The Natarantees are subordinated in right of paymetitdd@suarantors’ obligations under the
Company’s 2010 Senior Credit Facility as well agaia hedging agreements within the meaning ofGbmpanys 2010 Senior Credit Facilit

Convertible debt instruments that may be settlethsh upon conversion, including partial cashesgigiht, must be accounted for by bifurca
the liability and equity components of the instruntsein a manner that reflects the entity’s non-@stisle debt borrowing rate when interest
cost is recognized in subsequent periods. The Coyngaplied this rate to the $120,000 6.25% Not#srdating the notes into the liability
portion and the equity portion attributable to tdomversion feature of the notes. In doing so, tam@any used the discounted cash flow
approach to value the debt portion of the notes. @sh flow stream from the coupon interest paysnamdl the final principal payment were
discounted at 8.61% to arrive at the valuationg Thmpany used 8.61% as the appropriate discotnafi@r examining the interest rates for
similar instruments issued in the same time fraonesiimilar companies without the conversion featilitee equity component of the 6.25%
Notes was $8,500, net of a tax benefit of $5,

Further, while it is the Company’s intent to settie principal portion of this debt in cash, unther provisions of ASC 26&arnings per Share
(“ASC 260”), the Company must use the “if convettetethod in calculating the diluted earnings pearsheffect of the assumed conversion of
the contingently convertible debt. Under the “ihgerted” method, the after tax effect of intereqiense related to the convertible securities is
added back to net income and the convertible defésumed to have been converted into common atdbk earlier of the debt issuance date
or the beginning of the period. The Company'’s cotiie debt was anti-dilutive for the twelve momteriods ended December 31, 2012 and
2011 but is included in the computation of dilutiBS for the twelve months ended December 31, 2013.

The Company’'s Board of Directors has authorizedsseance of up to 4,700 common shares for thercbpse of its convertible notes. This
Board of Director’s authorization expired DecemBgr 2013. On August 29, 2013, the Company delivaretiissued 698 common shares in
exchange for the retirement of $2,500 aggregatejmal amount of 6.25% convertible notes due 2@8September 10, 2013, the Company
delivered and issued 1,203 common shares in exelfanghe retirement of $3,500 aggregate princgmabunt of 6.25% convertible notes due
2018.

The following table includes selected data regaydime 6.25% Notes as of December 31, 2013 and 2012:

2013 2012
Net carrying amount of the equity compon $ 7,782 $ 8,191
Principal amount of the convertible no $ 114,00( $ 120,00(
Unamortized debt discou $ 9,21: $ 11,60:
Amortization period remainin 52 month 64 month
Net carrying amount of the convertible na $ 104,78 $ 108,39¢
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10. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

The following table details the interest componafitthe 6.25% Notes contained in the Company’s ‘Sidated Statements of
Comprehensive Income (Loss)” for the year endecebBder 31, 2013 and 2012:

2013 2012
Coupon interest expense $7,37¢ $7,507
Amortization of the debt discou 1,874 1,741
Total included in interest expen $9,25:2 $9,24¢

2010 Senior Secured Credit Facility

In the fourth quarter of 2010, the Company completéransaction whereby it entered into its $470,@010 Senior Credit Facility and used
$440,000 of term loan borrowings under that fagilibgether with available cash on hand, to repdyli and redeem the $425,889 of
outstanding principal under the Company’s 2005@erriedit facility, together with interest accrubeéreon, to unwind three interest rate swap
agreements associated with the 2005 senior craiity at a cost of $11,145 and pay underwritéistounts and transaction fees and expens
associated with the refinancing transaction. Then@any recorded a $13,339 loss on the extinguishofedebt in 2010.

The 2010 Senior Credit Facility was amended effediiovember 1, 2012. As discussed below, certamg®f the amendment were effective
immediately and certain terms are effective upamsammation of the AWN Transaction.

The $440,000 term loan outstanding under the S&redit Facility was recorded net of a 1.0% dis¢pan$4,400, of the debt issuance.
Quarterly principal payments equal to 0.25% ofdhginal principal balance, or $1,100, were dueileigg in the first quarter of 2011.
Quatrterly principal payments increase to $1,8253@3 and $3,675 in the quarters beginning Janua2913, 2014 and 2015, respectively, anc
decrease to $3,300 in the quarter beginning Jariy#916.

The Senior Credit Facility also includes a $30,88@lving credit agreement, which was undrawn adexfember 31, 2013. Outstanding let
of credit totaling $1,880 were committed againg #mount as of December 31, 2013 and the Compasipat¢cess to an additional $13,120 of
unused letters of credit.

Prior to consummation of the AWN Transaction, tiertloan and revolving credit agreement, to themdrawn, bore interest at a rate of
LIBOR plus 4.0% with a LIBOR floor of 1.5%. In aadance with the November 1, 2012 amendment, thatiegiinterest rates of LIBOR plus
4.0% increased 25 basis points every other montinglthe period March 31, 2013 through July, 22120Jpon consummation of the AWN
Transaction, the Company made a $65,000 princigainent and the interest rate of the term loan emdiving credit agreement increase to
LIBOR plus 4.75% with a LIBOR floor of 1.5%. Therte loan matures on October 21, 2016 and the revgleredit agreement matures on
October 21, 2015 unless accelerated pursuant évemt of default or as described below. The RevdFagility shall be available on a
revolving basis during the period commencing onoBet 21, 2010 and ending five (5) years after thsirg date, unless otherwise agreed by
the required Lenders and as described below.

The credit facilities also provide for events ofaiét customary for credit facilities of this typgacluding non-payment, defaults on other debt,
misrepresentation, breach of covenants, represemadnd warranties, and insolvency and bankrupttter the occurrence of an event of
default and for so long as it continues, the Adstnative Agent or the Requisite Lenders, as defindgtle Credit Agreement, may increase the
interest rate then in effect on all outstandinggailons by 2.0%. Upon an event of default relatimgnsolvency, bankruptcy or receivership,
the amounts outstanding under the credit faciliwiésbecome immediately due and payable and thdde commitments will be automatically
terminated. Upon the occurrence and continuatiamgfother event of default, the Administrative Agand/or the Requisite Lenders may
accelerate payment of all obligations and termitta¢e_enders’ commitments under the credit faesiti
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10. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

In connection with the Senior Credit Facility, tBempany entered into forward floating-to-fixed st rate swaps and a buy back of the 1.59
LIBOR floor, as a component of its cash flow hedgstrategy. The notional amounts of the swaps $&82,500, $115,500 and $77,000 with
interest rates of 6.463%, 6.470% and 6.475%, reéispdg inclusive of a 4.0% LIBOR spread. The swapgan on June 30, 2012 and were
expected to continue through September 30, 201prdtect against movements in LIBOR prior to tretsof the swaps, the Company
acquired an interest rate cap at a cost of $11théoperiod between December 31, 2010 and Juri203@, capping LIBOR at 3.0% on a
notional principal amount of $385,000. On Novembg2012, the effective date of the amendment taCiapanys Senior Credit Facility, ar
as a result of the incremental $65,000 AWN transagirincipal payment on the term loan requiredtby amendment, it was determined that
the swap in the notional amount of $192,500 no éomget the hedge effectiveness criteria. The $T8Pswvap was extinguished and settled or
August 1, 2013 for $4,073 in cash. The portionmfalized losses on this swap was recorded to adatwa other comprehensive loss, from
the swap’s inception through the date hedge acewytreatment was discontinued (November 1, 204:2), amounts associated with the
variable rate interest payments underlying the lacated $65,000 principal payment, were reclagbifteloss on extinguishment of debt. The
amount of this reclassification was $707. The rerna balance of amounts recorded to accumulategt abmprehensive loss associated with
this hedge will be amortized to interest expensr tive period of the remaining originally desigialtedged variable rate interest payments.
The notional amount of the two remaining swaps$rEs,500 and $77,000 with interest rates of 7.220%7.225%, respectively, inclusive of
a 4.75% LIBOR spread.

The Senior Credit Facility contains a number ofriesve covenants and events of default, includiogenants limiting capital expenditures,
incurrence of debt and payment of cash dividendgntent of cash dividends is not permitted untilhstime that the Company’s Total
Leverage Ratio as defined is not more than 3.3006. As of December 31, 2013, the Company’s Tieeakbrage Ratio was 3.94 to 1.00. The
Senior Credit Facility also requires that the Compachieve certain financial ratios quarterly.

Substantially all of the Company’s assets, inclgdimose of its subsidiaries, have been pledgedlsseral for the Senior Credit Facility.

5.75% Convertible Notes due 2013

On April 8, 2008 the Company closed the sale of5§1@0 aggregate principal 5.75% Notes due Mar@913. The 5.75% Notes were sold
private placement pursuant to Rule 144A under #muBties Act of 1933. The Company received neteeals from the offering of $110,053
after underwriter fees, the convertible note heggeceeds from the warrant and other associated.cds discussed above, in May 2011, the
Company utilized proceeds from the sale of its G 28otes to repurchase $98,340 principal amourt@bt75% Notes. The outstanding
balance of the 5.75% Notes was paid in cash iffitstequarter of 2013.

The following table includes selected data regaydime 5.75% Notes as of December 31, 2012;

2012
Net carrying amount of the equity compon $ 1,46
Principal amount of the convertible no $ 12,98(
Unamortized debt discou $ 114
Amortization period remainin 2 month:
Net carrying amount of the convertible no $ 12,86¢

The following table details the interest componeaftthe 5.75% Notes contained in the Company’s ‘Sidated Statements of
Comprehensive Income (Loss)” for the years endezkBer 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively:

2013 2012
Coupon interest expense $ 12 $1,25¢
Amortization of the debt discou 114 1,06(
Total included in interest expen $ 23¢€ $2,31¢
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10. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

Capital Leases and Other Long-term Obligations

The Company is a lessee under various capitaldesse other financing agreements totaling $7,2%57%732 with a weighted average
interest rate of 8.92% and 8.25% at December 313 20id 2012, respectively and have maturities tit@2033.

Debt | ssuance Costs

The Company capitalized $206 in debt issuance @ostsred in connection with the amendment to ési6r Credit Facility in 2013. In 2011,
the Company capitalized $4,364 in debt issuances @osurred in the sale of its 6.25% Notes. The Gany also capitalized $3,167 and $84 in
debt issuance costs incurred in obtaining its 28d8ior Credit Facility in 2012 and 2011, respedyivAmortization of debt issuance costs,
included in “Interest expense” in the “Consolidagtdtements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)” andrteg in the “Consolidated Statements
of Cash Flows” for 2013, 2012 and 2011, was $3,826164 and $3,073 (inclusive of a write off of(Rll9 in debt issuance costs on the
repurchase of its 5.75% Notes), respectively.

Debt Discounts

Accretion of debt discounts in the “Consolidatedt&ments of Cash Flows” for 2013, 2012 and 2011e#$8,096, $3,811 and $9,834
(inclusive of a write off of $5,352 in debt discdsion the 5.75% Notes), respectively.

11. INCOME TAXES
The income tax provision for the years ended Deeer8h, 2013, 2012 and 2011 was comprised of thevfoig charges:

2013 2012 2011
Current:
Federal income ta $ — $ — $ —
State income ta — (12 —
Total current benef — (12 —
Deferred:
Federal income ta (42,169 (7,222) (4,247
State income ta (14,630 (2,149 (1,899
Change in valuation allowan: 1,90( 3,60( (5,500
Total deferred expens (54,909 (5,77)) (11,64¢)
Total income tax expen: $(54,909) $(5,787) $(11,646)

The following table provides a reconciliation oétfederal statutory tax at 35% to the recordeddarense) benefit for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively:

2013 2012 2011
Computed federal income taxes at the statutory(Eatpense) benefit in ta>

resulting from: $(73,95() $(8,117) $ (4,24))
State income taxes (net of federal ben: (12.887) (864) (2,100
Other 17¢ 167 (58¢)
Stocl-based compensatic (44) (35 (32
Valuation allowanct 1,90(C 3,06¢ (4,684

Crest examination settleme 29,89« — —
Total income tax expen: $(54,90¢ $(5,787) $(11,64¢)
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11. INCOME TAXES (Continued)

The Company accounts for income taxes under thet-ability method. Deferred income taxes refléw net tax effects of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assetdiabilities for financial reporting purposesiaghe amounts used for income tax purpa
Valuation allowances are provided when it is “miikely than not” that the benefits of existing deéal tax assets will not be realized in a
future period. Significant components of the Compsaudeferred tax assets and liabilities as of Ddwen31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, are
as follows:

2013 2012
Deferred tax asset
Net operating loss carry forwar $ 88,96 $ 81,03:
Property, plant and equipme — —
Reserves and accru: 11,19( 10,86:
Intangibles and goodwi 6,62: 2,03i
Fair value on interest rate swe 2,35: 4,01C
Pension liability 1,73¢ 3,33¢
Allowance for doubtful accoun 2,54t 2,561
Alternative minimum tax carry forwai 5,06¢ 2,261
Other 1,25¢ 614
Total deferred tax asse 119,73t 106,71:
Valuation allowanct — (1,900
Deferred tax assets after valuation allowa 119,73t 104,81:
Deferred tax liabilities
Debt issuance cos (3,37¢) (4,65))
Crest outside tax basis differer — (18,660)
Property, plant and equipme (21,63) (4,15))
AWN Investmeni (72,019 —
Total deferred tax liabilitie (97,020 (27,469
Net deferred tax ass $ 22,71¢ $ 77,35(

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company decdoa valuation allowance of $0 and $1,900, resgayt During the year ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company recordbdrage in valuation allowance of ($1,900) and (#3)6respectively. As of

December 31, 2013, the Company has available fededastate alternative minimum tax credits of $8,and $417, respectively, which have
no expiration dates. As of December 31, 2013, thm@ny has unused acquired and generated federatate net operating loss carry
forwards of $224,393 and $199,645, respectivelyickvhave various expiration dates beginning in 20t8ugh 2033.

Acquired unused operating loss carry forwards aaset with the Company’s acquisition of Interneagka, Inc. in June 2000 and Crest in
October of 2008 are limited by Section 382 of thieinal Revenue Code.

Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code imposesianal limit on the ability of loss corporatiomst undergo an “ownership change”. This
limitation restricts the amount of operating loses can be used to reduce its future taxablemmec@®n December 7, 2005, the Company
underwent an ownership change thereby subjectitogtite Section 382 loss limitation rules.

In 2008, the Company acquired Crest. In June 2@IRS commenced an audit of Crest's tax retusnghie years ended December 31,
2006, December 31, 2007 and October 30, 2008. hil &pd November of 2010, the IRS issued NoticeBmiposed Adjustment (“NOPAS")
with respect to the 2006, 2007 and 2008 taxablesy&faCrest. The NOPAs assess the Company foriaddittaxable income on cancellatior
debt and related attribute reduction, for accuratgted penalties and for adjustments to the &attnent of optical cables, fibers and related
conduit. In accordance with the guidance in ASC irdihe second quarter of 2010, the Company rech$@8,678 in additional income tax
expense and $2,781 receivable pending resolutitimeofatter. The Company did not recognize anyesteor penalties on the deferred tax
liability. During June 2013, the Company receiveth@ change’letter from the IRS covering all of the issues #adyears of Crest. As a res
the Company reversed the prior recorded items armgnized a tax benefit of $29,894 during the guahding June 30, 2013.
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11. INCOME TAXES (Continued)

The Company files either consolidated income téurns or tax returns of certain subsidiaries in ynstate jurisdictions. As of December 31,
2013, the Company is not under examination by angme tax jurisdiction. The Company is no longdajact to examination for years prior to
2010.

The Company accounts for income tax uncertaintsésgua threshold of “more-likely-than-nati accordance with the provisions of ASC Tc
740,Income Taxe§'ASC 740"). As of December 31, 2013, the Company has revieWed is tax filings and positions taken on itaums ani
has not identified any material current or futuife& on its consolidated results of operationshc#iows or financial position. As such, the
Company has not recorded any tax, penalties or@sit®n tax uncertainties. It is Company policyadoord any interest on tax uncertainties as
component of income tax expense.

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings per share are based on weighted averageenwf shares of common stock and dilutive poaggtmmon shares equivalents
outstanding. Basic earnings per share includesiatiath and is computed by dividing net income @sd available to common shareholders by
the weighted average number of common shares adtatafor the period. Diluted earnings per shafiecethe potential dilution of securities
that could share in the earnings of the Compang.Gbmpany includes dilutive stock options basetheritreasury stock method.” Excluded
from the calculation were options and SSARs totpfid and 311 which were out-of-the-money and tloeesnti-dilutive at December 31,
2013 and 2012, respectively. Also excluded fromadleulation were shares related to the Companys% Notes which were anditutive for
the twelve month periods ended December 31, 20d28h1, and shares related to the Company’s 6.268sNvhich were anti-dilutive for
the twelve month periods ended December 31, 20d28h1. However, for the twelve months ended Deezrh, 2013, the 6.25% Notes are
included in diluted earnings per share. The Compa®g the “if converted” method in calculating tlileted earnings per share effect of the
assumed conversion of the contingently convertiellet. Under the “if converted” method, the after eédfect of interest expense related to the
convertible securities is added back to net incamethe convertible debt is assumed to have beareded into common stock at the earlie
the debt issuance date or the beginning of thegeri

The following table sets forth the computation abic and diluted earnings per share for the yeadtsdDecember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011:

2013 2012 2011

Net income applicable to common she $156,38: $17,40¢ $ 47z
Tax-effected interest expense attributable to convertibtes 5,81 — —
Net income assuming dilutic $162,19: $17,40¢ $ 47z
Weighted average common shares outstani

Basic share 47,09: 45,55 45,10:

Effect of stoc-based compensati 53C 32t 314

Effect of 6.25% convertible nott 11,48¢ — —
Diluted share: 59,101 45,87¢ 45,41°
Earnings per shar
Basic $ 3.32 $ 0.3¢ $ 0.01
Diluted $ 274 $ 0.3¢ $ 0.01
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13. STOCK INCENTIVE PLANS

Under the Compang’stock incentive plan, ACS, through the Compeaosaiind Personnel Committee of its Board of Dires;toray grant stoc
options, restricted stock, stock appreciation sgirtd other awards to officers, employees, conssltand non-employee directors. Upon the
effective date of the Alaska Communications Syst&@raup, Inc. 2011 Incentive Award Plan (“2011 Inbem Award Plan”), the Alaska
Communications Systems Group, Inc. 1999 Stock hineilan and the ACS Group, Inc. 1999 Non-Emplo@ector Stock Compensation
Plan, (together the “Prior Plans”) were retired. fAture awards will be granted from the 2011 IncenAward Plan. The Alaska
Communications Systems Group, Inc. 2012 Employeek3Purchase Plan (*2012 ESPP”) was approved bZdmpany’s shareholders in
June 2012 and the ACS 1999 Employee Stock Purdhiasg“1999 ESPP”) was retired on June 30, 201f1i@Bces to “stock incentive plans”
include, as applicable, the 2011 Incentive Awa@hPthe 2012 ESPP, the 1999 ESPP and the Prics.Aaraggregate of 15,210 shares of the
Company’s common stock have been authorized faaisse under its stock incentive plans.

2011 I ncentive Award Plan

On June 10, 2011, ACS shareholders approved thk [2@&ntive Award Plan which terminates in 2021lldwaing termination, all shares
granted under this plan, prior to termination, wohtinue to vest under the terms of the grant wawearded. All remaining unencumbered
shares of common stock previously allocated tdPthier Plans were transferred to the 2011 IncerAiward Plan. In addition, to the extent that
any outstanding awards under the Prior Plans afeited or expire or such awards are settled ith,caisch shares will again be available for
future grants under the 2011 Incentive Award Pldre Company grants Restricted Stock Units and Reefnce Stock Units as the primary
equity based incentive for executive and certaimuaoion represented employees.

Stock-Settled Stock Appreciation Rights and Stqutlofs

SSARs were issued to certain former named execaffieers in 2008 and 2009. The SSARs vested ratiddobugh April 2011 and had a term
of five years. All SSARs have fully vested and haeen exercised or expired as of December 201E5Rs have been issued since 2009

and no stock options have been granted to empl@mes 2005. There were no proceeds from the eseeofistock options for the year ended
December 31, 2013.

The following table summarizes the SSAR and stqutioa activity for the year ended December 31, 2013

Weighted Weighted
Average Aggregate
Number of Average Remaining
Exercise Intrinsic
Shares Price Life Value
Outstanding, December 31, 2012 311 $ 8.6€
Granted — —
Exercisec — —
Canceled or expire (287) 8.9¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 24 5.3¢€ 0.57 $ —
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 24 $ 5.3¢€ 0.57

Restricted Stock Units, Lo-term Incentive Awards and Non-employee DirectocStCompensation

Restricted Stock Units (“RSU") issued prior to Dexteer 31, 2010 vest ratably over three, four or figars, RSUs issued in 2011 vest ratably
over three years, and RSUs granted in 2012 vestenyear or ratably over three years. Long-terrarntige awards (“LTIP”") were granted to
executive management annually through 2010. Th&lawards cliff vest in five years with acceleratedting in three years if cumulative
three year profitability criteria are met. Sincaudary 2008, the Company has maintained a policghlvhequires that non-employee directors
receive a portion of their annual retainer in thierf of ACS stock. Noemployee director stock compensation vests whemegpgaThe directo
make an annual election on whether to have thé& $$saed or to have it deferred.
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13. STOCK INCENTIVE PLANS (Continued)

The following table summarizes the RSU, LTIP and-employee director stock compensation activitytfia year ended December 31, 2013:

Weighted
Number of Average

Fair

Shares Value
Nonvested at December 31, 2( 1,29; $ 5.3¢
Granted 74C 1.91
Vested (1,039 4.47
Canceled or expire (54 6.5
Nonvested at December 31, 2(C 94€ $ 3.5¢

Performance Based Uni

PSUs vest ratably over three years beginning agithet date, subject to certain Company finaneiadéts being met and approval of the
Compensation and Personnel Committee of the Bdabirectors.

The following table summarizes PSU activity for hear ended December 31, 2013:

Weighted
Number of Average

Fair

Shares Value
Nonvested at December 31, 2( 764 $ 4.0¢
Granted 84¢ 1.6
Vested (282) 2.617
Canceled or expire (1449 1.9¢
Nonvested at December 31, 2( 1,18¢ $ 2.9

Valuation Assumptions
Assumptions used for valuation of equity instrunseaatarded during the twelve months ended Decenthe2® .3, 2012 and 2011:

2013 2012 2011
Restricted stock
Risk free rate 0.03%- 0.18% 0.18%- 0.42% 0%- 8.48%
Quarterly dividenc $ — $ 0.00- $0.0t $0.05-0.21¢
Expected, per annum, forfeiture ri 0%- 9% 9% 0%- 9%
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13. STOCK INCENTIVE PLANS (Continued)

Selected Information on Equity Instruments and &tkased Compensation
Selected information on equity instruments andeshased compensation under the plan for the yeaedeDdcember 31, 2013, 2012 and Z
follows:

Years Ended
December 31

2013 2012 2011
Total compensation cost for share-based payments $2,86( $3,55( $3,88¢
Weighted average gre-date fair value of equity instruments gran $ 1.77 $ 2.6F $ 7.5¢
Total fair value of shares vested during the pe $5,011 $2,60¢ $4,33(
Total intrinsic value of options exercis $ — $ — $1,93(
Unamortized sha-based paymen $1,74¢ $1,95¢ $3,88¢
Weighted average period in years to be recognigezkpensi 1.7t 1.2¢ 2.7C

The Company purchases from shares authorized timel@011 Incentive Award Plan, sufficient vestedrsh to cover employee payroll tax
withholding requirements upon the vesting of resd stock. From time to time the Company also Ipases sufficient vested shares to cover
employee payroll tax withholding requirements & dggregate exercise price upon exercise of optidms Company expects to repurchase
approximately 329 shares in 2014. This amountsetaipon an estimation of the number of sharesstficted stock awards expected to vest
and options expected to be exercised during 2014.

Alaska Communications Systems Group, I nc. 2012 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Alaska Communications Systems Group, Inc. Z8hployee Stock Purchase Plan (“2012 ESPP”) waoapgdrby the Company’s
shareholders in June 2012 and replaced the Alaskantinications Systems Group, Inc. 1999 EmployeekStairchase Plan, as amended
(“1999 ESPP"). The 2012 ESPP will terminate upanehrlier of (i) the last exercise date prior te thnth anniversary of the adoption date,
unless sooner terminated in accordance with th@ HHEPP; or (ii) the date on which all purchasetdgie exercised in connection with a
change in ownership of the Company. The terms®2®12 ESPP are similar to those of the 1999 EBR&er the terms of the 2012 ESPP, all
ACS employees and all employees of designateddiabigis generally will be eligible to participatethe 2012 ESPP, other than employees
whose customary employment is not more than 20shperr week and five months in a calendar year,har ave ineligible to participate due to
restrictions under the Internal Revenue Code. Aigpant in the 2012 ESPP will be granted a purehigght to acquire shares of common st

at six-month intervals on an ongoing basis, sulittie continuing availability of shares under 2042 ESPP. Each participant may authorize
periodic payroll deductions in any multiple of 1%4p(to a maximum of 15%) of eligible compensatiotéoapplied to the acquisition of
common stock at semiannual intervals. The 2012 EBipBses certain limitations upon a participanghts to acquire common stock,
including (i) purchase rights granted to a paracipmay not permit the individual to purchase nthe:n $25 worth of common stock for each
calendar year in which those purchase rights atstanding at any time; (ii) purchase rights maylmgranted to any individual if the
individual would, immediately after the grant, ownhold outstanding options or other rights to pase, stock possessing 5% or more of the
total combined voting power or value of all classéstock of the Company or any of its subsidigraew (iii) no participant may purchase m
than 10 shares of common stock during any six moffdring period. The offering dates are Januaand July 1 and the purchase dates are
June 30 and December 31. The initial purchaseutater the 2012 ESPP was December 31, 2012. Sharpsr@ahased on the open market or
issued from authorized but unissued shares on fbefthle participant on the purchase date. No pigint will have any shareholder rights v
respect to the shares covered by their purchabesrigtil the shares are actually purchased opdahcipant’s behalf. No adjustments will be
made for dividends, distributions or other rigtasivhich the record date is prior to the date efdbtual purchase.

The Company reserved 1,500 shares of its commahR &0 issuance under the 2012 ESPP, which weteaalsilable for issuance for the
January 1, 2012 through June 30, 2012 offeringpparnder the 1999 ESPP. Any shares issued to esgsap respect to the January 1, 2012
through June 30, 2012 offering period under the
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13. STOCK INCENTIVE PLANS (Continued)

1999 ESPP reduced (on a one for one basis) thegatgrnumber of shares available for issuancedfierainder the 2012 ESPP. Since
adoption of the 1999 ESPP, an aggregate of 1,0&@stof common stock were reserved for issuancerthd 1999 ESPP, and 1,117 shares
were issued. The 67 shares issued in excess @f@b6 shares reserved under the 1999 ESPP wiltecithe aggregate number of shares
available under the 2012 ESPP by 67. The fair vafteach purchase right under the 2012 ESPP an@ BES®P is charged to compensation
expense over the offering period to which the riggrttains, and is reflected in total compensatimst for share-based payments in the above
table.

14. RETIREMENT PLANS
Multi-employer Defined Benefit Plan

Pension benefits for substantially all of the Comps Alaska-based employees are provided throughithska Electrical Pension Fund
(“AEPF"). The Company pays a contractual hourly anmtdased on employee classification or base cosgtiem. As a multemployer define
benefit plan, the accumulated benefits and plaetasse not determined for, or allocated separ&telthe individual employer.

The following table provides additional informatiabout the AEPF multi-employer pension plan.

Plan name Alaska Electrical Pension Pl
Employer Identification Numbe 92-6005171
Pension plan numb: 001
Pension Protection Act zone status at the's yea-end:
December 31, 201 Green
December 31, 201 Green
Plan subject to funding improvement p No
Plan subject to rehabilitation pli No
Employer subject to contribution surcha No
Greater than 5'
of Total
Contributions
Company contributions to the plan for the year en __tothe Plar
December 31, 2013 $ 9,17¢ Yes
December 31, 201 $ 9,56¢ Yes
December 31, 201 $ 9,06t Yes
Name and expiration date of collective bargainiggeaments requiring contributions to the pl
Collective Bargaining Agreement Between Alaska Camitations Systems and Local
Union 1547 IBEW December 31, 201
Outside Agreement Alaska Electrical Constructiotween Local Union 1547 IBEW and
Alaska Chapter National Electrical Contractors Asstion Inc. September 30, 20
Inside Agreement Alaska Electrical Constructionaegn Local Union 1547 IBEW and
Alaska Chapter National Electrical Contractors Asstion Inc. October 31, 201
Special Agreement Providing for the Coverage ott&@emNor-bargaining Unit Employee December 31, 201
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14. RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

The Company can not accurately project any chamgjeei plan status in future years given the unicgytaf economic conditions or the effect
of actuarial valuations versus actual performandbé market. Minimum required future contributidaghe AEPF are subject to the numbe
employees in each classification and/or base cosgtiem of employees in future years.

Defined Contribution Plan

The Company provides a 401(k) retirement savinge pbvering substantially all of its employees. Plan allows for discretionary
contributions as determined by the Board of Dires;teubject to Internal Revenue Code limitatiorf'e TCompany made a $174, $123 and §
matching contribution for 2013, 2012 and 2011 retipely.

Defined Benefit Plan

The Company has a separate defined benefit plarcdars certain employees previously employed byt@ry Telephone Enterprise, Inc.
(“CenturyTel Plan”). This plan was transferredtte Company in connection with the acquisition ohtDeyTel's Alaska properties, whereby
assets and liabilities of the CenturyTel Plan wieaasferred to the ACS Retirement Plan (“Plami)September 1, 1999. Accrued benefits u
the Plan were determined in accordance with theigioms of the CenturyTel Plan and upon completibthe transfer, covered employees
ceased to accrue benefits under the CenturyTel BPlafNovember 1, 2000, the Plan was amended t@oordarly retirement reduction factors
and various other terms to those provided by theRREAs a result of this amendment, prior servicgt 06$1,992 was recorded and has been
amortized over the expected service life of the plarticipants at the date of the amendment. Thep@ay uses the traditional unit credit
method for the determination of pension cost foaficial reporting and funding purposes and compligsthe funding requirements under the
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974amended (“ERISA”). The Company uses a Decemben&lsurement date for the Plan.
The Plan is not adequately funded under ERISA aebwer 31, 2013. The Company contributed $360gdthn in 2013, $469 in 2012 and
did not contribute in 2011. The Company plans tatigbute approximately $898 to the Plan in 2014 arahagement is also estimating what
additional contributions the Company may be reguicemake in subsequent years in the event the\adlthe Plan’s assets remains volatile o
continue to decline.

The following is a calculation of the funded statfishe ACS Retirement Plan using beginning andrendalances for 2013 and 2012 for the
projected benefit obligation and the plan assets:

2013 2012

Change in benefit obligatiol

Benefit obligation at beginning of ye $16,60¢ $15,17¢

Interest cos 63¢ 71E

Actuarial (gain) los: (959 1,62¢

Benefits paid (1,00¢

) (914

Benefit obligation at end of ye 15,28¢ 16,60¢
Change in plan asse

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of \ 11,10 10,24

Actual return on plan asse 1,09: 1,29¢

Employer contributiot 36( 46¢

Benefits paic (1,006 (914

Fair value of plan assets at end of y 11,54¢ 11,10:
Funded statu $(3,73¢6) $(5,509)

The Plan’s projected benefit obligation equalsitsumulated benefit obligation. The 2013 and 2@dlity balance of $3,736 and $5,508
respectively, is recorded on the “Consolidated BedaSheets” in “Other long-term liabilities.”
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14. RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)
The following table presents the net periodic pem&xpense for the Plan for 2013, 2012 and 2011:

2013 2012 2011
Interest cost $ 63E $71E $ 742
Expected return on plan ass (70€) (6949) (852
Amortization of loss 78¢ 797 68€
Net periodic pension expen $ 717 $ 81¢ $ 57€
In 2014, the Company expects amortization of ngtggand losses of $535.
2013 2012
Loss recognized as a component of accumulated otimeprehensive loss: $3,79¢ $5,92¢
The assumptions used to account for the Plan Beoémber 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:
2013 2012
Discount rate for benefit obligation 4.4% 3.97%
Discount rate for pension exper 3.97% 4.86%
Expected lon-term rate of return on asst 6.52% 6.87%
Rate of compensation incree 0.0(% 0.0(%

The discount rate for December 31, 2013 and 20Xcakulated using a proprietary yield curve basedbove median AA rated corporate
bonds. The expected long-term rate-of-return ontasste is the best estimate of future expectedréor the asset pool, given the expected
returns and allocation targets for the varioussgasf assets.

Based on risk and return history for capital maglabng with asset allocation risk and return prigas, the following asset allocation
guidelines were developed for the Plan:

Asset Categol Minimum Maximum

Equity securities 0% 80%
Fixed income 0% 50%
Cash equivalent 0% 10C%

The Plan’s asset allocations at December 31, 26d2812 by asset category are as follows:

Asset Categol 201z 2012

Equity securities* 62% 61%
Debt securities 37% 3%
Other/Cast 1% 0%

* May include mutual funds comprised of both stoakd bonds

The fundamental investment objective of the Plao igenerate a consistent total investment retufficeent to pay Plan benefits to retired
employees while minimizing the long-term cost te @ompany. The long-term (10 years and beyond) &aat growth objective is to achieve
a rate of return that exceeds the actuarial inteesumption after fees and expenses.

Because of the Company’s long-term investment obes, the Plan administrator is directed to reséhg reactive to short-term capital
market developments and to maintain an asset rabigtcontinuously rebalanced to adhere to the ipha@stment mix guidelines. The Plan’s
investment goal is to protect the assets’ long-teancthasing power. The Plan’s assets are managechamner that emphasizes a higher
exposure to equity markets versus other assetslaliss expected that such a strategy will prexachigher probability of meeting the plan’s
actuarial rate of return assumption over time.

F-38



Table of Contents

ALASKA COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS GROUP, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Contirad
Years Ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011

(In Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

14. RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

The following table presents major categories ahmssets as of December 31, 2013, and inputsanation techniques used to measure the
fair value of plan assets regarding the ACS RetgnmanPlan:

Fair Value Measurement at Reporting Date Usinc
Quoted Price:

Significant
in Active Other Significant
Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical
Assets Inputs Inputs
Asset Categol Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Money market/cash $ 104 $ 104 $ — $ —
Equity Securities (Investment Fund:
International Growtt 1,75¢ 1,75¢ — —
U.S. Small CAF 90t 90t — —
U.S. Medium CAF 887 887 — —
U.S. Large CAF 3,631 3,63 — —
Debt Securities (Investment Fund:
Certificate of Deposit 2,211 2,211 — —
Fixed Income 2,04¢ 2,04¢ — —
$11,54¢ $ 11,54¢ $ — $ —

* May include mutual funds comprised of both stoakd bonds

The benefits expected to be paid in each of thefivexyears and in the aggregate for the fivedisears thereafter are as follows:

2014 $1,02¢
2015 1,061
2016 1,00(¢
2017 1,041
2018 1,05¢
201¢-2023 5,301

Post-retirement Health Benefit Plan

The Company has a separate executive post-retitedmeaith benefit plan. The Alaska Communicationst&ys Executive Retiree Health
Benefit Plan (“The ACS Health Plan”) was adoptedhsy Company in November 2001 and amended in Oc20@2. The ACS Health Plan
covers a select group of former management empogee provides a graded subsidy for medical, damiglvision coverage. The
Compensation and Personnel Committee of the Bdabirectors decided to terminate The ACS HealtmRtaJanuary 2004. Three people
qualified under the plan are eligible for futurenbéts.

The Company uses the projected unit credit methothe determination of post-retirement health éoisfinancial reporting and funding
purposes and complies with the funding requirementer ERISA. No contribution was made to The AG&lth Plan for 2013, 2012 or 2011,
and no contribution is expected in 2014. The Compees a December 31 measurement date for the plan.

The fundamental investment objective of the plato iealize an annual total investment return iast with the conservative risk tolerance
plan dictated by the Company. The investment mafflthe plan emphasizes liquidity and income, soaptal stock investment and some
fluctuation of investment return. It is anticipatibdt the investment manager will achieve this dibje by investing the account’s assets in
mutual funds. The portfolio may hold common stdoked income securities, money market instruments@.S. Treasury obligations. On
December 31, 2013, the plan was underfunded bydt®0plan assets of $177. The net periodic postemient income / (cost) for 2013 was
($5).
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15. BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The Company operates its business under a singpetadle segment. Effective in the first quarteR012, the Company changed its operati
focus from a products-based business to a custéonased business. The Company reassessed andnmgedjids management and internal
reporting structures and realigned its externarfiial reporting to support this change. The Comisachief operating decision maker assesse
the financial performance of the business as fdldiy revenues are managed on the basis of speci§tomers and customer groups; (ii) cost:
are managed and assessed by function and gensuphprt the organization across all customer groupsvenue streams; (iii) profitability is
assessed at the consolidated level; and (iv) imest decisions and the assessment of existingseasebased on the support they provide 1
revenue streams. Prior to 2012, the Company opkitatbusiness under two reportable segments —lMérand Wireless. As a result of the
Company’s reorganization of its reporting structegment information for 2011 has been restatedriform to the current single reportable
segment.
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15. BUSINESS SEGMENTS (Continued)

The following table presents service and produetmees from external customers for the years ebeéegmber 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011:

2013 2012 2011
Service Revenue
Business and Wholesale Customr
Voice $ 22,947 $ 23,84 $ 25,61
Broadbanc 40,027 33,97: 30,65¢
Other 7,65¢ 7,38¢ 6,66¢
Wholesale _ 30,04, _ 33,39 _33,00:
Business and Wholesale service reve 100,68( 98,59: 95,94(
Consumer Custome
Voice 16,81¢ 18,96¢ 21,00:
Broadbanc 22,10¢ 18,39¢ 17,01
Other 1,73¢ 1,38¢ 1,062
Consumer service reven 40,66¢ 38,75 39,07¢
Total Service Revenue 141,34! 137,34« 135,01«
Growth in Service Reveni 2.9% 1.7%
Growth in Broadband Service Rever 18.6% 9.9%
Other Revenue:
Equipment Sale 2,08: 3,021 1,45¢
Access 37,03: 40,25( 38,32:
High Cost Suppot 18,77¢ 20,22: 21,10:
Total Service and Other Revenue 199,23° 200,83t 195,89¢
Growth in Service and Other Rever -0.8% 2.5%
Growth excluding equipment sal -0.3% 1.7%
Wireless Revenue
Business and Consumer retail service reve 71,197 73,84 74,48
Equipment sale 4,84 6,01t 5,66¢
Other 5,04¢ 4,281 4,257
AWN Related:
Foreign Roaminy 40,02¢ 55,10¢ 38,93«
Wireless Backhat 6,03t 6,891 3,21(
CETC 21,01¢ 20,73 26,87:
Amortization of deferred AWN capacity reven 1,512 — —
Total AWN Related 68,59 82,73¢ 69,01
Total Wireless and AWN Related Revenu 149,68° 166,87¢ 153,41¢
Total Revenue $348,92: $367,71- $349,31«
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15. BUSINESS SEGMENTS (Continued)

Verizon, the Company’s primary roaming partner m&®f Alaska and a customer for which it provideaming services in Alaska, accounted
for 13.6%, 16.4% and 12.7% of consolidated revemu@®13, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The Company’s revenues are derived entirely frotereal customers in the United States and its loregh assets are held entirely in the
United States.

16. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company enters into purchase commitments wetidors in the ordinary course of business, inclydimimum purchase agreements with
certain suppliers of devices. The Company alsddrasterm purchase contracts with vendors to suggperon-going needs of its business.
These purchase commitments and contracts havengastims and in certain cases may require the Coymeabuy goods and services in the
future at predetermined volumes and at fixed pri¢be Company also has an obligation to spend %100 in capital expenditures to allow
AWN to access certain components of the capacityrituted by the Company to AWN.

The Company is involved in various claims, legaiats and regulatory proceedings arising in thenangy course of business and has recorde
litigation reserves of $3,499 at December 31, 283&inst certain current claims and legal actiohge Company believes that the disposition o
these matters will not have a material adverseceéfie the Company’s consolidated financial positmemprehensive income or cash flows. It
is the Company’s policy to expense costs assocuithdoss contingencies, including any relatedaldges, as they are incurred.

17. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Unaud ited)

Quarterly Financial Data

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
2013
Operating revenue $91,05¢  $97,75° $ 83,84.  $76,26"
Gross Profif 55,61: 60,55 39,12: 30,35¢
Operating incom: 16,14: 20,85: 215,72: 69C
Net income (loss 3,46¢ 37,69 119,90° (4,68¢)
Net income (loss) per shal
Basic 0.0¢ 0.81 2.5¢ (0.10
Diluted 0.07 0.8C 2.0t (0.10
2012
Operating revenue $85,947  $90,01: $ 96,75(  $95,00¢
Gross Profif $50,78¢  $49,91¢ $ 60,40¢  $58,20°
Operating incom 12,06¢ 7,75¢ 24,63¢ 18,82¢
Net income (loss 1,12¢ (787) 8,24¢ 8,82:
Net income (loss) per shal
Basic 0.0z (0.02) 0.1¢ 0.1¢
Diluted 0.0z (0.02) 0.17 0.1¢
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Grant Thornion LLP
520 Pive Syest Su% 2300
Seame, WA 251011352

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

T 266251121
F 20585259047
WA T NOMOnLSm

Board of Directors and Members
The Alaska Wireless Network, LLC

We have audited the accompanying balance shedieoAlaska Wireless Network, LLC (a Delaware Limitgdbility Company) (the
“Company”) as of December 31, 2013, and the relatattments of income, members’ equity, and castrsffor the period from July 23, 2013
through December 31, 2013. These financial stat&sraae the responsibility of the Company’s managen@ur responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based omodit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8dé/nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether the finastaieiments are free of material
misstatement. We were not engaged to perform at @fuithe Company’s internal control over finanaiaporting. Our audit included
consideration of internal control over financigbogting as a basis for designing audit procedurasdre appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion oreffectiveness of the Company’s internal contrarofinancial reporting. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includesnéxiag, on a test basis, evidence supporting theusts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principlebarsd significant estimates made by managememtebsis evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our auditiges a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements refer@alove present fairly, in all material respedts, financial position of The Alaska Wireless
Network, LLC as of December 31, 2013, and the tesflits operations and its cash flows for thaquefrom July 23, 2013 throuc
December 31, 2013, in conformity with accountingpgiples generally accepted in the United State&roérica.

/s/ GRANT THORTON LLP

Seattle, Washington
March 26, 2014

Grant Thorton LLP
U.S. member firm of Grant Thornton Internationad Lt
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The Alaska Wireless Network, LLC
(A Majority Owned Subsidiary of GCI Wireless Holdis LLC)

BALANCE SHEET

December 31, 2013
(Amounts in thousands)

ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash
Receivables from related parti
Receivables from nc¢-related partie
Total receivable
Prepaid expense
Other current asse
Total current asse
Property and equipment in service, net of deprieci
Construction in progres
Net property and equipme
Goodwill
Wireless license
Rights to use capacity, net of amortization of 81,2t December 31, 20:
Future capacit
Software licenses, net of amortization of $8,47BDetember 31, 201
Other asset
Total other asse
Total asset

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfirancial statements.
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$ 3,52i
100,54¢
14,22¢
114,77-
1,30¢

71
119,68:
191,80!
32,95¢
224,76
155,44!
91,40(
54,18¢
15,31
7,871
92¢
325,14¢
$669,59:
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The Alaska Wireless Network, LLC
(A Majority Owned Subsidiary of GCI Wireless Holdis LLC)

BALANCE SHEET

December 31, 2013
(Amounts in thousands)
(Continued)

LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable to related part
Accounts payable to n-related partie
Deferred revenue
Accrued liabilities
Total current liabilities
Line of credit from GCI Holdings, In
Asset retirement obligatior
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingenci
Member! equity
Total liabilities and membe’ equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfirancial statements.
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$ 62,15¢
7,862
1,99¢
22¢
72,24:
3,87
14,79:
1,904
92,81:

576,78:
$669,59:
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The Alaska Wireless Network, LLC
(A Majority Owned Subsidiary of GCI Wireless Holdis LLC)

INCOME STATEMENT

For the period July 23, 2013 to December 31, 2013
(Amounts in thousands)

Revenues
Related partie
Non-related partie
Total revenue
Cost of goods sold (exclusive of depreciation amdrization shown separately beloy
Related partie
Non-related partie
Total cost of goods so
Selling, general and administrative expen
Related partie
Non-related partie
Total selling, general and administrative expei
Depreciation and amortization expel
Operating incomi
Interest expense to related party (including armatitbn of deferred loan fee
Net income

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfirancial statements.
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$ 71,73.
47,18¢
118,91¢

3,861
28,85(
32,713

8,10(
2,38(
10,48(
19,17¢
56,54¢
201

$ 56,347
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The Alaska Wireless Network, LLC

(A Majority Owned Subsidiary of GCI Wireless Holdis LLC)

STATEMENT OF MEMBERS’ EQUITY

For the period July 23, 2013 to December 31, 2013

(Amounts in thousands)

Balances at July 23, 2013
Net income
Contributions from membe
Distributions to membet
Allocation to members of income in excess of dttions

Balances at December 31, 2(C

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfirancial statements.
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Member’ Capita

Allocable
Accounts Earnings Total

$ — — —
— 56,34: 56,34:
574,41 — 574,41
— (53,97 (53,97¢)

2,36¢ (2,369 —
$ 576,78 — 576,78.
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The Alaska Wireless Network, LLC
(A Majority Owned Subsidiary of GClI, Inc.)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the period July 23, 2013 to December 31, 2013
(Amounts in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activitie:
Depreciation and amortization expel
Other noncash income and expense it
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, nehafunts acquiret
Receivables from nc-related partie
Receivables from related parti
Prepaid expenst
Other current asse
Other asset
Accounts payable to n-related partie
Accounts payable to related part
Accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activit
Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchases of property and equipm
Purchases of software licenses and other a
Net cash used in investing activiti
Cash flows from financing activitie
Distribution to member
Borrowing from GCI Holdings, Inc
Net cash used in financing activiti

Net increase in cash and cash equival
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe
Supplemental nc-cash transaction
Net assets and liabilities transferred from mem
Asset retirement obligation additions to properid @quipmen
Non-cash additions of property and equipm
Non-cash distributions to membe

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfirancial statements.
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$ 56,34:

19,17¢
42t

(14,225)
(57,33%)
(1,309)
(71)

95
5,98¢
26,06(
22¢
1,99¢
1,19:
38,56¢

(18,539

(1,667)
(20,19%)

(17,849
3,00(

(14,849
3,521

$ 3,52

$574,41¢
$ 11€
$ 1,87
$ 36,13¢
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The Alaska Wireless Network, LLC
(A Majority Owned Subsidiary of GCI Wireless Holdis LLC)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013

(1) Business and Summary of Significant Accounting épies

In the following discussion, The Alaska Wirelesswark, LLC (“AWN?") is referred to as “we,” “us” antiour.”

(@)

(b)

Description of the Busine:

AWN was formed June 5, 2012 as a Delaware limitggility company, and as a majority owned subsidi@rGCl Wireless
Holdings, LLC (a wholly owned subsidiary of Gene€Gammunication, Inc. (“GCI”))As a result of the acquisition described be
GCI Wireless Holdings, LLC owns two-thirds and AlasCommunications Systems Group, Inc. (*“ACS”) owns-third of AWN.

We began operations on July 23, 2013, and offefalh@wving services:
*  Wholesale wireless services to GCl and A
*  Wireless roaming for other wireless carri

« Backhaul for other wireless carrie

Acquisition

Effective July 23, 2013, we closed the transactiomder the Asset Purchase and Contribution Agree(fiéfireless Agreement”)
entered into on June 4, 2012 by and among ACS, SC§ Wireless, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary @2®, GCI Wireless
Holdings, LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of GCl,daAWN, pursuant to which the parties agreed to rioute the respective
wireless network assets of GCI, ACS and theiriatfls to AWN. AWN provides wholesale services tol@ad ACS. GCIl and AC
use the AWN network to sell services to their resipe retail customers. GCl and ACS continue to peta against each other and
other wireless providers in the retail wireless kear

Under the terms of the Wireless Agreement, GClrilouted $291.4 million in net assets consisting®fvireless network assets
and certain rights to use capacity to AWN. Additithy, ACS contributed its wireless network assetd eertain rights to use
capacity to AWN. As consideration for the contréadibusiness assets and liabilities, ACS receive@ $1million in cash from GC
a one-third ownership interest in AWN and entitlenseto receive preferential cash distributionslioga$190.0 million over the
first four years of AWN'’s operations (“Preferenceried”) contingent on the future cash flows of AWThe preferential cash
distribution is cumulative and may be paid beydmal Rreference Period until the entire $190.0 mmllopaid. We believe ACS’s
preferential cash distributions are expected thigker than that which they would receive from thugie-third interest. GCI
received a two-third ownership interest in AWNwa| as entitlements to receive all remaining cdistributions after ACS’s
preferential cash distributions during the PrefeeeReriod. The distributions to each member argsuto adjustment based on the
number of ACS and GCI wireless subscribers, withabgregate adjustment capped at $21.8 millioedoh member over the
Preference Period.

During the Preference Period net income is allatadieGCl and ACS based on their proportion of distions up to the total
distributions, as defined by AWN, during the peridi&t income greater than the total distributianaliocated based on each
member’s proportional ownership interests. Follayine Preference Period, GCl and ACS will receiggrithutions proportional to
their ownership interests.

We accounted for the assets and liabilities conteith by ACS at estimated fair values as of July2233, using the acquisition
method of accounting in accordance with Accounstagndards Codification (*“ASC”) 858usiness Combinationg/e used a
combination of the discounted cash flows and mamethod to value the wireless licenses. We useddbeapproach to value the
acquired fixed assets and rights to use capacgtaswWe used a discounted cash flow method tordiete the fair value of ACS’s
member equity. The assets and liabilities contaub us by GCI were measured at their carryinguarhionmediately prior to the
contribution as GCI is maintaining control over #esets and liabilities. GCI's initial member egust the carrying amount of GGI’
contributed assets and liabilities.
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The Alaska Wireless Network, LLC
(A Majority Owned Subsidiary of GCI Wireless Holdis LLC)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013

We have not completed our analysis of the valuatierefore, the amounts recorded and classificatised for the assets acquil
liabilities assumed and the fair value of ACS’s -dhied ownership interest in AWN are provisionablasubject to change. We will
finalize the amounts recognized as we obtain tfanmation necessary to complete our analysis. Hevfing table summarizes t
preliminary purchase price and the estimated faue of ACS’s assets acquired and liabilities agsiireffective July 23, 2013
(amounts in thousands):

Purchase price

Cash consideration paid by G $100,00(
Fair value of the or-third ownership interest of AWI 267,64
Total purchase pric $367,64.

Assets acquired and liabilities assumr
Acquired asset

Current assel $ 16,95:
Property and equipment, including constructionriomgpess 82,474
Goodwill 140,08(
Wireless license 65,43:
Rights to use capaci 52,63¢
Future capacity receivab 15,31
Other asset 765
Fair value of liabilities assume (6,01

Total fair value of assets acquired and liabiligssume $367,64.

Goodwill in the amount of $155.4 million was receddas a result of the acquisition including $15iHion in goodwill contributed
by GCI. Goodwill is calculated as the excess ofdbesideration transferred over the net assetgnizmed and represents the
estimated future economic benefits arising froneotssets acquired that could not be individuaintified and separately
recognized. The goodwill is primarily the resultsyhergies expected from the combination.

Accounts Receivable from N-related Parties and Allowance for Doubtful Recelga

Accounts receivable from non-related parties acended at the reported amount and do not beaestteFhe allowance for
doubtful receivables is our best estimate of thewamof probable credit losses in our existing acts receivable from non-related
parties. We base our estimates on the aging charounts receivable balances, financial healttustammers, regional economic
data, changes in our collections process and reguleequirements. We review our allowance for déulbreceivables methodolos
at least annually. No allowance for doubtful reedies is recorded as of December 31, 2013.

Account balances are charged off against the alloeavhen we feel it is probable the receivable moli be recovered. We do not
have any off-balance-sheet credit exposure relatedr customers.

Property and Equipmel

Property and equipment is stated at cost. Congtrucbsts of facilities are capitalized. Constrotin progress represents
transmission equipment and support equipment astgisyg not placed in service on December 31, 26aBntanagement intends
place in service during 2014.
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The Alaska Wireless Network, LLC
(A Majority Owned Subsidiary of GCI Wireless Holdis LLC)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013

Depreciation is computed using the straight-linghroé in the following ranges:

Asset Categol Asset Lives
Telephony transmission equipment and distributamilities 5-20 year
Support equipment and syste 3-20 year
Buildings 25 year

Repairs and maintenance are charged to expensewased. Expenditures for major renewals and beteats are capitalized.
Accumulated depreciation is removed and gainsssds are recognized at the time of sales or otbgoslitions of property and
equipment.

Intangible Assets and Goodw

Goodwill and wireless licenses are not amortizedeldss licenses represent the right to utilizéageradio frequency spectrum to
provide wireless communications services. Goodwpresents the excess of cost over fair value tdseets acquired in connect
with a business acquisition.

Under the terms of the Wireless Agreement, we aedudrom ACS rights to use its network capacity #relassociated maintenal
on this network capacity for 20 years. We are aiziog this intangible asset over 20 years usingsthaght-line method. We also
acquired from ACS the rights to use additional metcapacity which we may draw down in the futdirke applicable portion of
the future capacity asset will be reclassifiechms fights to use capacity asset when the capaciihaced into service and amortized
using the straight-line method over the remaini@g@ar period.

Software licenses are recognized at cost and ang benortized over a 5 year period using the sttaige method.

Impairment of Intangibles, Goodwill, and Lc-lived Assets

Wireless license assets are treated as indefimid-Intangible assets and are tested annuallyrfpairment or more frequently if
events and circumstances indicate that the asgéit foé impaired. We are allowed to assess quakitddictors (“Step Zero”) in our
annual test over our indefinite-lived intangiblsets other than goodwill.

Our goodwill is tested annually for impairment, asdested for impairment more frequently if evesrisl circumstances indicate
that the assets might be impaired. In our anngalaegoodwill, we are allowed to use Step Zerdetermine whether it is more
likely than not that goodwill is impaired.

We completed our annual review of wireless licemssets and goodwill as of October 31, 2013. No immEnt charge was record

for the period July 23, 2013 to December 31, 2013.

Long-lived assets, such as property, plant, antbatgnt, and purchased intangibles subject to araitin, are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circurastaimdicate that the carrying amount of an agsetpgmay not be recoverak
Recoverability of an asset group to be held and issemeasured by a comparison of the carrying amaiuan asset group to
estimated undiscounted future cash flows expectd tgenerated by the asset group. If the caraingunt of an asset group
exceeds its estimated undiscounted future castsflawimpairment charge is recognized by the amoymthich the carrying
amount of the asset group exceeds the fair valtleechisset group.

Asset Retirement Obligatior

We record the fair value of a liability for an asgstirement obligation in the period in whichstincurred on the Balance Sheet if
the fair value of the liability can be reasonaldyimated. When the liability is initially recordede capitalize a cost by increasing
the carrying amount of the related long-lived adseperiods subsequent to initial measurementpden-period changes in the
liability for an asset retirement obligation regudtfrom revisions to either the timing or the ambaf the original estimate of
undiscounted cash flows are recognized. Over tiheeliability is accreted to its present value epeliod, and the capitalized cos
depreciated over the useful life of the relatecaddpon settlement of the liability, we eithertkethe obligation for its recorded
amount or incur a gain or loss upon settlement.
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The Alaska Wireless Network, LLC
(A Majority Owned Subsidiary of GCI Wireless Holdis LLC)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013

The majority of our asset retirement obligations thie estimated cost to remove telephony transomgsjuipment and support
equipment from leased property. Following is a reditation of the beginning and ending aggregateyirag amounts of our
liability for asset retirement obligations (amouimghousands):

Balance at July 23, 201 $14,40¢
Liability incurred 11€
Accretion expens 27C
Liability settled 2

Balance at December 31, 20 $14,79:

During the period July 23, 2013 to December 31,320de recorded additional capitalized costs of $dillion in Property and
Equipment in Service, Net of Depreciation.

Revenue Recoqnitio

All revenues are recognized when the earnings psosecomplete. If requested by GCI and ACS wegqaai incentives to them
when wireless handsets are sold to their respeiadl customers. During the period July 23, 26dBecember 31, 2013, and in
accordance with the Facilities and Network Use Agrent dated as of July 22, 2013 by and among AWSE AGCI, ACS
Wireless, Inc., and GCI Wireless Holdings, LLC ("BN"), GCI waived the right to request a cash indenfor wireless handsets
sold to their retail customers. During this penwel recorded incentives of $6.8 million as an offseRevenues—Related Parties.

Revenues generated from wireless service usagplandees are recognized when the services aréda\vPlan fees and usage
self-reported to us by our carriers, GCl and AQ%®l we recognize carrier plan fees as set out ieeagents with GCI and ACS.

As Eligible Telecommunications Carriers (“ETCs”)CGand ACS receive high cost support from the UrsaeService Fund
(“USF") to support the provision of wireless seria high cost areas, and this support is passedgh to us. In 2011 the Federal
Communications Commission (“FCC”) published a findk to reform the methodology for, among othdrstributing USF high
cost support for voice and broadband services (ikigst Order”).

Remote High Cost Support

The High Cost Order mandated that as of Janua2@12, the annual available Remote high cost suppbdsed upon the 2011
support disbursed to Competitive Eligible Telecominations Carriers (“CETCs") (“Statewide SupportpQgproviding supported
services in Remote Alaska, except AT&T. On Jandar3012, the per-line rates paid in the Remotesanesae frozen by the USF
and cannot exceed $250 per line per month on § st basis. Line count growth that causes suppestceed the Statewide
Support Cap triggers a pro rata support paymenictézh to all subject Alaska CETCs until the suppereduced to the Statewide
Support Cap amount.

Remote support is based on line counts until ttex & June 30, 2014, or the last full month ptathe implementation of a
successor funding mechanism. If a successor fundieghanism is operational on July 1, 2014, a 20Atiainphase down will
commence decreasing support 20% each annual pertidaho support is paid starting July 1, 2018 Buccessor funding
mechanism is not operational on July 1, 2014, theesp down will not begin and the subject CETCs edghitinue to receive per-line
based support (subject to the Statewide Suppor} @#p a successor funding mechanism is operatighaubject CETC may not
receive both phase down support and support freaceessor funding mechanism; one program or ther atlast be selected. At
December 31, 2013, we believe implementation afc@assor funding mechanism prior to January 20L5likely.
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The Alaska Wireless Network, LLC
(A Majority Owned Subsidiary of GCI Wireless Holdis LLC)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013

We accrue estimated program revenue based on tlinerounts and the frozen per-line rates, redaeneeded by our estimate
of the impact of the Statewide Support Cap. Wheardgning the estimated program revenue accruahlae consider our
assessment of the impact of current FCC regulatiodsof the potential outcome of FCC proceedings. &3timated accrued
revenue is subject to our judgment regarding tlieasne of many variables and is subject to upwardoovnward adjustment in
subsequent periods.

Urban High Cost Support

The High Cost Order mandated that Urban high aggpart payments were frozen at the monthly aveddgiee subject CETC's
2011 annual support. Urban high cost support islependent upon line counts. A 20% annual phase @omwimenced July 1,
2012, decreasing support 20% each annual perididhensupport is paid starting July 1, 2016. Ifuweessor funding mechanism is
not operational on July 1, 2014, the phase dowhstap at 60% and the subject CETCs will continueeceive annual support
payments at the 60% level until a successor fundiaghanism is operational. At December 31, 2013hslieve implementation of
a successor funding mechanism prior to January B0aslikely and the amount of revenue recognizasl lteen adjusted
accordingly.

We apply the proportional performance revenue reitiogh method to account for the impact of the @eeh payments while our
level of service provided and associated costs irentmstant. Included in the calculation are theesieiled Urban high cost support
payments from October 2011 through January 201 7ed\ral amount of this result is recognized as Ushgiport revenue each
period.

For both Remote and Urban high cost support revesureability to collect our accrued USF supportéstingent upon continuati
of the USF program and upon GCI's and ACS'’s elidibto participate in that program, which is sutijeo change by future
regulatory, legislative or judicial actions. We @stjrevenue and the account receivable in the goélnm FCC makes a program
change, or we assess the likelihood that suchegehlaas increased or decreased revenue. We deawajnize revenue related to a
particular service area until GCI's and ACS’s ETi&tiss has been approved by the Regulatory Commisgidlaska.

We recorded high cost support revenue under thepy&gram of $23.9 million for the period July 2813 to December 31, 2013.
At December 31, 2013, we have $40.6 million an@ $6illion in Remote and Urban high cost accountenreable, respectively.

Leases

Scheduled operating lease rent increases are aawuver the expected lease term on a straighblises. Rent holidays are
recognized on a straight-line basis over the oprydtase term (including any rent holiday period).

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shofttheir economic lives or the lease term. Wg araortize a leasehold
improvement over a term that includes assumpticmlefise renewal if the renewal is reasonably edslieasehold improvements
that are placed in service significantly after anel not contemplated at or near the beginningefdhse term are amortized over
shorter of the useful life of the assets or a tirat includes required lease periods and reneWwatsare deemed to be reasonably
assured at the date the leasehold improvemenfsuacbased. Leasehold improvements made by us adeduby landlord
incentives or allowances under an operating leesesgorded as deferred rent and amortized astiedsado lease expense over the
lease term.

Comprehensive Incorr

Total comprehensive income was equal to net incdunisg the period from July 23, 2013 to December28i 3.

Interest Expens

Material interest costs incurred during the corettom period of non-software capital projects aapitalized. Interest costs incurred
during the development period of a software cajpitaject are capitalized. Interest is capitalizethie period commencing with the
first expenditure for a qualifying capital projestd ending when the capital project is substagit@implete and ready for its
intended use. We capitalized interest costs of@@®during the period July 23, 2013 to Decembe2813.
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The Alaska Wireless Network, LLC
(A Majority Owned Subsidiary of GCI Wireless Holdis LLC)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013

Income Taxe:

We are organized as a limited liability corporatitherefore, all items of income, deduction, gaid éoss pass through to our
members. Accordingly, no provision for current efatred income taxes has been made in the finasteiggments.

We account for uncertain tax positions under tlwvigions of ASC 740lncome Taxesyhich requires us to recognize the financial
statement benefit of a tax position only after dairing that the relevant tax authority would mékely than not sustain the
position following an audit. For tax positions magtthe more-likely-than-not threshold, the amo@tognized in the financial
statements is the largest benefit that has a grérete 50 percent likelihood of being realized updimate settlement with the
relevant tax authority. We had no unrecognizedeefits, penalties, or interest as of DecembeB13. The tax year 2013
remains open to examination by major taxing judsdns to which we are subject.

Use of Estimate

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United States of America
(“GAAP”) requires us to make estimates and asswnptthat affect the reported amounts of assetdiaitities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date effitencial statements and the reported amounsvehues and expenses during the
reporting period. Significant items subject to msties and assumptions include the allowance fdotfldueceivables, unbilled
revenues, accrual of the USF high cost Remotepmgam support, depreciable and amortizable bfesssets, the carrying value
of long-lived assets including goodwill and wiraddigenses, purchase price allocations, defer@sklexpense, asset retirement
obligations, the accrual of Cost of Goods Soldrdejation and the accrual of contingencies angditon. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Concentrations of Ris

Financial instruments that potentially subjectaisdncentrations of risk are primarily cash andaots receivable. Excess cash is
invested in high quality short-term liquid monegtiuments. At December 31, 2013, substantiallpfatiur cash and cash
equivalents were invested in short-term liquid moimstruments. At December 31, 2013 cash balanees im excess of Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation insured limits.

We have the following major customers:

Percent of Tot:

Custome Revenue:

Verizon 26%
GClI 37%
ACS 23%

ACS and GCI are both members of AWN and are cotutadly required to purchase our wholesale wirefessices for their
customers. We provide roaming services for Verix@rizon has been developing their Alaskan LonghTEwvolution network and
the service provided over their network is limiteddata only. We expect Verizon legacy CDMA voioaming to continue with us.
We anticipate a reduction in the roaming reveneesived from Verizon as they continue to build tir network, offset in part |
an increase in backhaul revenue.

We also depend on a limited number of suppliersdaming services outside Alaska. Our operatingltesould be adversely
affected if these suppliers experience financiadredit difficulties, service interruptions, or ettproblems.
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(A Majority Owned Subsidiary of GCI Wireless Holdis LLC)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013

All services provided by us are in Alaska. Becanfshis geographic concentration, our growth andrapons depend upon

economic conditions in Alaska.

(o) Guarantee

Certain of our customers have guaranteed levedswice. If an interruption in service occurs wentd recognize revenue that will
be refunded to the customer or not billed to th&@mer due to these service level agreements.

(p) Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncemt

There were various updates recently issued whigtesented technical corrections to the accountiegature or application to
specific industries. None of the updates are exgeitt have a material impact on our financial pasjtresults of operations or cash

flows.

Net Property and Equipment in Serv

Net property and equipment in service consistheffollowing at December 31, 2013 (amounts in thods):

Land and building:
Telephony transmission equipment and distributamilities
Support equipment and syste

Less accumulated depreciati
Net property and equipment in serv

$ 521
255,99:
7,06(
263,57.
71,76,
$191,80!

GCl and ACS contributed wireless facilities thatynh@ redundant; therefore, we expect to complet@natysis of our wireless facilities
to rationalize our combined network and have reedra $7.6 million reserve against our telephonystm@ission equipment and

distribution facilities.

Intangible Assets and Goodw

As of October 31, 2013, wireless licenses and gdlbdwere evaluated for impairment based on qualitatactors. These intangible asset:
were determined not to be impaired at Decembe2@13. The remaining useful lives of our wirelesgfises and goodwill were
evaluated as of October 31, 2013, and events aoghestances continue to support an indefinite usiédu

There are no indicators of impairment of our rigiatsise capacity asset or software licenses azoémber 31, 2013.

Changes in Goodwill and intangible assets are lasife (amounts in thousands):

Software
Goodwill License: Rights to Us
Balances at July 23, 2013 $ — — —
Additions from AWN acquisitiot 155,44! 7,46¢ 55,40¢t
Asset addition: — 1,70¢ —
Less amortization expen — (1,295 (1,227)
Balances at December 31, 2( $155,44! 7,87 54,18t

F-56



Table of Contents

(4)

()

The Alaska Wireless Network, LLC
(A Majority Owned Subsidiary of GCI Wireless Holdis LLC)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013

Amortization expense for our rights to use capaa#iyet and software licenses for each of the ficeeeding fiscal years is estimated to
be (amounts in thousands):

Years Ending December .

2014 $5,38¢
2015 4,772
2016 3,891
2017 3,13:
2018 2,89¢

Long-Term Debt

We have a $50.0 million line of credit from GCI idoigs, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of GCI, with outstanding balance of $3.9
million at December 31, 2013. Outstanding obligadiare due starting July 22, 2017 with the fulbbak due on July 22, 2021. The line
of credit bears an interest rate of London Intekb@ffered Rate plus the per annum interest ratgimdoeing paid by GCI Holdings, Inc.
As of December 31, 2013, the interest rate was 3.0%

Maturities of the line of credit as of December 3213 are as follows (amounts in thousands):

Years ending December &

2014 $ —
2015 —
2016 —
2017 484
2018 96¢
2019 and thereaftt 2,422
Total line of credit from GCI Holdings, In $3,87¢

Financial Instrument

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair value of a financial instrument is the ambat which the instrument could be exchangeddareent transaction between willing
parties. Our line of credit of $3.9 million outsthing with GCI Holdings, Inc. is estimated to apgroate the carrying value because this
instrument is subject to variable interest ratesvfl 2). ACS'’s future capacity construction obligatto us of $5.0 million recorded in

future capacity on the Balance Sheet as of Decehe2013, approximates fair value as it was restat fair value as of July 23, 2013.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2013

Related Party Transactio

We have significant transactions with our two merah&Cl and ACS. We provide wholesale services@ &d ACS who use our
network to sell services to their respective ratagtomers, receive from GCI and ACS their high sagport from USF and provide cash
incentives when requested to GCl and ACS when @aseehandsets are sold to their respective retsiibmers. During the period July 23,
2013 to December 31, 2013, and in accordance WihrNUA, GCI waived the right to request a caslemive for wireless handsets s
to their retail customers. We share with GCI certapacity provided by third party vendors for whige reimburse GCI and receive
services from GCI. The following table summarizes &mounts received from and paid to related gafitiethe period July 23, 2013 to
December 31, 2013 including amounts reimbursed WNAo its members for services rendered by thindig@s and the amounts
receivable from and payable to related partiesf @&eoember 31, 2013 (amounts in thousands):

GCl ACS
Paid to $16,19¢ 19,79:
Received in paymen 8,811 21,16"
Payable tc 51,75¢ 10,39¢
Receivable fron 72,78. 27,76%

Membe's Equity

There is one class of membership interest in AWNdés the terms of the First Amended and Restatedtdlipg Agreement signed by
ACS, GCI, ACS Wireless, and GCI Wireless HoldingsC (“Operating Agreement”), no member of AWN ialtle for any of its debt,
obligations or liabilities, except as provided byrlaw or in the Operating Agreement. A member canunless otherwise provided for in
the Operating Agreement, transfer all or any partibits membership interest. No additional conttibns beyond initial contributions ¢
required of the members per the Operating Agreement

During the Preference Period net income is allatadeGCl and ACS based on their proportion of distions up to the total
distributions, as defined by AWN, during the peribtkt income greater than the total distributicnaliocated based on each member’s
proportional ownership interests. Following thefBrence Period, GCI and ACS will receive distribang proportional to their ownership
interests.

Commitments and Contingenci

Operating Leases

We primarily lease land for cell towers, space elhtowers, and urban rooftop space for cell sikéany of our leases are for multiple
years and contain renewal options. Rental costensuth arrangements amounted to $2.9 milliontferperiod July 23, 2013 to
December 31, 2013.

A summary of future minimum lease payments follgasounts in thousands):

Years ending December & Operating
2014 $ 3,81(
2015 3,11¢
2016 2,42¢
2017 1,60:
2018 88(
2019 and thereaftt 2,96¢
Total minimum lease paymer $14,80(

F-58
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The leases generally provide that we pay the telated to the leased assets. Several of our l@adade renewal options, escalation
clauses and immaterial amounts of contingent nemeese. We expect that in the normal course ohlessi leases that expire will be
renewed or replaced by leases on other properties.

Subsequent Even

On January 28, 2014, we drew an additional $5.0anibn our line of credit with GCI Holdings, Inc.

On February 3, 2014, we received a letter from A€f8sing to pay rates set by us for their 2014ises/under the terms of the Facilities
and Network Use Agreement dated as of July 22, 200 and among AWN, ACS, GCI Communication CorpCSA\Wireless, Inc. and
GCI Wireless Holdings, LLC. until we remedied cértalleged breaches of our obligations under theilifias and Network Use
Agreement. We responded to this letter, demandiagACS pay the rates set by us under the agreeandrdenying we have breached
any terms of the agreement. The parties to thjsutishave begun the dispute resolution processiived by the Arbitration Agreement
entered into effective June 4, 2012, by and amo@& AGCI, AWN, ACS Wireless, Inc. and GCI Wirelessldings, LLC.

On February 28, 2014, the FCC announced GCI’s winbids in the Tribal Mobility Fund | auction for$d1.4 million grant to partially
fund expansion of our 3G wireless network, or biettelocations in Alaska where we would not othisenbe able to construct within our
return-on-investment requirements. GCI must fileray-form application with the FCC by April 4, 2014, whimust be reviewed for fir
approval, before the award can be issued. By F@€rapproving the AWN transaction, GCl must passatliction proceeds through to
AWN.

For the current reporting period, subsequent ewgats evaluated through March 26, 2014, which rsgmes the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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Subsidiary

Alaska Communications Systems Holdings,

Alaska Communications LL!

ACS of the Northland, Inc.

ACS of Alaska, Inc.’

ACS of Fairbanks, Inc.

ACS of Anchorage, Inc.

ACS Wireless, Inc

ACS Long Distance, Inc.

ACS Internet, Inc.

ACS Messaging, Inc

ACS InfoSource, Inc

ACS Cable Systems, Inc.

ACS of Alaska License Sub, Inc.
ACS of the Northland License Sub, Inc
ACS of Fairbanks License Sub, Inc
ACS of Anchorage License Sub, Inc
ACS Wireless License Sub, Inc

ACS Long Distance License Sub, Inc
ACS Service, Inc

Crest Communications Corporati
WCI Cable, Inc

Alaska Northstar Communications, LL
Northstar License Corporatic

WCIC Hillsboro, LLC.

WCI Lightpoint, LLC.

Northern Lights Holding, Inc
WorldNet Communications, In
Alaska Fiber Star, LLC

Alaska Fiber Star License Corporati
Alaska Fiber Star Corporatic

Subsidiaries of the Company

DBA
Alaska Communications, AC
Alaska Communications, AC
Alaska Communications, AC
Alaska Communications, AC
Alaska Communications, AC
Alaska Communications, AC
Alaska Communications, AC
Alaska Communications, AC
Alaska Communications, AC
Alaska Communications, AC
Alaska Communications, AC
Alaska Communications, AC
Alaska Communications, AC
Alaska Communications, AC
Alaska Communications, AC
Alaska Communications, AC
Alaska Communications, AC
Alaska Communications, AC
Alaska Communications, AC
Alaska Communications, AC
Alaska Communications, AC
Alaska Communications, AC
Alaska Communications, AC
Alaska Communications, AC
Alaska Communications, AC
Alaska Communications, AC
Alaska Communications, AC
Alaska Communications, AC
Alaska Communications, AC
Alaska Communications, AC

Exhibit 21.1

Jurisdiction of
Incorporation or

Organizatior
Delaware

Alaska
Alaska
Alaska
Alaska
Delaware
Alaska
Alaska
Delaware
Alaska
Alaska
Delaware
Alaska
Alaska
Alaska
Alaska
Alaska
Alaska
Alaska
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Alaska
Delaware
Delaware

In addition to the wholly owned subsidiaries liswibve, the Company has a 49% interest in TekMaig, an Alaska Limited Liability

Company and a one-third interest in the Alaska W&®Network, LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability Cqany.

* Effective January 1, 2013, the indicated entitieserconverted to limited liability companies undpplicable state lav



Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
Alaska Communications Systems Group, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference irrdéiggstration statements (No. 333-181660 and 3319) on Forms S-8 of Alaska
Communication Systems Group, Inc. of our reportedidarch 26, 2014, with respect to the consolidl@@ance sheets of Alaska
Communications Systems Group, Inc. as of Decembe2@L3 and 2012, and the related consolidatedm#aits of comprehensive income
(loss), stockholders’ equity (deficit), and caghwit for each of the years in the three-year pegimted December 31, 2013, and the
effectiveness of internal control over financigdoeting as of December 31, 2013, which reports apjrethe December 31, 2013, annual re
on Form 10-K of Alaska Communications Systems Gytop

/sl KPMG

Anchorage, Alaska
March 26, 2014



Exhibit 23.Z

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We have issued our report dated March 26, 2014 neghect to the financial statements of The Alaskaless Network, LLC, included in the

Annual Report of Alaska Communications Systems @rdnc. on Form 10-K for the year ended Decembe2813. We hereby consent to the

incorporation by reference of the said report m Registration Statements of Alaska Communicat®ystems Group, Inc. on Forms S-8 (File
No. 33181660 and File No. 333-175179).

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP
Seattle, Washington

March 26, 2014



Exhibit 31.1

Sarbanes-Oxley Section 302(a) Certification
I, Anand Vadapalli, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKdlaska Communications Systems Group, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or dméttate a material fact necessary to mak
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoger which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this report;

4. The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (as define:
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢e)) ardriat control over financial reporting (as definedExchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under our supervision, tc
ensure that material information relating to thgistrant, including its consolidated subsidiarissnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financiglating, or caused such internal control over fahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitie reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallygiedeaccounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragtisslosure controls and procedures and presentaisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegid’s internal control over financial reportirttat occurred during the registranthost recer
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal geeaiin the case of an annual report) that has madlieaffected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comeer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitibthe registrant’s board of directors (or pessperforming the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal costngiich are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, processnmarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaweanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s internal
controls over financial reporting.

Date: March 26, 2014 /s/ Anand Vadapal
Anand Vadapall
President and Chief Executive Offic
Alaska Communications Systems Group,




Exhibit 31.Z

Sarbanes-Oxley Section 302(a) Certification
I, Wayne Graham, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKdlaska Communications Systems Group, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or dméttate a material fact necessary to mak
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoger which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this report;

4. The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (as define:
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢e)) ardriat control over financial reporting (as definedExchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under our supervision, tc
ensure that material information relating to thgistrant, including its consolidated subsidiarissnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financiglating, or caused such internal control over fahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitie reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallygiedeaccounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragtisslosure controls and procedures and presentaisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegid’s internal control over financial reportirttat occurred during the registranthost recer
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal geeaiin the case of an annual report) that has madlieaffected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comeer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitibthe registrant’s board of directors (or pessperforming the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal costngiich are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, processnmarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaweanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s internal
controls over financial reporting.

Date: March 26, 2014 /sl Wayne Grahat
Wayne Grahar
Chief Financial Office
Alaska Communications Systems Group,




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Alaska Coumications Systems Group, Inc. (the “Company”) omir 10K for the fiscal year endir
December 31, 2013 (the “Report”), I, Anand VadapRitesident and Chief Executive Officer of the Quamy, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 8.
1350, as created by § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxlep#2M02, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsection 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of teeuities Exchange Act of 1934 as amen
and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finana@aldition and result of operations of the
Company.

Date: March 26, 2014 /s/ Anand Vadapal
Anand Vadapall
President and Chief Executive Offic
Alaska Communications Systems Group,




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Alaska Coumications Systems Group, Inc. (the “Company”) omfr 10-K for the period ending
December 31, 2013 (the “Report”), I, Wayne Grah@mgf Financial Officer of the Company, certify,rpuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, created b
8. 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsection 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of tkeuities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finana@aldition and result of operations of the
Company.

Date: March 26, 2014 /sl Wayne Grahat
Wayne Grahar
Chief Financial Office
Alaska Communications Systems Group,




